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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UNTAEBIRGEEAR AR (EARATIHE The following is a summary of the results and assets

TIRB DR EWB AR ([AREME])MNEZE2017 and liabilities of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (the

&~ 20184  20194F + 20204 ]2 2021412431 “Company” or “Binjiang Service”) and its subsidiaries

AEFEEFNXEREEHBERE - (the “Group”) for each of the years ended 31 December
2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021.

FEBE RESULTS SUMMARY

it

Note 2017 2018 2019 2020 m

A Revenue (RMB'000)
(AREFT) 349,264 509,470 701,875 960,201 1,398,947
il increase 54.6% 45.9% 37.8% 36.8% 45.7%
EA Gross profit (RMB'000)
(AREFT) 90,083 134,953 197,040 297,317 449,677
il increase 114.2% 49.8% 46.0% 50.9% 51.2%
ERxE Gross profit margin (1) 25.8% 26.5% 28.1% 31.0% 32.1%
£ m increase
SR Profit for the year
(ARE®T)  (RMB'000) 57,552 70,423 114,921 220,274 325,021
= m increase 160.3% 22.4% 63.2% 91.7% 47.6%
e Z RS Net profit margin 2) 16.5% 13.8% 16.4% 22.9% 23.2%
ADARZRE  Profit attributable to
FE15 78 equity shareholders
(AR¥Fr)  of the Company
(RMB'000) 57,173 70,177 114,681 219,550 321,751
£ m increase 156.4% 22.7% 63.4% 91.4% 46.6%
EXREE Basic and diluted earnings
BRAF per share
(AR¥T) (RMB) 0.29 0.35 0.44 0.79 1.16
Bt iz - Notes:
() EMETIAEMBRAMAGE - (1) Gross profit margin is calculated as gross profit divided by
revenue.
(2)  FFRETDUAFAFBERAMAGE - (2)  Net profit margin is calculated as profit for the year divided by
revenue.

BTIREEEBR AR FEIRE 2021 5
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SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2017 2018 2019 2020 m

EEHEEME
k3
Note

HeRBEEEYW Cash and cash equivalents
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

mBEE Current assets
(AREFT)  (RMB'000)

BEE Total assets
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

eV Current liabilities
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

wafm Total liabilities
(AREFT)  (RMB'000)

ARNEERKRR  Total equity attributable
it to equity shareholders
(AR®Fr)  of the Company

(RMB'000)
JRERERERE  Return on shareholders’

equity 3)
mE L & Current ratio )

BEAMBELE  Gearing ratio

(5)

it
(3) MR 2 12 9 T b AR A 7 A 2 0 R A A 8
B LA BB SR 3 T o

(4 RBLXDURDEERURDAETE -

(5) EBEEABBHRENUGEERAFE(REAEAR)
BABBH R ZERAETE - AEBEN20214F
128318 202056 12A31B W EEGELH =5 5
#$0.002 }20.003

6 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

303,949 458,543 516,707 805,394 905,746

373,550 534,720 1,084,484 1,368,118 1,482,250

389,389 551,095 1,203,626 1,502,589 1,684,636

278,202 366,363 476,316 642,953 710,957

278,202 366,363 471,078 644,256 711,076

110,509 181,358 721,834 841,625 941,589

51.7% 38.7% 15.9% 26.1% 34.2%
1.34 1.46 2.28 2.13 2.08
TEA i A
N/A N/A 0.004 0.003 0.002
Notes:

(3) Return on shareholders’ equity is calculated as total profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by
shareholders’ equity.

(4) Current ratio is calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities.

(5) Gearing ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings
(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity at the end of
the respective period. The Group's gearing ratios were 0.002
and 0.003 as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
respectively.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

To all Shareholders,

Thank you for your trust in and support to the Group.
On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present our annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period") note.

In 2021, despite the impact of the pandemic and the
economic fluctuations, the Group strived to carry out
its development strategy which aimed for high-quality
development, and achieved a progressive growth.

On 12 March 2021, the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan for
National Economic and Social Development and the
Outline of Long-term Goals for 2035 of the People’s
Republic of China” were officially issued, which proposed
to accelerate the development of various service
industries, including the property service industry. It also
specified the organic integration and precise alignment
of different social services, including employment, social
securities, elderly care, childcare, disability aids, medical
and health care, domestic services, logistics, merchants,
social security and law enforcement, dispute resolution
and mediation and mental healthcare. The property
service industry continued to consolidate its foundation
and develop with innovations which brought a promising
prospect.

Note.: 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. The same below.

BITIRISEEARAT FERE 2021

7



8

ERERE

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

m]?\

[

PAmE ] 3E m b

J

AEBARKETREALNRENL - HF
RATREME— - HTEE] - BEMEE
REB AT B AEALTE - 20216 [ 4
SEQUERER WEEMGTHSE TR
ZRBERESNEHAEHE = EEEMN
BRACAEREERNEREE - AEE
EERUpsEasAsREEEaN &
GRS REBAR XA EEE B RS
* RBENRARBEELET BFE
EEESEE SAME ERESHEAR
EARBEY HREAROEEDOT IS
BURBEMBERETSE SRS
BRERANBEEH - ERERSBRE
AEEREOEEELR BREABRRS
RAT R BERTEAK  EAEE
B o

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

UTILIZING THE QUALITY FOR BRAND
BUILDING

The Group adheres to its mission of providing
high-quality services and strives to become a top
property management brand in China and a benchmark
in Zhejiang, and has continuously reviewed the quality
of its projects on a regular basis. In 2021, the Group
continued to refine its quality management system and
improved its regular quality inspections and enhanced
and expanded the monitoring of its daily quality
control through group quality spot checks, project
safety inspections and daily inspections by regional
property departments. The quality inspection team,
which is supervised by the senior management of the
Group and comprised of experts from various areas, is
responsible for examining and analyzing the operation
of residential buildings, office buildings and industrial
parks with professional insights based on the Group’s
service quality standards, and supervising and guiding
project managers for timely rectification. On the other
hand, our outstanding performing projects were praised
and introduced to other projects, so as to enhance the
awareness of quality service among all project managers.
In respect of quality control, the Group has established
a problem-solving mechanism for sharing solutions and
implemented a reward and punishment mechanism based
on its management experience in order to enhance its
management efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Group continues to adhere to its quality expansion
strategy, and strives to promote growth by utilizing its
brand name and projects under management as success
stories to attract third parties. As at 31 December 2021,
the gross floor area ("GFA") currently managed by us
("GFA under management”) under signed property
management contracts was approximately 29.9 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 50.1%.
GFA under management developed by independent
third parties reached 14.4 million sgq.m., accounting for
48.2% of total GFA under management and representing
a year-on-year increase of 13.5 percentage points.
GFA under management acquired during 2021 reached
10.0 million sgq.m., 75.1% of which were independent
third party properties. The GFA managed under signed
management contracts (“contracted GFA”) was 49.8
million sg.m., representing an increase of 40.3% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year.
Contracted GFA developed by independent third parties
reached 24.1 million sq.m., accounting for 48.4% of
total contracted GFA. Contracted GFA acquired during
2021 reached 14.3 million sgq.m., 76.0% of which were
independent third party properties. In 2021, the Group
introduced new strategic partners including Jianhang
Real Estate, Yiwu Construction Investment Group and
Hainan Jiayuan Property, and expanded into Lishui,
Zhejiang Province, Haikou, Hainan Province and Meizhou,
Guangdong Province. The Group has also commenced its
management of its first projects in Wenzhou, Zhejiang
Province, Shangrao, Jiangxi Province and Nantong,
Jiangsu Province and undertook a commercial project
developed by an independent third party in Shanghai for
the first time in 2021. The Group has strived to provide
quality services to more property owners. The monthly
property management fee of the new project, Tongxiang
Chuntian Yueli, was RMB7.6 per sq.m., and the monthly
property management fee of Jiayuan-Jiangpan Jinyu,
a new project located in Haikou, Hainan Province, was
RMB5.8 per sg.m., demonstrating the Group'’s confidence
in establishing local brand quality benchmarks. In
addition, in 2021, the Group continued to expand its
property management business and had new property
management service projects including Hangzhou Lining
Stadium and Shanghai Yingchuang School and provided

BIREEBMERAR FERE 2021
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land bank management services to Hangzhou Municipal
Bureau of Land Resources. In January 2022, the Group
started the management of a healthcare project with the
Hangzhou University Rehabilitation Hospital. Driven by
the Hangzhou Asian Games and the concept of “property
+ elderly care”, the Group has actively developed sports,
educational, healthcare and urban services to strengthen
its comprehensive service capabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the GFA under management
of the Group in Hangzhou reached 19.2 million
sq.m., accounting for 64.1% of the total GFA under
management of the Group. Leveraging its excellent
brand reputation and concentration advantages, the
Group gradually promoted its 5S value-added services
(formerly known as value-added services to property
owners) based on the needs of property owners and its
own resource advantages. In 2021, the Group launched
Binjiang Youjia, a directly managed agency platform, and
Binjiang Youju, a one-stop home service platform. As at
the end of 2021, Binjiang Youjia opened two brick and
mortar stores in Hangzhou and succeeded in handling
transactions, leasing and warrant business for over 6,000
customers in over 50 communities in Hangzhou. In
addition, the Group continued to develop Youxiang living
services, providing customers with thoughtful and quality
services based on its resources and brand image.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Group has put great efforts in promoting the
standardization of products and management. As the
business scale of the Group has been expanded in recent
years, the service area and operating environment have
changed significantly. By optimizing the management
mechanism of its upgraded and star-rated services, the
Group has accommodated to the increasing needs of the
Company’s services and products.

The Group has formulated specific standards for
individual projects under management with reference
to standardized management manual, which have been
reviewed by professional teams. The Group has also
revised and refined the management manual based on
the actual situation of projects, so as to further increase
the feasibility of standardized management system.

In addition, the Group capitalized on its advantage
of regional concentration to further optimize its staff
allocation by adjusting internal structure and promoting
the “Set Sail Scheme”, “Voyager Scheme”, “Navigator
Scheme”, “Chuying Program”, “Feiying Program” and
“Xiongying Program”. In terms of Binjiang's style,
specialization and management ability, the Group built a
comprehensive and multi-layered training model to refine
its supply chain of talents. The Group actively expanded
campus recruitment channels by providing the “Binjiang
College” mobile learning platform. In 2021, as approved
by competent authorities, the Group has become a
pilot institution for accrediting vocational qualification.
The Group may accredit its employees as property
management practitioners and issue national-recognized
vocational skill level certificates to its qualified
employees.

BRI EEARA

FEHRE 2021

;g

1"



12

ERERE

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BERERANR
AEERGHEESFRCEEZ(LER &8
NEMOHBERRSRE T BAETAR EE
FNBEZERBETEE -SENERRERF
ERMBEBENBEEAR  BREXIES
REFEHBERER AKEHBEAR LR
HRETRE SHIRETRHEETVRY
B ARETEINERREX -

RERSANE

HwEHR - AEBAY R E ST (T
ERDMEGRHERFI7U LENANE
THEFREREEFERSEE LTAA
XTI RETHE 201 EVMEHBRES
EREMAFAFEN ZEFR/ I MELTA
B +=RIMTIHEMERE®E  FT
mEAE®IER02UNTFEE R £ 53485 ]
B FSERRmTENROMERK LA
s (=i WERS HTOPI0)  [ERE Y
ERBEBLEIT RBREBEEOAARE
3418 7T °

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The Group actively promoted informatization and
intelligentization development through the upgrading
and enhancing of its internal financial management
system and implementation of smart systems across its
projects. The Group’s app has also gone online at several
properties and will be updated and optimized based on
owners’ feedback. Merging online systems and offline
hardware, the Group is committed to providing property
owners with a seamless experience while improving its
management efficiency.

During the Reporting Period, the Group ranked 17th
among the top 100 property management service
brands selected by the China Index Academy (“CIA")
and was honored by Hexun.com’s 19th China’s Financial
Annual Champion Awards as “the Top 10 Annual Service
Listed Companies with the Highest Property Owner
Satisfaction” and named as “Best Small and Mid-Cap
Listed Company” in Sina Finance Golden Unicorn Best
Hong Kong and US Stock Selection for 2021. The Group
was also named as “ Outstanding Property Service Brand
in Zhejiang in the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” and “Leader
of Excellent Living in Zhejiang for 2021" by Zhejiang
Quality Habitat Forum*. The Group was selected as “Top
100 Property Service Companies for 2021”, “Top Ten
Luxury Property Service Provider” and “Outstanding
Property Service Provider in Eastern China” by CRIC. The
brand value of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB3.4 billion.
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During the Reporting Period, the projects under the
Group’s management received 103 awards in total. Some
of the awards are as follows: Jiangnan Star Apartment*
and Ginkgo Mansion* were awarded as “Outstanding
Property Management — Residential Projects in 2021”
by the Hangzhou Property Management Industry
Association*.
Qiandaohu Dongfang Haian* were awarded as “Model
Community for Residential Area in Hangzhou in
2021".
Guandi International*,

Sunshine Coast*, Xixi Zhixing* and

Sunshine Coast*, Qiandaohu Dongfang Haian*,
Huajiachi Apartment*, Golden
Jiangnan* and Yiwu Park One* were awarded as “Model
Community for High Standard Living Waste Sorting
in Zhejiang Province*”. Qiandaohu Dongfang Haian*,
Yujiangnan Apartment*, Shangyu Star* and Pujiang 8
Apartment* were awarded as
Chinese Garden in Zhejiang*"” by the Zhejiang Branch of
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the PRC. Ginkgo Mansion*, Wanjia Mingcheng Phase
[I*, Jiahe Court of Pinghu Wanjia Huacheng*, Daijiang
Star*, Eastern Mansion*, Golden Jiangnan*, Huajiachi
Apartment* and Puyuang One* were awarded as
"Model Community for Water Conservation in Zhejiang”
by the Zhejiang Branch of the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC. Jiangnan
Star* and Xixi Zhixing* were awarded as “Five Stars
Property Service Project in China in 2021". Lian Erhuan,
an employee of the Company, was awarded as “Most
Excellent Property Service Personnel in China”.

“Residential Area with

TR EEARAT FERE 2021
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In addition, the Group proactively undertook social
responsibilities in social governance, environmental
protection, employee protection and charitable activities.

For social governance, the Group timely adjusted its
emergency plans in respect of organization management
and emergency procurement in response to extreme
weather conditions and emergency. During the pandemic
lockdown, the Group actively cooperated with the
government to maintain the social order within its
properties and to fulfill the needs of its property owners,
which received social recognition.

For environmental protection, the Group has been
committed to energy conservation and emission
reduction. Energy saving LED light bulbs have been
used in all properties project under management. The
Group also strived to create water-saving communities,
garden communities and other environmentally friendly
communities in line with the needs of the owners.

For employee protection, the Group has fulfilled all basic
needs of its employees and guaranteed salary levels to
maintain the stability and enthusiasm of its employees.
The Group has also implemented employee insurance
policies and paid attention to the health issues of
employees. Accidents that occurred at the workplace or
during commuting have been deemed as work-related
injuries.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

For charitable activities, in June 2021, the Group
organized a charitable activity, “Lighting up the tallest
lighthouse by donating a good book”
thousand books were donated by property owners and
employees of Binjiang to help Tibetan children have a
better understanding of the world. During the year, in
response to the government’'s call, the Group actively
participated in charity donation activities for poverty-
stricken areas. Employees also actively participated
in poverty alleviation through the consumption and
purchase of agricultural products in poverty-stricken
areas. In 2021, the Group donated RMB300,000 to the
“Common Wealth Fund”
The donation will be used to support entrepreneurship
and basic social security for locals, reflecting the
commitment of the Group in fulfilling its corporate
responsibilities.

in which over a

established by Kaixuan Street.

There is no limit to serve with quality. The Group will
continue to assume its social responsibilities in alignment
with its corporate reputation.

Zhu Lidong
Chairman

Hangzhou, 31 March 2022

* For identification purpose only
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Reviewing 2021, the Group maintained steady growth
and continued to develop and take root in the Yangtze
River Delta, further expanding its operations within
Yangtze River Delta and further expanded its operations
within Yangtze River Delta. The Group has a total of 133
subsidiaries and branches across the Zhejiang Province,
Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Jiangxi Province, Hainan
Province, Guangdong Province and Shenzhen in China,
with contracted projects in 17 cities. Moreover, the GFA
under management and contracted GFA of the Group
also increased significantly. As at 31 December 2021, the
GFA under management was approximately 29.9 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 50.1%, and
the contracted GFA was 49.8 million sg.m., representing
a year-on-year increase of 40.3%. The ratio of contracted
GFA to GFA under management was approximately 1.66,
which will strongly support the business growth of the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’'s
revenue increased by 45.7% to RMB1,398.9 million.
The Group’s gross profit increased by 51.3% from the
corresponding period of 2020 to RMB449.7 million. The
Group's gross profit margin increased by 1.1 percentage
points from the corresponding period of 2020 to 32.1%.
Revenue generated from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and 5S
value-added services amounted to RMB840.5 million,
RMB419.5 million and RMB138.9 million, respectively. In
2021, the average monthly property management fee of
the Group was approximately RMB4.30 per sg.m. (2020:
RMB4.26 per sg.m.), calculated by dividing the property
management fee income (excluding revenue from land
management services) for the Reporting Period by the
average chargeable GFA at the beginning and the end of
the Reporting Period. Leveraging its brand recognition
and industry influence, the Group was able to charge
relatively high property management fee for its quality
property management services. From 2015 to 2021, the
Group increased management fee 37 times.
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The Group provides high-quality services that are
tailored to its customers’ need and maintains its brand
recognition and awareness. Its ranking increased to
17th among the top 100 property management service
brands selected by the CIA. The Group was honored by
Hexun.com’s 19th China’s Financial Annual Champion
Awards with the Top 10 Annual Service Listed Companies
with the Highest Property Owner Satisfaction and
“Best Small and Mid-Cap Listed Company” of 2021
Sina Finance Golden Unicorn Best Hong Kong and US
Listed Companies. As the Group’s quality services are
highly recognized within the region, Hangzhou Binjiang
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., (“Binjiang Holdings”)
and its subsidiaries (“Binjiang Group”), a leading
property developer in China, have established close
business relationship with the Group and continuously
provided a large number of premium properties to the
Group In 2021, the sales of Binjiang Group amounted to
RMB169.1 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
24% (source: CRIC).

Leveraging its high-quality services, the Group was able
to expand its business through various channels and
undertake a wide range of projects, including but not
limited to undertaking government, major state-owned
enterprise and private enterprise projects, maintaining
good relationships with strategic partners and expanding
its direct sales. As at 31 December 2021, the GFA under
management was approximately 29.9 million sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of 50.1%. GFA
under management developed by independent third
parties reached 14.4 million sq.m., accounting for 48.2%
of total GFA under management and representing a year-
on-year increase of 13.5 percentage points. During the
year, the Group actively promoted the third-party project
expansion strategy. GFA under management newly
acquired in 2021 reached 10.0 million sq.m., 75.1%
of which was developed by independent third parties.
Revenue generated from property management services
provided to projects developed by independent third
parties amounted to RMB291.1 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 62.0%. In respect of diversifying
the type of management business, the Group increased
management projects including schools, resettlement
and other livelihood projects as well as parks and other
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urban public space service projects. In respect of regional
expansion, the Group increased projects in Hainan
Province and Guangdong Province. The Group’s projects
basically covered all regions in Zhejiang Province (except
Zhoushan).

In view of the rapid development of the overall property
services industry in recent years, the Group shall expand
its scale and increase its profit while maintaining its
service quality. The Group will regard its services quality
as its core competitiveness and will raise the standard
of specialized services by leveraging its effective and
flat structure management. The Group will increase its
investment in technologies to enhance the efficiency of
its management and operation. Through strengthening
staff management, monitoring facilities and equipment
and upgrading internal systems, the operation procedures
will be streamlined and the quality assurance system will
be optimized to further improve its service capabilities.
The Group will be able to achieve synergetic development
of quality, scale and profitability.

BUSINESS MODELS OF THE GROUP

Due to the expansion of services, while maintaining the
development of basic property management and the
existing value-added services, the Group positioned its 55
value-added services as a driver of future profit growth
in strict accordance with the strategic deployment of
the Board. As such, the existing value-added services to
property owners are renamed as 5S value-added services
and re-categorized into Youjia services, Youju services
and Youxiang living services. The management classified
business segments into property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and 55
value-added services, forming an entire value chain of
comprehensive services within property management.
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Property management services. The Group
provides a series of high-quality property
management services, including security, cleaning,
gardening, repair, maintenance and ancillary
services to our property owners, and charges
service fee from residents and property owners
or real estate developers of such properties under
our management for property management
services. During the year, the Group introduced
urban services and land reserve management
services, primarily including land management and
maintenance, green planting and maintenance,
wall and fence painting works, muck removal and
transportation, installation and management of
monitoring devices, and others.

Value-added services to non-property
owners. The Group provides value-added services
to non-property owners, mainly to property
developers. These services refer to pre-delivery
services, consulting services and community space
services. Pre-delivery services include cleaning,
assisting with quality check and security services
for completed properties and display units and
providing property sales venue management
services to property developers during the
pre-delivery stage of property sales. Consulting
services include advising property developers
at the early and construction stages on project
planning, design management and construction
management to enhance functionality, comfort and
convenience. Community space services include (i)
assisting advertisement companies with regards to
advertisement placements in the community spaces
in our managed properties, and (ii) managing
community venues in our managed properties.

55 value-added services (formerly known as
“value-added services to property owners”).
The Group also provides 5S value-added services
to property owners. The value-added services to
property owners are renamed as 5S value-added
services, including three major businesses, namely
Youjia services, Youju services and Youxiang living
services.
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Youjia services include the primary and secondary
property sales and leasing agency services, car
parking space and storage room services. The
Group is committed to providing seamless services
for customers with its platforms and reputation.

Youju services include the existing customized
interior furnishing services. It adheres to its
“Living Home"” interior services concept to
provide customers with elegant, stylish, modern
and customized furnishing services and interior
design services, and facility upgrade services and
maintenance.

Youxiang living services include the existing home
living services. In view of the different functions
in residential and non-residential properties, the
Group provides additional services that are tailored
to its customers’ need.

The table below sets out the contracted GFA and GFA

under management of the Group for 2021 and 2020:

822021128318 HZ2020512A31H
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
&8 & a8 rE
EEHE BEEE BE@EE BERRE
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA  management
(FEAK) (FEAK) (FEAXK) (FEHK)
('000 sq.m.)  ("000 sq.m.) ('000 sg.m.) ('000 sq.m)
R E 1) At the beginning of the year 35,488 19,955 26,804 14,369
i Addition 14,330 10,028 9,023 5,885
®E Termination (35) (35) (339) (299)
RER At the end of the year 49,783 29,948 35,488 19,955
A 20216128318 - AEBMAB315E S LN IEE - & Note: As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 315 contracted projects

HEEMEE ARL.8E &8 F 5K (7R2020F12 431
H:231EEE 35588 FHK) - GHREERE
EASERBEEEEMEEREGNBREHEELG
EEEMNEEEE ASFER2021FE0TFHY
ERB(HHVEETERBUABRURBEHTR
HMARAKEBEZEEBENFEHEONABATFELK
AR®A4307t(2020F - BAFFHAKARK4L26
JL) °
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and the contracted GFA was 49.8 million sq.m. (as of 31 December
2020: 231 projects of 35.5 million sg.m.). Contracted GFA refers to
the GFA managed or to be managed by the Group under signed
management contracts. The Group's average monthly property
management fees for 2021 (property management fees income
during the period divided by the average chargeable GFA at the
beginning and the end of the period) were approximately RMB4.30
per sq.m. (2020: RMB4.26 per sg.m).
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TREF AL B R20215F K2020F WX B The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group'’s

RIS A 42%8 - 12B31BEEEEMmMIE KA total property management services revenue during

BEAMBRYELRILE D) - 2021 and 2020, GFA under management and number of
projects as at 31 December by type of properties:

2021 2020

'E EE
KA BEEE HEY A BEERE HEE
GFA under Number of GFA under  Number of
Revenue management projects Revenue  management projects

ON (ARE

T ) (FERK) Tr) (FFAK)

(RMB’000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) ('000 sq.m.)
F=E Residential 667,003 23,635 132 447,206 16,908 98
FEE Non-residential 160,099 6,313 64 107,035 3,047 35
THER Land management 13,444 — — — — —
@t Total 840,546 29,948 196 554,241 19,955 133
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TREF AL B R20215F K2020F WX B The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group'’s

FRISUW A 42%8 - 12B31BEEEEMmMIE LA total property management services revenue of 2021 and

BEAMBEAERERE D) : 2020, GFA under management and number of projects
as at 31 December by type of developers:

2021 2020

EE EE

ON BEEE EHY KA REEE EBY

GFA under Number of GFA under  Number of

Revenue management projects Revenue management projects

(A% (AR®

Fr) (F¥EFX) Fr) (FERK)
(RMB'000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB000)  ('000 sq.m.)

BIEERERE  Properties developed by
AREBHEE  Binjiang Group or its
mEFRERRE  associates or jointly

nmE developed with other
parties 549,434 15,510 89 374,512 13,021 74
— AR — early stage 295,448 8,756 53 219,098 8,710 50
—RZekR — property owners'
association stage 253,986 6,754 36 155,414 4311 24
BUMEREERA  Properties developed by
ENME independent property
developers 277,668 14,438 107 179,729 6,934 59
— A HER — early stage 179.046 10,584 80 138,333 5,574 50
—RZekR — property owners'
association stage 98,622 3,854 27 41,396 1,360 9
THER Land management 13,444 — — - - —
@t Total 840,546 29,948 196 554,241 19,955 133

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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TREI AN EER20215F K2020 % EE R The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group'’s

B A @5 12A3MBEERZEMMBENIEE  total property management services revenue of 2021 and

M (R EE D) - 2020, GFA under management and number of projects
as at 31 December by geographic region:

2021 2020
EE EE
'ON BEER HEH KA BRERR ERH
GFA under Number of GFA under  Number of
Revenue management projects Revenue management projects
(AR# NG
Fr) (FERK) Fr) (FEAK)
(RMB’000)  ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) ~ ('000 sg.m.)
M Hangzhou 617,793 19,184 133 414,574 12,084 87
I Zhejiang province
(T&mM) (excluding Hangzhou) 206,098 9,980 58 126,421 7,680 45
AT A Outside Zhejiang province 16,655 784 5 13,246 191 1
@i Total 840,546 29,948 196 554,241 19,955 133

TREF HR2021F12831BAEB A4 EHE  The table below sets forth the distribution of contracted
ORI N s I iR =D GFA of the Group in five major cities as at 31 December
2021:

AHNEEER RSN HPRER

(F¥HK) TH & 19t B BYZE=h HEH

Percentage Developed

Contracted  of the total by the
GFA contracted independent Number of
('000 sq.m.) GFA  third parties projects
M Hangzhou 29,216 58.7% 40.8% 198
SEM Jinhua 6,911 13.9% 76.1% 37
EEM Jiaxing 3,469 7.0% 45.0% 24
BT Shaoxing 2,456 4.9% 73.6% 15
i Huzhou 1,421 2.9% 42.3% 8
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PROSPECTS

The Group will further develop its service standardization
model and create customized services. The Group strives
to become a top property management brand in China
and a benchmark in Zhejiang. Through providing effective
and consistent services, the Group will gain higher
brand value and sustainable market competitiveness.
Aiming to become an industry-leading brand and the
benchmark for luxury quality, the Group will improve
its regular quality inspections and enhance and expand
the monitoring of its daily quality control through
unannounced inspections, project safety inspections
and daily inspections by regional property departments.
In addition, the Group will redesign its high-end butler
service team, so as to ensure the long-lasting quality
of projects under management with up-to-date service
standards.

The property management service industry in China is
increasingly concentrated. The Group intends to leverage
its success in the luxury market in the Yangtze River
Delta and its existing service management systems and
standards to expand its current market share and to
further penetrate new markets. The Group utilizes a
benchmark model where it takes root within the region
once a benchmark property has been established within.
Focusing in Hangzhou and taking root in the Yangtze
River Delta, the Group will focus on the operation in the
existing markets and strategically expand its business
coverage in eastern China. The Group will also explore
opportunities in Greater Bay Area and the mid-west
China. Once the Group has established a presence in
a new regional market, the Group plans to grow its
presence in the market to enhance its economies of
scale.

In addition, the Group also actively expands its business
into healthcare, schools, urban services and other
industries to strengthen its comprehensive service
capabilities.
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Based on the demand of property owners, the Group
strives to become a trustworthy property manager
and caretaker for property owners by leveraging on its
professional property products and services. The Group
will develop value-added services system focusing on
5S, which includes furnishing services, interior design
services, agency services, leasing services, interior
repairs and smart facility and equipment upgrades and
replacement services. All business lines of 5S value-added
services will provide business opportunities to other
business segments and complement services provided
by such segments, becoming a new driver for profit
growth within the Company. In addition, the Group
will capitalize its advantages of the existing platform
to establish strategic partnerships through various
channels and expand its service coverage. The Group
will continue to maintain and actively seek for additional
partnership opportunities with well-known enterprises
in the industry, promoting and replicating its successful
partnership model.

The Group puts great efforts in upgrading its internal
management system and smart management platform,
while adhering to its principles and maintaining a degree
of flexibility to prepare for future development. The
Group aims to boost its development through optimizing
its management structure, setting up standardized
operation procedures, developing human resources
and strengthening the procurement control to refine
its internal control mechanism. In addition, the Group
strives to enhance its management efficiency by using
smart approaches. The Group aims to provide property
owners with comprehensive and convenient services in
a timely and safe manner through integrating internal
and external resources. Leveraging on its management
experience, the Group intends to accelerate the
application of smart technologies and the informatization
of its platforms and ecosystems, creating a digital
management system platform.

BITIRISEEARAT FERE 2021

25



26

EEENWRDN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bt ¥ I8
ARBURARB=ZEEZXH (VWX ERE
AR5 (i) FER ERBEMRES + R(iD5SEE MR ©

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was generated from three main
business lines: (i) property management services; (ii)
value-added services to non-property owners; and (iii) 55
value-added services.

5
2021 Changes
AR®TR HHAKA% I HBU A% %
% of total % of total
RMB000 revenue revenue %
MEEERE Property management

services 840,546 60.1 554,241 57.7 51.7

EENFERRG Property management services
for residential properties 667,003 47.7 447,206 46.6 491

FHEMEERRD Property management

services for non-residential
properties 160,099 11.4 107,035 1.1 49.6
THER Land management 13,444 1.0 — — 100

FETLERE Value-added services to non-
property owners 419,542 30.0 312,014 32.5 345
AR R Pre-delivery services 394,618 28.2 282,053 29.4 399
FARS Consulting services 18,248 1.3 16,275 1.7 12.1
tEEHRE Community space services 6,676 0.5 13,686 14 -51.2
5532 E R 55 value-added services 138,859 9.9 93,946 9.8 478
BXR R Youjia services 91,825 6.6 35,977 38 155.2
BERS Youju services 6,113 0.4 24111 25 -74.6
BEEERS Youxiang living services 40,921 2.9 33,858 35 20.9
CE Total 1,398,947 100.0 960,201 100.0 457
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Revenue generated from property management
services amounted to RMB840.5 million, representing
an increase of 51.7% as compared with RMB554.2 million
in 2020. It was the Group's main source of revenue and
accounted for 60.1% of total revenue in 2021. Revenue
generated from the provision of property management
services to properties solely developed by Binjiang Group
or its associates or jointly developed with other parties
was RMB549.4 million, and accounted for 65.4% of
revenue from property management services in 2021.
Leveraging on its leading position in traditional property
business, the Group aggressively expanded business to
cover properties developed by the independent third
parties and properties outside Hangzhou. For the year
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ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from property
management services for properties developed by the
independent third parties amounted to RMB291.1 million,
representing an increase of 62.0% as compared with
2020; and the revenue from property management
services for properties outside Hangzhou amounted to
RMB222.8 million, representing an increase of 59.5%
as compared with 2020. During the year, the Group
introduced land reserve management services. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from land
management services amounted to RMB13.4 million.

Revenue generated from value-added services
to non-property owners amounted to RMB419.5
million, representing an increase of 34.5% as compared
with RMB312.0 million in 2020, and accounted for
approximately 30.0% of the Group’s total revenue in
2021. The increase was mainly due to the stable growth
in the number of projects undertaken during the year.
As affected by the overall performance of the market,
revenue from advertisement placements in community
space decreased, which resulted in the drop in revenue
from community space services.

Revenue generated from 5S value-added services
amounted to RMB138.9 million, representing an increase
of 47.8% as compared with RMB94.0 million in 2020,
and accounted for approximately 9.9% of the Group’s
total revenue in 2021. The increase was mainly due to
the business expansion in primary brokerage service and
the number of property owners served by the Group.
The operation results of Youju services declined as a
result of the decrease in the number of projects related
to customized home furnishing among the projects
delivered during the year.

Based on the above factors, the Group’s gross profit
increased by 51.3% from RMB297.3 million in 2020 to
RMB449.7 million in 2021. The Group's gross profit
margin increased by 1.1 percentage points from 31.0%
in 2020 to 32.1% in 2021, mainly due to the growth of
business.
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Gross profit of property management services increased
by 54.5% from RMB104.4 million in 2020 to RMB161.3
million in 2021, and gross profit margin increased by
0.4 percentage point from 18.8% in 2020 to 19.2% in
2021. In 2021, leveraging on the Group's strong brand
name, the Group was able to maintain the continuous
increase in revenue by providing services for high value
properties. In addition, through upgrade of operation
system, operation efficiency was improved to effectively
control cost while the quality of services was maintained.

Gross profit of value-added services to non-property
owners increased by 34.1% from RMB141.2 million in
2020 to RMB189.3 million in 2021, and gross profit
margin decreased slightly from 45.3% in 2020 to 45.1%
in 2021.

Gross profit of 5S value-added services increased by
91.5% from RMB51.7 million in 2020 to RMB99.0 million
in 2021, and gross profit margin increased from 55.0% in
2020 to 71.3% in 2021. The increase in gross profit was
mainly due to the new brokerage services for primary
property sales during the year.
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During the year, the Group’s cost of sales increased by
43.2% from RMB662.9 million in 2020 to RMB949.3
million in 2021. The increase in cost of sales was in line
with the growth of business scale.

During the year, the Group’'s selling and marketing
expenses increased from RMB2.7 million in 2020 to
RMB3.8 million in 2021, mainly due to an increase in sale
commission as a result of the growth of sales business.

During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses
increased by 34.7% from RMB39.8 million in 2020 to
RMB53.6 million in 2021, mainly due to the increase in
staff cost as a result of the increase in the headcount of
administrative and management personnel during the
year.

During the year, the Group’s impairment loss on trade
receivables increased from RMB11.5 million in 2020 to
RMB12.1 million in 2021, mainly due to the growth of
business and an increase in allowance on bad debts as a
result of an increase of receivables during the year.

During the year, the finance income of the Group was
interest income on bank deposits. Finance income
increased from RMB31.0 million in 2020 to RMB32.9
million in 2021, mainly due to an increase in interest
income from time deposits as a result of the centralized
capital management of the Group. Finance costs
represent lease liabilities and interest expenses on
prepaid customized home furnishing services fees
received from property owners categorized as contract
liabilities. Finance costs increased from RMBO.5 million in
2020 to RMBO.7 million in 2021. The increase was mainly
attributable to the leasing expenses for office building as
a result of the growth of business during the year.
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During the year, the Group's share of profits less losses
of two associates and a joint venture increased from a
profit of RMB0.6 million in 2020 to a profit of RMB1.3
million in 2021, mainly due to the profits generated by
the associates during the year.

During the year, profit before taxation of the Group was
RMB423.2 million, representing an increase of 49.0% as
compared with RMB284.0 million in 2020, mainly due
to an increase of RMB152.4 million in gross profit during
the year.

During the year, income tax expenses of the Group
were RMB98.2 million in 2021, representing an increase
of 54.2% as compared with RMB63.7 million in 2020,
mainly due to the growth of business and an increase in
income tax expenses as a result of an increase in profit
before taxation.

The Group's profit for the year was RMB325.0 million,
representing an increase of 47.5% as compared with
RMB220.3 million in 2020, mainly due to the growth
of business. Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year was RMB321.8
million, representing an increase of 46.5% as compared
with RMB219.6 million in 2020. Net profit margin was
23.2%, representing an increase of 0.3 percentage point
as compared with 22.9% in 2020.

The Group maintained a well financial performance in
2021. As at 31 December 2021, current assets were
RMB1,482.3 million, representing an increase of 8.3% as
compared with RMB1,368.1 million as at 31 December
2020.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were RMB905.7 million, representing an
increase of 12.5% as compared with RMB805.4 million
as at 31 December 2020. This was mainly due to an
increase of net cash inflow from operating activities of
RMB242.4 million driven by the growth of business. As at
31 December 2021, current ratio was 2.08, representing
a decrease as compared with 2.13 as at 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
loans or borrowings (31 December 2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the total equity of the Group
was RMB973.6 million, representing an increase of 13.4%
as compared with RMB858.3 million as at 31 December
2020. This was mainly due to the growth of business and
an increase in operating profit.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies to ensure the liquidity
requirements from daily operation as well as capital
expenditures are met. The Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity positions, while surplus cash are
invested appropriately with the consideration of the
credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks of the financial
instruments, such as the Group placed a certain amount
of cash as bank deposits with maturity over three months
for higher interest income to secure liquidity mentioned
above.

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties,
property, plant and equipment of the Group amounted
to RMB20.3 million, representing an increase of 21.6%
as compared with RMB16.7 million as at 31 December
2020, mainly due to the addition of property, plant and
equipment of RMB4.4 million. In addition, property,
plant and equipment for business development increased
in line with the growth of business.
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The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, contract liabilities of the Group
recorded a year-on-year increase of 33.6%. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in the number of projects
delivered at the end of 2021, resulting in the increase of
31% in basic property service fees received in advance as
compared with the previous year.

The Group did not have any pledged assets as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, trade and other receivables
amounted to RMB173.4 million, representing an increase
of RMB77.7 million or 81.2% as compared with RMB95.7
million in 2020, mainly due to an increase in property
management fee receivables as a result of the growth of
business.

As at 31 December 2021, trade and other payables
amounted to RMB495.9 million, representing an increase
of RMB22.6 million or 4.8% as compared with RMB473.3
million in 2020, mainly due to an increase in staff salaries
payable as a result of an increase in number of staff. In
addition, the cash collected on behalf of the property
owner associations increased in line with the growth of
business.

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at FVPL
represented treasury products (demand wealth
management of Banks) issued by financial institutions
and were purchased at the end of the Reporting Period.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total
of 7,225 employees (as at 31 December 2020: 5,507
employees). During the Reporting Period, the staff costs
of the Group were RMB601.8 million (2020: RMB412.2
million).

The Company did not have any significant investments
(including significant investments which accounted for
5% or more of the total assets of the Group) during the
period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any significant acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities.

The Company, the British Virgin Islands subsidiary and the
Hong Kong subsidiary’s functional currency is HKD. Their
businesses are principally conducted in HKD. In addition,
as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries’
in the PRC is RMB and their businesses are principally
conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group considers the
currency risk to be insignificant.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

All of the Group’s operations are concentrated in the
Yangtze River Delta, particularly in Hangzhou. During
the Reporting Period, the total GFA under management
located in the Yangtze River Delta accounted for almost
all of our total GFA under management, and property
management services revenue generated from our
managed properties in the Yangtze River Delta amounted
to almost all of our total property management services
revenue. Though the Group will further expand to other
key economics regions and cities in China, the Company
expect that the Yangtze River Delta will still continue
to account for a significant portion of our operations in
the near future. If the Yangtze River Delta experiences
any adverse economic conditions, such as an economic
downturn, natural disaster, contagious disease outbreak,
terrorist attack, or if the local governmental authorities
adopt regulations that place additional restrictions on
the property management service industry, the Group's
business, financial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. Given the
above, the Group actively seeks business opportunities
outside the Yangtze River Delta to expand our
geographical coverage.

During the Reporting Period, the Group procured
almost all of our new property management service
contracts through tender processes. Property developers
and the property owners’ general meetings choose
property management companies based on a number
of factors, including but not limited to the quality of
services provided, pricing and the operating history
of the property management company. There is no
assurance that the Group will be able to procure new
property management service contracts in the future.
Furthermore, some Group's property management service
contracts during the Reporting Period were related to
the management of properties developed by Binjiang
Group. Any adverse development in the operations of
Binjiang Group or its ability to develop new properties
may negatively impact the Group ability to procure new
property management service contracts. The Group
cannot assure that Binjiang Group will engage the Group
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as their property management service provider for any
property they developed. If our Group are not able to
increase the number of managed properties developed by
independent third party property developers, our Group'’s
results of operations and growth prospects may be
materially and adversely affected. Given the above, the
Group will enhance its quality service capabilities, and
actively seek business opportunities from independent
third parties to expand our business access channel.

In the future, our Group plans to seek and evaluate
opportunities to acquire other property management
companies and other businesses that may complement
our existing service offerings to expand the Group’s
business scale and integrate their operations into
the Group’s business. However, acquisitions involve
inherent risks and uncertainties, including, without
limitation, potential ongoing financial obligations and
hidden or unforeseen liabilities in connection with the
target, inability to apply the Group’s business model
or standardize business processes with the acquisition
targets, failure to achieve the intended acquisition
objectives or benefits, diversion of resources and
management attention from managing our existing
business operations. In addition, there can be no
assurance that our Group will be able to identify suitable
acquisition opportunities. Even if the Company can, the
Group may not be able to complete the acquisitions on
terms favorable to us and in a timely matter, or at all.
As a result, the Group’s competitiveness and growth
prospects could be materially and adversely affected.
Given the above, the Company will identify acquisition
targets in a cautious manner.
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In the face of the epidemic, the Group stands at the
front line to enhance epidemic preventive measures in
accordance with the requirement of local community and
perform various duties to serve the general public. The
social recognition of the Group was further enhanced.
Additional human resources and materials were allocated
and higher costs were incurred to maintain our service
quality. During the period of and after epidemic, the
Group may encounter some problems, such as slowdown
in property development, higher costs and dropping
out of general staff. The operation and performance
of the Group will be adversely affected. The Group has
promptly and decisively responded to the epidemic by
introducing various preventive measures which will be
adopted as our regular property management measures
to deal with major public crisis in the future.

As at the date of this annual report, based on the
business operation and capital investment of the Group,
the Board believes that the Group maintains stable
liquidity position and sufficient working capital and has
not been materially affected by the COVID-19 epidemic,
and that the liquidity position and working capital of
the Group are sufficient to meet the expected capital
investment plan.

Pursuant to the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
Cayman Islands currently levy no taxes on individuals
or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or
appreciations and there is no taxation in the nature of
inheritance tax and estate duty.

There has been no change in capital structure of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and
other reserves.
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As stated in the prospectus of the Company dated
28 February 2019 (the “Prospectus”) and the
announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2019,
approximately 35% (approximately HK$159.4 million) of
the net proceeds from the Listing and the over-allotment
is used for acquisition of other property management
companies and companies which are engaged in
property management related businesses, approximately
20% (approximately HK$91.1 million) for investment on
asset management platform to engage in the operation
of and long-term apartment and industrial parks, and
approximately 10% (approximately HK$45.5 million) for
establishment of joint companies or platforms. During
the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has been exploring and tracking
potential opportunities in the market in a diligent and
cautious manner. As of 31 December 2021, the Group
has established 20 cooperation platforms. In 2021, the
Group also actively explored acquisition and investment
opportunities of asset management platforms. However,
the Group has not yet identified any acquisition and
investment target of asset management platforms since
the potential targets did not satisfy the operating needs
of the Group. The Group will continue to actively explore
acquisition and investment targets of asset management
platforms and such part of the proceeds will be utilized
once the target is confirmed.

The Company or any of its subsidiaries has not
repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 7,225
employees (as at 31 December 2020: 5,507 employees).
The staff cost of the Group during the Reporting Period
was RMB601.8 million (2020: RMB412.2 million).

The Group’s remuneration packages for employees
are determined based on their duties, qualifications,
individual performance and current market standards.
The discretionary bonus paid to employees, based on the
performance of individual employees, recognized and
rewarded their contribution. We have implemented and
will continue to implement various employee recognition
initiatives and rewards. The Group also makes social
security contributions (including pension plans, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment
insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident
fund contributions for our employees. During the
Reporting Period, the Group also provided its staff with
systematic and extensive training plans and promotion
and rotation programs. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not adopt any share option scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Lidong (% 3L 3 ), aged 58, has been an
executive Director, the chairman of the Board and
president of the Company since September 2018. He
has joined our Group in May 2003 and has more than
18 years of experience in the real estate industry. With
his extensive experience, he is principally responsible for
the overall management and business operation of our
Group, including coordinating board affairs, formulating
strategies and operational plans and making major
business decisions. He is also the chairman of the board
and the general manager of Binjiang Property, a company
engaged in property management, since November 2006
and February 2010, respectively, where he is responsible
for overall management and business operation.

From February 2017 to September 2018, Mr. ZHU was the
deputy general manager of Binjiang Holdings, a company
engaged in investment, where he was responsible for the
general operations of the fellow subsidiaries. From May
2003 to February 2017, he served as the deputy general
manager at Hangzhou Binjiang Real Estate Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Binjiang Real Estate”), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002244) with its
principal in business in real estate development. During
his tenure, he was responsible for projects operation and
market expansion. From October 1994 to April 2003,
he was a reporter and the deputy director of general
editing office and monograph office of Hangzhou Daily
Newspaper Press Group (“Hangzhou Daily”) (formerly
known as Hangzhou Daily Newspaper Press) and an
associate general editor of Daily Commence Newspaper
of Hangzhou Daily Newspaper, a mass media corporation
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000607), where he was primarily responsible for writing
and editing manuscripts. Prior to that, Mr. ZHU was a
teaching staff at Armed Police Hangzhou Command
College from September 1984 to October 1994.
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Since July 2012, Mr. ZHU has been the vice chairperson
of the Property Management Association of Zhejiang
Real Estate Institute. He has also been serving as the
vice chairman of the Hangzhou Property Management
Association since August 2018. In July 2008, Mr. ZHU
was recognized as the Hangzhou Property Management
Bidding Expertise and appointed as the fellow of
Hangzhou Property Management Excellent Projects
Evaluation Expert Database from August 2018 to July
2020.

Due to his achievements and contributions to the
economic and social development of Hangzhou, Mr. ZHU
has been granted a number of awards. In 2004, he was
awarded China Excellent Professional Manager by the
2004 China City-land Operation Exposition. He was also
conferred the Attitude Real Estate Person by the Netease
Real Estate in 2017.

Mr. ZHU received his bachelor’'s degree in history from
Hangzhou University (currently merged into Zhejiang
University), the PRC, in July 1984.

Ms. ZHONG Ruogqin ($£ % ¥), aged 36, has been
an executive Director and the secretary to the Board
of the Company since September 2018. She is also a
joint company secretary of the Company. Ms. ZHONG
has joined our Group in April 2013 and is primarily
responsible for formulating and supervising operational
strategies and plans, deciding and executing the board
resolution, undertaking business objectives of the Board.
Ms. ZHONG has extensive work experience in the real
estate industry. Since July 2018, she has been appointed
as the manager of securities department at Binjiang
Property, where she is primarily responsible for forming
and organizing the securities department.

From April 2013 to June 2018, she served in the
securities department of Binjiang Real Estate, where
she was responsible for the conduct of board meetings,
information disclosure, and management of investment
and refinancing. From August 2008 to February 2011,
Ms. ZHONG was an agency supervisor of CITIC-Prudential
Finance Company Ltd., a company engaged in insurance
and wealth management business, where she was
responsible for personal selling, team management and
performance appraisal.
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Ms. ZHONG received her master’'s degree in business
administration from the City University of Hong Kong,
Hong Kong, in October 2012 and the bachelor’s degree
in business from the Dundalk Institute of Technology,
Ireland, in June 2008.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MO Jianhua (E# %), aged 51, has been the
non-executive Director of the Company since December
2017. He is primarily responsible for providing guidance
and supervision to our Group’s business operations. Mr.
MO has over 23 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Since January 2017, he has also been serving as
the general manager of Hangzhou Pute Equity Investment
Management Limited (“Pute Equity"”), a company which
is principally engaged in equity investment, where he is
responsible for the overall management of business. Since
November 2006, he has been a director at Binjiang Real
Estate, where he is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision to our Group's business operations.

From July 2011 to November 2017, he was the general
manager of Hangzhou Binjiang Venture Capital
Investment Limited* (“Binjiang Venture Capital”), a
company which is primarily engaged in venture capital,
and he was responsible for overall operation of business.
From December 1999 to July 2011 he was the managing
deputy general manager of Binjiang Real Estate, where
he was responsible for the management of construction
costs. From October 1996 to December 1999, he served
as a deputy general manager at Binjiang Real Estate
Construction Co., Ltd., a company engaged in real estate
construction. He was responsible for the management of
construction costs.

Mr. MO obtained an executive master’'s degree in
business administration (EMBA) from Zhejiang University,
the PRC, in June 2013.
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Mr. CAIl Xin ( ¥ £ ), aged 46, has been the non-
executive Director of the Company since September
2018. He is primarily responsible for providing guidance
and supervision to our Group's business operations.
Since November 2017, he has been the general manager
at Binjiang Venture Capital, where he is in charge of
overall operation of business, marketing expansion and
investment projects implementation.

From July 2011 to November 2017, he served as the
deputy general manager of Pute Equity, where he was
responsible for corporate fund raising and investment
projects implementation. From September 2002 to July
2011, he served as the manager of finance department at
Binjiang Real Estate, where he was primarily responsible
for the general management of finance department,
preparation of financial reports, formulating budget plans
and tax reports.

Mr. CAIl obtained an executive master’s degree in
business administration from Zhejiang University in
December 2015 and a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Zhejiang University of Financial and Economics,
the PRC, in July 1997. He obtained the certificate of
senior accountant granted by Zhejiang Senior Accountant
Certificate Evaluation Committee in June 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. DING Jiangang (T #Hll), aged 58, joined our
Group in February 2019 as an independent non-executive
Director. Since May 2014, Mr. DING has been the dean
of Zhejiang Daily Media Real Estate Institute, which is
engaged in provision of market analysis of real estate
industry, and is responsible for research on real estate
policy and real estate market. He has also been serving
at Zhejiang Real Estate Institute as a council member
and is responsible for research in relation to policies and
market trends in the real estate industry since October
2017.

Mr. DING has approximately 32 years of experience in
the media industry. Mr. DING has been an employee
of Decision Research Consultancy Limited since June
2014. Mr. DING worked for Hangzhou Joint Founder
Information Technology Co., Ltd., which is engaged in
provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and
was responsible for research on real estate policy and real
estate market from March 2013 to May 2014. He worked
for the economic department of, and as the deputy
editor of the website Live in Hangzhou of Zhejiang Online
News Website Co., Ltd., which is engaged in online
news publication and he was responsible for researching
financial properties and providing commentaries thereon
from September 2008 to February 2013. He worked
for Zhejiang Radio & TV Group, which is engaged in
publication and sales of newspaper, magazines and
video, and he was responsible for production of property
programs from April 1989 to September 2008. He
worked for teaching and research group of building
structure of Zhejiang Construction Industrial College
and was responsible for teaching building structure
courses and management of the teaching and research
group from November 1985 to April 1989. He was also
a teaching staff in Changchun Advanced Architecture
Institute from July 1983 to October 1985.
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Mr. DING has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of Dexin China Holdings Company
Limited, a property development company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 02019)
since January 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent judgment and advice in relation to
operations and management of the company. In addition,
he now also serves as an independent non-executive
director and a member of the remuneration committee
of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd., a property
development company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 02599). Mr. DING obtained his bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from Xi'an University of
Architecture and Technology (formerly known as Xi‘an
Metallurgy Architecture College), the PRC, in July 1983.

Mr. LI Kunjun (ZFE), aged 44, joined our Group in
February 2019 as an independent non-executive Director.
Since October 2017, he has been serving as the chief
executive officer of Hangzhou Xiaodi Technology Co.,
Ltd., a company engaged in the real estate technology
development, which attracted investments from
Hangzhou Tengguo Internet Technology Co., Ltd. and
Hangzhou Daily, and created one of the most influential
Wechat official accounts with regard to property
market in Hangzhou. He is responsible for the overall
management and business operation.

Mr. LI has extensive work experience in the media
industry. From September 2000 to December 2016,
he held various positions at Hangzhou Daily, including
reporter, and director of property office. During his
tenure, he published a book, Hangzhou Qualified Houses
— Guidance for purchasing houses from QIU Weiwei and
LI Kunjun.

Mr. LI graduated from Zhejiang University, the PRC, with
his bachelor’s degree in Chinese in June 2000.
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Ms. CAI Haijing (28 #), aged 39, joined our Group
in February 2019 as an independent non-executive
Director. Since December 2007, she was a lecturer
of accounting at Zhejiang University of Finance and
Economics and subsequently appointed as an associate
professor and a professor in December 2014 and
November 2019, respectively. In October 2017, Ms. CAl
was regarded as the Leading Expert of the Zhejiang
High-education Youngster and the nurturing target of
the Zhejiang 151 Talent Project in December 2015.

Ms. CAIl has been serving as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee
of Wangneng Environment Co., Ltd., an environment
protection company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002034) since December 2017,
Zhejiang Kang Long Da Special Protection Technology
Co., Ltd., a textile manufacturing company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603665) since
October 2017 and Hangzhou Jizhi Mechatronic Co.,
Ltd., a machines manufacturing company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300553) since July
2015. As an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee, she is responsible for
providing independent judgment and advice in relation to
general management and audit committee to those listed
companies.

Ms. CAl obtained a doctoral degree in accounting from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, the PRC,
in June 2013, a master's degree from Brock University,
Canada, in October 2007 and bachelor’s degree from
Zhejiang University of Financial and Economics, the
PRC, in June 2006. She was admitted as a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in June 2011 and the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants in September 2010.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEN Guorong (7 B 2€), aged 40, has been
appointed as an executive president of our Group in
September 2020, and he is primarily responsible for the
general management of regional projects. He has more
than 18 years of experience in the property management
service industry. He has joined our Group in October
2004 as a project manager and was responsible for the
overall management of projects till February 2005. He
subsequently served as an assistant of general manager
of Binjiang Property, and was responsible for the general
management and supervision from February 2005 to
December 2009. He was appointed as a deputy general
manager of our Group in December 2009.

Prior to joining our Group, he was a project manager
at Jiaye Sunshine Property Management Co., Ltd., a
company engaged in property management service
industry, from January 2002 to September 2004. He
was responsible for the overall project management. In
June 2017, Mr. SHEN was appointed as the chairman of
Jianggan District Property Management Institute. He was
also recognized as the Hangzhou Property Management
Bidding Expertise and the fellow of Hangzhou Property
Management Excellent Projects Evaluation Expert Base in
July 2014.

Mr. SHEN graduated from Jiaxing University, the PRC,
with an associate degree in construction project
management in January 2011. In November 2013, he
was recognized as a registered Property Manager by the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
People’s Republic of China.
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Mr. WANG Guoyi ( £ B £ ), aged 59, has been
appointed as a vice president of our Group in
September 2020. He is primarily responsible for business
development, engineering management, pre-delivery
examination management and after-sale services. Mr.
WANG has almost 22 years of experience in the property
management service industry. From March 2005 to
December 2009, he served as an engineering director in
Binjiang Property and was responsible for the engineering
management. He was appointed as a deputy general
manager of our Group in December 2009.

Prior to joining our Group, he previously worked as an
engineer at Zhejiang Nandu Property Management Co.,
Ltd., a company engaged in property management,
from January 2000 to February 2005, where he
was responsible for engineering management and
consultancy. From November 1996 to June 1998, he
worked as a technician at the production department
of Pt. San Weei Indonesia Rattan Industry, a company
engaged in rattan manufacturing, exporting and
importing, where he was responsible for mechanical
maintenance. From December 1991 to November 1996,
he worked as an electrician at Hangzhou Chemistry
Building, a company engaged in chemical industry,
where he was responsible for electrical installation and
maintenance, as well as the operation of telephone
switchboard. From December 1984 to December 1991,
he served as an electrician at Hangzhou Standard
Head Factory, a company engaged in manufacturing
mechanical components, where he was responsible for
electrical maintenance at the mold workshop. From
December 1981 to December 1984, he served as an
electrician at Hangzhou Broadcast Equipment Factory
(previously known as Hangzhou Qianjiang Maobi Factory,
a company engaged in manufacturing broadcasting
equipment, where he was responsible for electrical
maintenance.

Mr. WANG obtained a high school diploma from
Hangzhou the Fifth High School, the PRC, in June 1980.
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Mr. CHENG Yanfei ( # # 7 ), aged 41, has been
appointed as a vice president of our Group since
September 2020 and is primarily responsible for the
general management of regional projects. He has more
than 18 years of experience in the property management
service industry. He has joined our Group in October
2005 as a project manager and was responsible for the
overall management of projects till January 2017. He was
subsequently served as a deputy regional manager of
Binjiang Property, and was responsible for the general
management and supervision from February 2017 to
September 2020.

Prior to joining our Group, he was a general manager at
Hangzhou Baiquan Property Management Co., Ltd. from
April 2005 to October 2005, a manager at Hangzhou
Dajia Property Operation and Management Co., Ltd. from
December 2003 to April 2005, a manager at Beijing CR
Land Property Management Co., Ltd. from April 2003 to
November 2003, and a manager at Beijing Shuntiantong
Property Management Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to
January 2002.

Mr. CHENG graduated from Northern Jiaotong University
with an associate degree in property management
in January 2003. In January 2008, he obtained the
certificate of property management project director in
In November 2013, he was recognized as a
registered property manager by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development of the People’s Republic
of China.

Hangzhou.
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Mr. LIN Meng (# &), aged 55, has been appointed
as a vice president of our Group in September 2020.
He is primarily responsible for business development,
pre-delivery consulting and brand operation. Mr. LIN
has almost 20 years of experience in the property
management service industry. Since 2009, he has served
as a project manager in Binjiang Property and has been
responsible for the overall management of projects. He
was appointed as a manager of our Group in September
2015 and was responsible for business development, pre-
delivery consulting and brand operation. Since December
2018, he has served as a director of our Group and has
been responsible for business development, pre-delivery
consulting and brand operation.

Mr. LIN graduated from Northern Zhejiang University
with an associate degree in administration in July 2006.
In May 2006, he obtained the certificate of property
enterprise manager issued by the Department of
Personnel and Education of the Ministry of Construction.
He was appointed as the fellow of Early-stage Property
Bidding Expert Base by Hangzhou Housing Security and
Management Bureau in June 2006.

Mr. TANG Xiong (i% %), aged 41, joined our Group in
April 2021 as the financial controller and he is primarily
responsible for overall financial management of our
Group.
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Prior to joining our Group, he was appointed as an
industry financial director of Zhejiang New Century
Property Management Co., Ltd.,, a company engaged
in property services and management, and he was
responsible for property industry financial management
from April 2015 to April 2021. He was appointed as a
financial director of Huagiao New Century Grand Hotel
Lishui, a company engaged in hotel management, and he
was responsible for financial restructuring of the hotel
from February 2012 to April 2015. He was appointed
as a financial director of Gaosu New Century Hotel
International Anhui and he was responsible for the
general financial management during the preparation
and opening of the hotel from April 2011 to February
2012. He was appointed as a financial director of New
Century Resort Changzhou and he was responsible
for the general financial management from December
2010 to April 2011. He was appointed as an assistant to
financial director of New Century Resort Jiulong Lake
Ningbo and he was responsible for financial management
during the preparation of the hotel from February 2009
to December 2010. He was appointed as a manager
of investment and audit of New Century Hotel Group
and he was responsible for financial management of
the group from November 2007 to February 2009.
He was appointed as the chief accountant of Wuhan
Oriental Hotel and he was responsible for accounting
management from September 2002 to November 2007.

Mr. TANG graduated from Renmin University of China
with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in January
2021. In May 2004, he obtained the certificate of
intermediate accountant granted by Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China. He was admitted as
a certified management accountant of the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants of the United States
of America in January 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The total proceeds from the Listing and Over-allotment
amounted to HK$455.3 million. The net proceeds from
the Listing were approximately HK$389.8 million (after
deducting listing expenses), which are intended to be
utilized in the manner as disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
The net proceeds from the Over-allotment were
approximately HK$65.5 million (after deducting over-
allotment expenses), which are intended to be utilized
pro-rata in accordance with the purposes described in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the Prospectus.
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As at 31
approximately HK$204.8 million of the net proceeds, and
the unutilized net proceeds amounted to approximately

December 2021, the Group had utilized

FriashmBma s RmT: HK$250.5 million. As at 31 December 2021, the net
proceeds had been utilized as follows:
RERRER R2021%F R2021%
EEBR 1818 RER 12A318
FERERE Use of proceeds FENEFE & B A 28R ABAH
Proposed use
of net proceeds Unutilized Unutilized
according to the  amountasat 1 Utilized amount amount as at 31
prospectus January 2021  during the year  December 2021
(BE#ET) (B8%TT) (BB (BB
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WEMREI=AMOEE Acquisition of property management
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FENAEERERT increase the Group's market share in
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SEMBEEER ities such as Shenzhen to expand
the Group's geographical coverage' 159.4 159.4 — 159.4
FHALEMNEERKZS 0 Updating the Group's management
ARRBEREBEAL service systems and recruiting and
nurturing talents 113.8 6.6 6.6 —
BREREEEETS Investment in the asset management
Wt HEE T %A platform to engage in the operation
of industrial parks? 91.1 91.1 — 91.1
BEWHFRNERLEES  Establishing joint venture companies or
ERIAE AR TA platform through the cooperation
with local governments and property
developers? 455 16.5 16.5 —
EEEER—BEE As working capital and for other general
B corporate purposes 455 — — —
4553 273.6 23.1 250.5
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BEefE 1

TAEEE 2

The Group planned to fully utilize this portion of proceeds by 31
December 2023.

The Group planned to fully utilize this portion of proceeds by 31
December 2023.

The Group has launched the cooperation projects and
established joint venture companies and platforms in the
second half of 2019. The projects will be completed by 2021.
As at 31 December 2021, 20 cooperation platforms had been
established.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in provision of property
management services, value-added services for non-
property owners and 5S value-added services in the PRC.
The analysis of the Group’s principal business for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in Note 3 the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 187 to
188 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Having considered the needs of business development of
the Group and returns of shareholders of the Company,
the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
for 2021 of HK$0.473 per share. The dividend ratio
of the year is approximately 60%. The proposed final
dividend amounted to approximately HK$130.8 million in
total, and shall be subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM?"). The final dividend is
expected to be paid to shareholders of the Company on
or around Wednesday, 22 June 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
On 19 March 2020, the Board of approved and adopted
a revised dividend policy as follows:

In accordance with the dividend policy, the Group
intends to distribute not less than 50% of its net profit
to its shareholders as dividend distribution for each year.
The Board will consider, among others, the following
factors when proposing to pay any dividend:

e  the business environment and various internal or
external factors which may affect the operation or
financial performance of the Group;

. the actual and estimated future financial
performance of the Group;

o the actual and estimated working capital
requirement, operation strategy and development
plan of the Group;

o legal and regulatory requirement;

. contractual restriction on the distribution of
dividend by the Group or subsidiaries of the Group;

. the taxation implication;
. interests of the shareholders; and
o other factors the Board may considers relevant.

The declaration of the dividend by the Company shall
be at the full discretion of the Board and be subject to
the Company Law of Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company. Even though the
Board decides to propose and declare the distribution
of dividend, the form, frequency and amount of the
dividend distribution shall be subject to the factors
disclosed above and other factors which may affect the
Company. For details of the abovementioned revised
dividend policy, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 March 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group for the Reporting Period
and the Group's prospects are set out in the sections
and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 38 of this annual
report. The analysis of the Group during the Reporting
Period using key indicators of financial performance is set
out in the section headed “Financial Review” on pages
26 to 33.

headed “Chairman’s Statement”

The Group recognises the importance of environmental
protection and was adopted stringent measures
for environmental protection in order to ensure the
compliance to the prevailing environmental protection
laws and regulations.

Given the nature of operations of the Group, we believe
we are not subject to material environmental liability risk
or compliance costs. During the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this annual report, no fines or penalties for
non-compliance of the PRC environmental laws had been
imposed on us.

The environmental, social and governance report of the
Company is set out in pages 110 to 174 of this annual
report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 34 to
36 of this annual report.
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The Company strictly complied with the following laws
and regulations which may have a significant impact on
its operation: (a) the laws and regulations relating to
foreign investment; (b) the laws, regulations and policies
relating to qualification of property management service
company, appointment, fees, outsourcing and real
estate brokerage; (c) the laws and regulations relating to
intellectual property; (d) the laws and regulations relating
to merger and acquisition of domestic enterprises
by foreign investors; (e) the laws and regulations
relating to foreign exchange and taxation; (f) the laws
and regulations relating to labor and social security.
Meanwhile, a list of applicable laws and regulations was
established within the Company and updated from time
to time for compliance.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company was able to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations within and outside China which have
a significant impact on it, through the full cooperation
between its legal department and the external legal
advisors, and the Company’s continuous and effective
supervision.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out
on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transaction
amounts of our Group’s top five customers accounted for
27.2% (2020: 18.6%) of the Group's total revenues while
the transaction amounts of our single largest customer
accounted for 21.8% (2020: 14.7%) of the Group’s total
revenues.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transaction
amounts of our Group’s top five suppliers accounted
for 12.7% (2020: 15.5%) of the total purchases while
the transaction amounts of our single largest supplier
accounted for 7.8% (2020: 9.4%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in Note
26 to the consolidated financial statements, none
of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the issued shares
of the Company) was interested in the top five customers
or suppliers of the Group.

As a service-oriented enterprise, the Group has realized
employees’ service level and professional development
are critical to its development. During the Reporting
Period, the Group continued to offer competitive
compensation packages and performance review systems,
enhance employee recognition initiatives and rewards
and provide various training opportunities to enhance
employees sense of belonging. During the year, the
performance of employees was satisfied and we have not
experienced any material labour disputes or litigations.

The details of employment, salaries and benefits and staff
training of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in the paragraphs “Employees and remuneration
policies” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on page 38 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital has not changed during the
Reporting Period. Details are set out in Note 22(b) to the
consolidated financial statements
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 191 to 192 and Note 22(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION
As at 31 December 2021,
distribution of the Company (including share premium
and retained profits of the Company) amounted to
RMB201.9 million.

the reserves available for

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
total amount of dividend proposed or paid by the Group
amounted to RMB193.1 million and RMB131.6 million,
respectively, representing an increase of approximately
46.7%. The increase was mainly due to the satisfactory
results of operation and importance attached to returns
for shareholders of the Company.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
During the Reporting Period, we did not have any bank
loans and other borrowings.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this annual report are as follows:

ZHU Lidong
ZHONG Ruogin

MO Jianhua
CAl Xin

DING Jiangang
LI Kunjun
CAIl Haijing

Ms. CAI Haijing, Mr. MO Jianhua and Mr. LI Kunjun shall
retire by rotation, and offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM in accordance with Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of
the Articles of Association.

A circular setting out, among other things, details of the
Directors subject to rotation and re-election at the AGM
will be dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 39 to
50 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
are in compliance with the independent guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

For the details of the service contracts and the
appointment letters of the Directors, please see the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure for directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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In determining remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management, the Board will consider the remuneration
level of comparable companies, the time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group, individual performance of
respective Directors and the Company’s performance.
No Director shall be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and the five
highest paid individuals during the Reporting Period
are set out in Note 7 and Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits
scheme of the Company are set out in Note 5(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administered
and operated by the local municipal governments. The
Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
calculated on certain percentages of the employee salary
as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the defined contribution scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions will be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RELATION
TO THE DIRECTORS

Save for Ms. CAI Haijing, the independent non-executive
Director, who is no longer an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of Ue
Furniture Co., Ltd., a furniture manufacturing company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603600), there was no change to any information
required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during the period from the
publication date of interim report 2021 to the date of
this annual report.
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R2021F12A31H  EERARF &®EITH
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DEEMEARARFREAB AN ARQF K
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Wik HEARNMLREEZFNER KRB (B
EREBEEFNBERINZEENESERE
AR BEENEZEAR) IBREES
MEHEGKHEINRKEEZLRATHTZE
ot BB ETMRAMESE TAAEACET
BOANEFHETESFRINBRETAND(E
EFHDEMNEARARRREBTBRIMNER
RxRBWT :

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the 31 December 2021, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO") which had been notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “"Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, are set out as follows:

EARDHE

REz

s L2 VR $:1:3: RBEER e/ KA BRES
Approximate

percentage of

Number of  Long/Short shareholding in

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares position the Company
Rgght(REENHZ1) PRERNZIARREEEER 35,640,000 A 12.89%

Mr. MO Jianhua (“Mr. Mo") (Note 1)

Settlor of a discretionary trust and interest

Long position

in controlled corporation

Wit

(1) 72021128318 7 BB BR AT ([HFE]
BEARDADEITRAN12.89% ° (FEH 2 I E %
T AR A B Infiniti Trust (Asia)Limited ({EA B EZE#ER
BREANITAN)EBERBARAFE EZEFE
RixfErt ARELEEUWERZ T A)R2018F 11719
HEUMEZ2EET REERKEALONIREAR
BEEERERETREMKE -
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Note:

(1 As at 31 December 2021, Haoyu Ventures Limited (“Haoyu")
held 12.89% of issued share capital of our Company. The entire
issued share capital of Haoyu is held by Infiniti Trust (Asia)
Limited (through its nominee companies) as trustee of Great
Splendor Trust. Great Splendor Trust is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. MO as settlor on 19 November 2018. The beneficiaries
of the Great Splendor Trust include Mr. MO and his certain
family members.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at any time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted
any right to subscribe for the share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate,
or had exercised any such right.
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FTEREARGREBEROHANERZR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

NS

RIB

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

R2021F12A31H » MARRIZEEZFAM T4  As at 31 December 2021, to the knowledge of the
AT(EERARAHESTHABBRINRA  Directors of the Company, the following persons (other
ARIBRHHBEROPHEEBIEEFESNEE  than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
GBI EXVEFE2R3D S BRAANARBEIL D had interests or short positions in the shares or
BERAARRIRIEESH KB EKH $E33604 underlying shares of the Company which were required
BATHEGzECMAZEZIAR to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register
of the Company required to be maintained pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

EERATF
RiEZ
] LTV $:-3:3-1 RAHE Hr/ %R BHEI
Approximate
percentage of
Number of  Long/Short shareholding in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares position Company
HeEEt((REE)H 71 PREANZAARZEEEES 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Mr. QI Jinxing ("Mr. QI") (Note 1) Settlor of a discretionary trust and Long position
interest in controlled corporation
ERelRERARTEREDNH 71) ERBEA 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Great Dragon Ventures Limited Beneficial owner Long position
("Great Dragon”) (Note 1)
Bright Cloud Holding Limited (#77£7)  S#E#E#Ez= 126,720,000 HE 45.85%
Bright Cloud Holding Limited (Note 7) Interest in controlled corporation Long position
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (#7£7) REARRBEEER 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (Note 1) Trustee and interest in controlled Long position
corporation
AEBERE(REEDHZ2) PREANZAARTZEERESE 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Mr. ZHU Huiming (“Mr. ZHU") (Note 2) ~ Settlor of a discretionary trust and Long position
interest in controlled corporation
Reg PREANZAARZEEEES 35,640,000 e 12.89%
MO Jianhua Settlor of a discretionary trust and Long position
interest in controlled corporation
Splendid Force Holding Limited (#7722) =¥ £E# % 35,640,000 HE 12.89%
Splendid Force Holding Limited (Mote 2)  Interest in controlled corporation Long position
& it2) EHEBA 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Haoyu (Note 2) Beneficial owner Long position
MARRFEBRERAF(RRA22) ESEBA 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Jovial Success Global Holdings Limited ~ Beneficial owner Long position
("Jovial Success"”) (Note 2)
Great Splendor Holding Limited (#/7£2) R kE#EZR 35,640,000 -] 12.89%
Great Splendor Holding Limited (Note 2)  Interest in controlled corporation Long position
Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (47##2) REARXBEEER 71,280,000 e 25.79%
Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (Note 2) Trustee and interest in controlled Long position
corporation
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Notes:

(1) As at the 31 December 2021, Great Dragon holds 45.85% of
issued share capital of the Company. The entire issued share
capital of Great Dragon is held by Cantrust (Far East) Limited
(through its nominee company) as trustee of Bright Cloud Trust.
Bright Cloud Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ql as
settlor on 19 November 2018. The beneficiaries of the Bright
Cloud Trust include Mr. QI and certain family members of Mr. Qi.

(2) As at the 31 December 2021, each of Jovial Success and
Haoyu hold 12.89% of issued share capital of the Company,
respectively. The entire issued share capital of Jovial Success
and Haoyu are held by Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (through its
nominee companies) as trustee of each Splendid Force Trust
and Great Splendor Trust, respectively. Splendid Force Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. ZHU as settlor on 19 November
2018. The beneficiaries of the Splendid Force Trust include Mr.
ZHU and his certain family members. Great Splendor Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. MO as settlor on 19 November
2018. The beneficiaries of the Great Splendor Trust include Mr.
MO and his certain family members.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, to
the knowledge of the Directors, none of any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the register
referred to in section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no share option
scheme has been adopted, granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or in existence during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Articles of Association of the Company or the laws
of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Our controlling shareholders, Mr. QI Jinxing and
Great Dragon Ventures Limited (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into the Deed of Non-
Competition on 21 February 2019 pursuant to which
the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken to and covenanted with our
Group that he or it will not (except through the Group
and any investment or interests held through the Group),
and will procure that his or its close associates (except
members of our Group) will not, directly or indirectly
(including through nominees), either on his own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, among other things, invest in, participate
in, engage in and/or operate or be interested in (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent,
employee or otherwise) any business which competes or
is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with property
management services, value-added services to non-
property owner and 5S value-added services in the PRC.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Non-
Competition Undertaking.

The Company has received annual confirmations from the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance
with the Non-Competition Undertaking for the year
ended 31 December 2021 for disclosure in this annual
report.

Based on the information and confirmations provided
by the Controlling Shareholders, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the implementation
of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Reporting
Period, and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Non-Competition Undertaking.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interest in any
business which directly or indirectly compete or may
compete with the businesses of the Group during the
Reporting Period.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIVIDEND WAIVED OR AGREED TO BE
WAIVED BY SHAREHOLDERS

As confirmed by the Board, for the year ended 31
December 2021, none of our shareholders has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out
in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of any related party transaction which constitutes
continuing connected transaction not exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed below,
and other related party transactions did not constitute
connected transactions.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above related party
transactions.
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On 26 May 2021, Ningbo Binrun Property Service Co., Ltd
(“Ningbo Binrun”) entered into a car parking spaces
use right agreement and a storage rooms use right
agreement with Hangzhou Binjiang Shangbo Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd (“Binjiang Shangbo”). Pursuant
to the storage rooms use right agreement, Ningbo
Binrun assumes the right to use the storage rooms from
Binjiang Shangbo for a consideration of RMB503,928.
Pursuant to the car parking spaces use right agreement,
Ningbo Binrun assumes the right to use the car parking
spaces from Binjiang Shangbo for a consideration of
RMB37,800,000. The storage rooms and the car parking
spaces are both located in a project developed by
Binjiang Shangbo.

For details of the above connected transactions, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
May 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Ningbo Binrun is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Binjiang Shangbo is owned as to 51% by Binjiang Real
Estate. Binjiang Real Estate is controlled by Mr. Qi, one
of the Company’s controlling shareholders. Therefore,
Binjiang Shangbo is a connected person of the Company,
and the car parking spaces use right agreement and the
storage rooms use right agreement constitute connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Reference is made to the announcement on connected
transactions of the Company dated 22 September 2020
in relation to September 2020 Acquisitions, pursuant
to which Ningbo Binrun agreed to assume from
certain subsidiaries of Binjiang Real Estate and Binjiang
Holdings the use right of certain storage rooms and
car parking spaces located in residential development
projects developed by them. Binjiang Holdings is also
controlled by Mr. Qi. As the agreements, together with
the September 2020 Acquisitions, are entered into with
companies controlled by Mr. Qi and are of similar nature
at the time of their entry, they shall be aggregated
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under Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio in respect of the agreements
and the transactions contemplated under the September
2020 Acquisitions is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under the agreements are
subject to reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into continuing connected
transactions subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

On 30 October 2020 (after trading hours), as the
property management services agreement entered into
in 2018 expired on 31 December 2020, the Company
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered
into a 2021 property management services agreement
(the “2021 Property Management Services
Agreement”) with Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) to renew the transactions
contemplated under the property management services
agreement and regulate the transactions with Binjiang
Real Estate Group in relation to the provision of property
management services, pursuant to which, the Group
provided property management services for Binjiang Real
Estate Group for its unsold residential and non-residential
property units. The 2021 Property Management Services
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January
2021 and expiring on 31 December 2021. The term
may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations. The parties will enter into a
separate property management services agreement in
respect of each residential and non-residential property
unit subject to the terms of Property Management
Services Agreement. For details of the 2021 Property
Management Services Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2020.
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As the 2021 Property Management Services Agreement
expired on 31 December 2021, and the Group expected
to carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder
with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 16
December 2021 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into a 2022 property management services
agreement (the ”"2022 Property Management
Services Agreement”) to renew the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Property Management
Services Agreement. The 2022 Property Management
Services Agreement is for a term commencing on 1
January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022. For
details of the 2022 Property Management Services
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2021 and the circular of
the Company dated 28 January 2022. The 2022 Property
Management Services Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 22 February 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2021
Property Management Services Agreement and the
2022 Property Management Services Agreement in
2022. The Directors estimate that for each of the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the
maximum amount of the relevant property management
service fees payable by Binjiang Real Estate Group to us
will not exceed RMB50.0 million and RMB72.0 million,
respectively. The actual transaction amount for these
continuing connected transactions in 2021 is RMB38.8
million. The actual transaction amount for these
continuing connected transactions in 2020 is RMB21.5
million.
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On 30 October 2020 (after trading hours), as the
master consultancy agreement entered into in 2018
expired on 31 December 2020, the Company (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a 2021
master consultancy agreement (the “2021 Master
Consultancy Agreement”) with Binjiang Real Estate
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the master consultancy
agreement and regulate the transactions with Binjiang
Real Estate Group in relation to the provision of property
management consultancy services, pursuant to which,
the Group provided consultancy services for Binjiang
Real Estate Group for its residential property projects.
Consultancy services include advising Binjiang Real
Estate Group at the early stages (such as planning
and design stage, marketing stage and construction
stage) on project planning, design management and
construction management and property management.
The 2021 Master Consultancy Agreement is for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and expiring on 31
December 2021 and the term may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations. The parties
will enter into a separate consultancy services agreement
in respect of each consultancy projects subject to the
terms of master consultancy agreement. For details of
the 2021 Master Consultancy Agreement, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 October
2020.

As the existing Master Consultancy Agreement expired
on 31 December 2021, and the Group expected to
carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder with
Binjiang Real Estate upon its expiry, on 16 December
2021 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
a 2022 master consultancy agreement (the “2022
Master Consultancy Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master
Consultancy Agreement. The 2022 Master Consultancy
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2022
and expiring on 31 December 2022. For details of the
2022 Master Consultancy Agreement, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2021.
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The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2021
Master Consultancy Agreement and the 2022 Master
Consultancy Agreement. The directors estimate that for
each of the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
the maximum amount of service fees payable by the
Binjiang Real Estate Group to the Group will not exceed
RMB15.0 million and RMB16.0 million, respectively.
The actual transaction amount for these continuing
is RMB11.8 million.
The actual transaction amount for these continuing
connected transactions in 2020 is RMB8.8 million.

connected transactions in 2021

On 30 October 2020 (after trading hours), as the
master pre-delivery management services agreement
entered into in 2018 expired on 31 December 2020, the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into a 2021 master pre-delivery management
services agreement (the “2021 Master Pre-delivery
Management Services Agreement”) with Binjiang
Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
to renew the transactions contemplated under the
master pre-delivery management services agreement and
regulate the transactions with Binjiang Real Estate Group
in relation to the provision of pre-delivery management
services, pursuant to which, the Group provided pre-
delivery management services for Binjiang Real Estate
Group. The 2021 Master Pre-delivery Management
Services Agreement is for a term commencing on 1
January 2021 and expiring on 31 December 2021. The
term may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations. The parties will enter into a
separate pre-delivery management services agreement
in respect of each pre-delivery management project
subject to the terms of Property Management Services
Agreement. For details of the 2021 Master Pre-delivery
Management Services Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2020.
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As the 2021 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement expired on 31 December 2021, and the Group
expected to carry on the transactions contemplated
thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its
expiry, on 16 December 2021 (after trading hours),
the Company entered into a 2022 master pre-delivery
management services agreement (the “2022 Master
Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement”)
to renew the transactions contemplated under the 2021
Master Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement.
The 2022 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January
2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022. For details
of the 2022 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 28 January 2022. The 2022 Master Pre-
delivery Management Services Agreement was approved
by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 22 February 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2021
Master Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement
and the 2022 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement. The directors estimate that for each of the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, the maximum
amount of service fees payable by the Binjiang Real
Estate Group to the Group will not exceed RMB270.0
million and RMB350.0 million, respectively. The actual
transaction amount for these continuing connected
transactions in 2021 is RMB242.0 million. The actual
transaction amount for these continuing connected
transactions in 2020 is RMB151.5 million.
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On 1 January 2021, the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement (the “2021 Original
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement”)
with Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) to regulate the transactions with Binjiang
Real Estate Group in relation to the provision of sales
agency services, pursuant to which, the Group provided
sales agency services for Binjiang Real Estate Group.
The Company entered into a supplemental agreement
(together with the 2021 Original Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement, the “2021 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement”) with Binjiang Real
Estate on 18 June 2021 and 16 December 2021 (after
trading hours), respectively, to revise certain terms in
respect of the scope of services and price determination
basis involved in the amendment of the 2021 Original
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement. The 2021
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement is for a
term commencing on the 1 January 2021 and expiring
on 31 December 2021. The term may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations. The parties
will enter into a separate sales agency services agreement
in respect of each sales agency service unit subject to
the terms of Original Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement.

As the 2021
Agreement expired on 31 December 2021, and the Group
expected to carry on the transactions contemplated
thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its
expiry, on 16 December 2021 (after trading hours), the
Company entered into a 2022 sales agency services
framework agreement (the ”“2022 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement. The 2022 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement is for a term commencing
on 1 January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022.
For details of the 2022 Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2021.

Sales Agency Services Framework
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The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2021
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement and the
2022 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement. The
directors estimate that for each of the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022, the maximum amount of
service fees payable by the Binjiang Real Estate Group to
the Group will not exceed RMB47.0 million and RMB23.0
million, respectively. The actual transaction amount
for these continuing connected transactions in 2021 is
RMB12.3 million.

On 30 October 2020 (after trading hours), as the Master
Leasing Agreement entered into in 2018 expired on 31
December 2020, our Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) entered into a 2021 master leasing
agreement (the “2021 Master Leasing Agreement”)
with Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the original Master Leasing Agreement and
regulate the transactions with Binjiang Real Estate Group
in relation to the leasing of properties as office space
and parking lots for sub-leasing to other users, pursuant
to which, the Group leased certain properties from
Binjiang Real Estate Group. The 2021 Master Leasing
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2021
and expiring on 31 December 2021 and the term may
be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject
to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations. The parties will separately enter into tenancy
agreement in respect of the property units and party lots
subject to the terms of Master Leasing Agreement. For
details of the 2021 Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30
October 2020.
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As the 2021 Master Leasing Agreement has expired on
31 December 2021, and the Group expected to carry on
the transactions contemplated thereunder with Binjiang
Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 16 December 2021
(after trading hours), the Company entered into a 2022
master leasing agreement (the “2022 Master Leasing
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the original Master Leasing Agreement. The 2022
Master Leasing Agreement is for a term commencing on
1 January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022. For
details of the 2022 Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
December 2021.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the Master
Leasing Agreement and the 2022 Master Leasing
Agreement. The directors estimate that for each of the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, the maximum
amount of rental payable by the Group to Binjiang Real
Estate Group will not exceed RMB4.0 million and RMB4.0
million, respectively. The actual transaction amount
for these continuing connected transactions in 2021 is
RMB3.1 million. The actual transaction amount for these
continuing connected transactions in 2020 is RMB2.4
million.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Leasing Agreement, the 2022 Master Consultancy
Agreement and the 2022 Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement are more than 0.1%, and all
the applicable percentage ratios are less than 5%, the
transactions under each of the agreements are subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but
exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Pre-delivery Management Service Agreement and the
2022 Property Management Services Agreement are
more than 5% and the total consideration is more than
HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Pre-delivery Management Service Agreement
are subject to announcement, circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that, during the year, these transactions
have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

(b) on normal commercial terms or not inferior to the
terms available or obtained by the Group from an
independent third party; and

(©) in accordance with its regulatory agreement, on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules:

1. Nothing had come to its attention that may cause it
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions had not been approved by the Board.

2. For transactions involving the provision of services
by the Group, nothing had come to its attention
that may cause it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group.

3. Nothing had come to its attention that may
cause it to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

4.  With respect to the aggregate amount of each of
the continuing connected transactions, nothing
had come to its attention that may cause it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions had exceeded the annual caps as set by
the Company.

A copy of the auditor's letter on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 has been provided by the Company
to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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For details of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions, including specific terms or program under
each agreement and material information about pricing
policies and guidance, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 December 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 January 2022. The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period. During
the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the value
and the transaction terms pursuant to these pricing
policies and guidance when carrying on continuing
connected transactions.

CHARITY DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other
donations made by the Group amounted to RMB400
thousand.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
were not involved in any material legal proceeding or
arbitration. To the best knowledge of the Directors, there
is no material legal proceeding or claim which is pending
or threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
coverage for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities.
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The Directors, Secretary and other senior officers of the
Company at any time, whether at present or in the past,
and the liquidator or trustees (if any) acting or who have
acted in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and each of them, and each of their heirs, executors and
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and
none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or others of them or
for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys
or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be
lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency
or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of
or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Each Member agrees to waive any claim or right of
action he might have, whether individually or by or in the
right of the Company, against any Director on account of
any action taken by such Director, or the failure of such
Director to take any action in the performance of his
duties with or for the Company; PROVIDED THAT such
waiver shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such Director.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of material events after the Reporting Period
are set out in note 28 of the consolidated financial
statement.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has, together with the Company’s
management, reviewed the annual results and the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussed matters in relation to audit, risk
management, internal control and financial statements,
including reviewing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Information about the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
83 to 109 in this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules and at least 25% of the
Company’s entire issued share capital were held by the
public during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this annual report.
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AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as auditor for the year ended
31 December 2021. KPMG has audited the accompanying
financial statements which were prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. There
has no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing date.

KPMG is subject to retirement and, being eligible, offers
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for re-appointment of KPMG as auditor will be
proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board
ZHU Lidong
Chairman and executive Director

Hangzhou, 31 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders of the Company and to enhance
corporate value and accountability of the Company.
During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted
and complied with all applicable code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code” or "CG Code”) in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the
following deviations: Pursuant to code provision A.2.1
of the Corporate Governance Code (which has been re-
arranged as code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022),
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, the Company does not have a
separate chairman and president and the responsibility
of both chairman and president vest in Mr. Zhu Lidong.
The Board believes that vesting the responsibilities of
both chairman and president in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group. Besides, with three
independent non-executive Directors out of a total of
seven Directors in the Board, there will be sufficient
independent voice within the Board to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. In addition, all decisions of the Board shall be
passed by majority vote. Therefore, the Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of
the Board and president of the Company at a time when
it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account
the circumstances of the Group as a whole. Save as
disclosed above, the Company complied with the
Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period.
The Company will continue to strictly abide by the
corporate governance requirements under the Corporate
Governance Code and the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established four
Board committees, including the Audit Committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the Remuneration Committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
Strategy Committee (the “Strategy Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties
in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Company plans to arrange appropriate insurance
coverage in respect of liability arising from legal action
against its Directors, and will conduct annual review on
such insurance coverage.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors as set out
below:

ZHU Lidong (Chairman of the Board)
ZHONG Ruogin

MO Jianhua
CAI Xin

DING Jiangang
LI Kunjun
CAI Haijing
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The biographies of the Directors are set out in section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors
as set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief
executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Strategy Committee and Remuneration Committee.

As regards the code provision under the CG Code
requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in
a timely manner.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors would be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as their responsibilities
under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for all the Directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint company
secretaries of the Company update and provide the
Directors with written training materials in relation to
their roles, functions and duties from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all current
Directors have received relevant training on corporate
governance and regulatory issues, and have provided
their training records. In view of the above, the Company
considers that all Directors have complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code (which has been re-
arranged as code provision C.1.4 since 1 January 2022).
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Way of training

A summary of the continuous professional developments
in relation to the business of the Group received by the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as
follows:

FInE
Training topics

HITESE

Executive Director

R &%

ZHU Lidong Meeting
EEE EVEL

ZHONG Ruogin Meeting/Training

FHITES

Non-executive Director

Ba#E =
MO Jianhua Meeting
28 =

CAI Xin Meeting
BAFHITES

Independent Non-executive Director
T Ml =
DING Jiangang Meeting
IR E B

LI Kunjun Meeting
2B =

CAl Haijing Meeting

EERATEMRB ERER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

REERMTEMEBEEER BB
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations/Finance

EERATEMERBEEER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

TEERTERBERER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

RER/EEER

Corporate governance/Laws and regulations

RER/IEEER

Corporate governance/Laws and regulations

DREEREEER I
Corporate governance/Laws and regulations/

Finance
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which
has been re-arranged as code provision C.2.1 since 1
January 2022), the roles of chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, our
Company does not have a separate chairman and chief
executive officer and the responsibility of both chairman
and chief executive officer vest in Mr. ZHU. The Board
believes that vesting the responsibilities of both chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership within our
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of our Group. Besides, with three
independent non-executive Directors out of a total of
seven Directors in the Board, there will be sufficient
independent voice within the Board to protect the
interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a
In addition, all decisions of the Board shall be
passed by majority vote. Therefore, the Board considers

whole.

that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable our Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of our Company at a
time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of our Group as a whole.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company, subject to termination in accordance with the
requirements of the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company, subject to termination in accordance with the
requirements of the letter of appointment.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).



TRERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARBASERAIFEAERRARAN
EERRAFAEHRESENBEET - &
EFEeZENENEFeXNENARESTS
REEEZRNES  ANRIRZERARAFN
BEERRBFASHAE —ROBRAE LH
BREREBEEME - I EEFEREEINE
VHRATEZTE R ARARBENFIA LR
HERBTARIBRRBEFAS LEBREA
EHAERBRR o

EENEE EREEEREREFRBRESH
RABERMAR - R2ZECTRAARFTES
ENRE ABLEKR IREFENERME -
EFEZEREIFAEIRNESTSRHEERBLE

¢
RE

Exgea
ARAEMEMBTEZTS SR ZED &
FARELIMNAEFE SR 2RBESFHE
BAORTHURZBANEBRERESTE S
O SEREFORKSLFEEN SR LA
ik A B IR o

REMESFERNESETZREREME
RAEHHAEBN ERBNTEEES
AEEMEEFE XN YELERTE
FENEFEREeER AN =XRAAL
NERESARARERHEHBHNEEXE LTSN
HELFEESE NWEFHRZEGKEREL
FEH AIRFEETLETHRONFTERR
CRAMNARENEIREBRENER -
RANEEBEERLE  YRHZFEH
REBRATHEERFE2HREEZA -

Sl

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at each annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of
Association. Appointed as an addition to the Board or to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board will be subject to re-
election by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting or the first general meeting of the
Company respectively after the appointment. In addition,
when an independent non-executive Director proposed
for re-election has served the Company for more than
nine years, his/her re-election will be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved at the annual general
meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board’s structure, size and composition,
and for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly, at least four times a year. Notices of
no less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given by the
Company. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched at least three days before the Board
meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers
and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or committee members are unable to attend
a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the company
secretary with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records. Minutes of the Board meetings
and Board Committee meetings are recorded in sufficient
detail on the matters considered by the Board and the
Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/
will be sent to the Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, six Board
meetings and one annual general meeting were held and
the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
and annual general meeting are set out in the table

below:
HE EEKREE HE EEKREE
EEHA Name of Directors EEEEd N BERABFAERE
Attended/Eligible Attended/Eligible
to attend the to attend the annual
Board meetings general meeting
KRILREAE Mr. ZHU Lidong 6/6 1/1
BEBEEL T Ms. ZHONG Ruogqin 6/6 1/1
REELLE Mr. MO Jianhua 3/31 1/1
EEEAE Mr. CAI Xin 6/6 1/1
T Ml %k A4 Mr. DING Jiangang 6/6 1/1
FHE LA Mr. LI Kunjun 6/6 11
2/EZL Ms. CAIl Haijing 6/6 1/1
B it - Notes:
1 FEPTEZTEZELLENAEARFBEREIE 1. Mr. MO lJianhua, a non-executive Director, also a director of

EZEE - HEBRARQRRMN2021F5726H % %
RETZBITIZERMIBEZRZR - AR R K2021
F6AIBEEH BN AT 2021 S R IZIE R
ZREEARA R2021F 128168 E TR B
ERBEEMBABKRAZAZRELITEFSEHER
SIZRERNERZATFALRIERESS S
FEMEATAS L@ eTMMNEER ARER
EEEREPRNBLENESTSAHAIL -
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Binjiang Real Estate, a connected party of the Company. In order
to avoid any conflict of interest, he was abstain from voting on
the resolution regarding considering and approving the entering
into of the Binjiang Huajiachi Agreement on 26 May 2021, the
resolutions regarding considering and approving the entering
into of the 2021 sales agency services framework agreement
on 18 June 2021, and the resolutions regarding considering and
approving revison of terms of existings sales agency services
framework agreement and the renewal of continuing connected
transactions on 16 December 2021, and shall not be counted in
the quorum of the related Board meetings. As such, the number
of the Board meetings which Mr. MO Jianhua was eligible to
attend during the Reporting Period was three.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions of
the Directors and relevant employees (the “Securities
Transactions Code”). The Company had made specific
enquiry with all Directors whether they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company's employees, who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company, have
also been subject to the Model Code for securities
transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the Company’s relevant employees
was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters. Directors could have recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense. Directors are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the corporate governance functions of the Group, which
include:

(@ review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in complying with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and
senior management;

(¢) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees
and the Directors;

(d) develop and review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, make
recommendations and report on related issues to
the Board;

(e) review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report; and

(f)  review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
its whistleblowing policy.

Major duties of the Board in 2021 were as follows:

o approve the change of joint company secretaries,
authorized representatives and the address of the
principal place of business in Hong Kong;

J consider and approve related matters of connected
transactions;

o discuss and formulate strategic plans of the
Company;,

o discuss and adjust the management structure and
employment policy of the Company;

o review the internal control report of the Company
and reviewed the compliance of corporate
governance of the Company; and

o monitor and review the internal reporting practice
of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CAl
Haijing (Chairman), Mr. DING Jiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun.

The major duties of the Audit Committee of the
Company are as follows:

1. to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external
auditors, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to deal
with any questions of their resignation or dismissal;

2. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them; and

3. to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have
effective systems. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company. Major works of the Audit
Committee in 2021 were as follows:

° review the annual results of the Group for 2020;

° review the interim results of the Group for 2021;

e review the report of the auditor regarding audit
plan and strategy of the Group;

consider and discuss the connected transactions of
the Company; and
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o review the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including internal
control of fraudulence risk of the Company and the
management and identification of business conflict
of substantial shareholder in listed companies),
risk management system and procedures and re-
appointment of external auditors. The Board did
not deviate from any recommendations made by
the Audit Committee regarding the selection,
appointment, retirement or removal of external
auditors.

° review the internal audit function, and confirm it is
adequate and effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee held four meetings and the attendance record
of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table
below:

HE BTERERH

Attendance/number

ERZEEERBENRE Committee Members of meetings held
ERBLt (L E) Ms. CAl Haijing (Chairman) 4/4
TRl %k A4 Mr. DING Jiangang 4/4
FTHEBELEE Mr. LI Kunjun 4/4

FNEZEEREH 2R EAK  IMULE
VYHRRTEFETEMNEE(EREIREEFL

TOURFRTESERELE -

ARARFMEEENETEZREW T
1. RARRZREZTLSREEBFH M

HENMRE MR IZERAMAEBEHE
MEFHTLEHFMBER HEFTSR

2

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members including two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. DING Jiangang (Chairman) and Ms. CAl
Haijing as well as a non-executive Director, Mr. MO
Jianhua.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;
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10.

to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

to consult with the Company’s chairman and/or
the president/managing director/chief executive
officer about their remuneration proposals for other
executive Directors; and

to consider all other matters as referred to the
Committee by the Board.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company. Major works of
the Remuneration Committee in 2021 were as follows:

o review the remuneration policy of the Group; and

J evaluate the performance of the executive Directors
and approve the terms of service contracts with the
executive Directors;

o review the remuneration of each Director and make
recommendations on its adjustment to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the

Remuneration Committee held one meeting and the

REEE N TR attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:
HE BTEBRE
Name of Remuneration Attendance/number
FHWEEERENRA Committee Members of meetings held

TERE®(EE) Mr. DING Jiangang (Chairman) 1/1
2/EzL Ms. CAIl Haijing 1/1
REHErst Mr. MO Jianhua 1/1
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members including two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. DING Jiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun as well
as an executive Director and Chairman of the Board, Mr.
ZHU Lidong (Chairman).

The major duties of the Nomination Committee of the
Company are as follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, diversity, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strateqgy;



JL%E/EI*&I:I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. DEeRAGAEERAELTESOAL
WHERZEBALTLEEFTHIURA
ExeRMtER:

3. FHHBUNNTEFEMNEIME R

4. REFZEXREFZEUALRE=R(LH
RIFEMRTIETRAB EIFEIRE
FEROES -

ARBIEHEMAREBBRR(RBRE] - RIE
REABK REZEEEEZEREESR
FMTXEﬁ%%ﬁ hEYRNEFSEZSR
EEREA

1. Xﬁ@;ﬁk BREETNRRER - F
R XERBEES  BEKT
&.A%&%M%’

2. ERRAREARBETERE: K

5
Lm&éhﬁm“ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ:é@

/

e
WA

3. BE - BEEADFEBASRAAET
HME MR MR RSB

4. WM

5. WiEAsE:

6. ZALTHAREFEHANELRR K

7. AHEEARFBNRSBEREE-

REZEGZEZFRNHEEBRERESTGUE
/;%)TE"

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). Pursuant to the Nomination
Policy, the Nomination Committee carefully considers,
including but not limited to the following criteria for
evaluating, selecting and recommending candidates for
directors to the Board:

1. diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, professional level, skills and
knowledge;

2. sufficient time to perform their duties effectively;
their services to other listed and unlisted companies
shall be limited to a reasonable amount;

3. qualifications, including skills, achievements and
experience gained in the relevant industries involved
in the Company’s business;

4. independence;

5. integrity and reliability;

6. potential contribution that the person may made to
the Board; and

7. commitment to enhancing and maximizing
shareholders’ value.

The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be put to the Board for decision.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company. Major works of
the Nomination Committee in 2021 were as follows:

° review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, diversity, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

o make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting and the
attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:

HE BITERERE

Name of Nomination Attendance/number

REZEEHERSE Committee Members of meetings held
KRILRFEE(EE) Mr. ZHU Lidong (Chairman) 1/1
FHELEA Mr. LI Kunjun 1/1
T Mm%k A4 Mr. DING Jiangang 1/1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board remains committed to enhance its operating
efficiency and maintain high standards of corporate
governance on a continuing basis and recognizes the
vital importance of the diversity of the Board with
regard to the maintenance of competitive advantage
and sustainable development. Therefore, the Company
has adopted a board diversity policy. In designing the
composition of the Board, the Company has taken
into account the diversity of the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of service and time to be devoted as a Director
of the Company. The Company will consider its own
business model and special needs from time to time as
well. The ultimate decision will be made based on the
contribution and merit that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Board strives to ensure the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
essential for the implementation of its business strategies
of the Board and the effective operation of the Board.
As of the date of this annual report, the seven directors
include two women, each of whom is aged between
36 and 58. Their industry experience covers such a
wide range of fields such as real estate, investment and
financing, accounting and auditing, media and market
research.

The Board is of opinion that the composition of the
Board of the Company is sufficiently diversified. The
Nomination Committee reviews the diversity policy from
time to time to ensure the sustainability and effectiveness
of the policy and will continue to review the diversity of
the composition of the Board.
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The Strategy Committee currently comprises six members
including two independent non-executive Directors Mr.
DING lJiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun, two non-executive
Directors Mr. MO Jianhua (Chairman) and Mr. CAIl Xin as
well as two executive Directors Mr. ZHU Lidong and Ms.
ZHONG Ruoqin.

The major duties of the Strategy Committee of the
Company are as follows:

—_

to review and make recommendation to the Board
on business development;

2. to provide advice to the Board on significant
investment, merger, acquisition and disposal; and

w

to perform other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Strategy Committee
are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company. Major works of the Strategy
Committee in 2021 were as follows:

1. to review and make recommendation to the Board
on business development.

REE2021F12 4318 1EF E 8 - During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategy
BEgHAMRE®E  FREEEKE E!’] ﬁf Committee held one meeting and the attendance record
REEENT X of the Strategy Committee members is set out in the
table below:
HE/BITERRE
Name of Strategy Attendance/number
KHEEERBEHE Committee Members of meetings held
EREXE(EE) Mr.MO Jianhua (Chairman) 1/1
RIREAE Mr. ZHU Lidong 1/1
EBHEEL LT Mr. ZHONG Ruogin 1/1
gEEL Mr. CAI Xin 11
TER LA Mr. DING Jiangang 1/1
FHEBERE Mr. LI Kunjun 1/1
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has made full disclosure of remunerations
of Directors by name, amount and type in Note 7 to the
financial statements. No director has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2021.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The remuneration of senior management of the Company
(whose biographies are set out on pages 46 to 50 of this
annual report) for the year ended 31 December 2021 falls
under the following bands:

AE
MeER Band of remuneration Number
T — AR#1,000,0007T Nil — RMB1,000,000 1
KA R#1,000,0007T Over RMB1,000,000 4
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group,
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.

The management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Group’s financial statements, which are put to the Board
for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions, which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 175 to 186 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

In the course of business operation, the Group is subject
to various risks, including business risks, financial risks,
compliance risks, and operational and other risks.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, and is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems. The Audit Committee
is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
records, internal control procedures and risk management
systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has established the internal audit function, which is
carried out and reviewed by the Audit Committee, in
order to independently evaluate the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system
and timely report to the Board.

The Company has established comprehensive risk
management and internal control processes through
which the Company monitors, evaluates and manages
the risks that the Company is exposed to its business
activities. The risk management procedure of the
Company is based on the well-defined risk identification
standards, risk monitor responsibilities and risk control
measure of each major classification. The management
of the Company actively monitors the regional economy,
trend of property management services industry,
reliance on continuing connected transactions and
changes in applicable laws and regulations, and assesses
income and expenditure and absorptive capacity of
business expansions. The recommendations submitted
by independent consultant have been accepted by
the Company and implemented in stages, to further
enhance the policies, procedures and practices of
its internal control and risk management. The risk
management procedure of the Company clearly specifies
the management duties, authorization and approval of
each party in respect of the major risk identification
and management, and develops clear written policy for
significant risk management process and circulate it to all
managements and staffs. The Company’s internal control
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance
for achieving objectives, including efficient and stable
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.
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In order to effectively reduce unnecessary financial risks
and operational risks, and thus ensure the realization
of corporate business objectives, the Company has
designated specific departments to perform internal
control and audit functions, establish a sound internal
control system, monitor the implementation of the
system, and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal control and risk management systems
annually. For the significant risks affecting the Group’s
business and operations, the management has ensured
that appropriate measures have been taken to provide
reasonable protection for compliance with laws and
regulations and improve the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations. The Board and management of the
Company also evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness
of the relevant systems annually, and consider and
implement the recommendations proposed by the
specific departments for the improvement of systems.

The Directors and senior management of the Company
regularly receive training relating to continuing disclosure
obligation of listed company. The Company also
engaged external legal consultant to obtain professional
guidance on disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information. The management of the Company is
responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining
the effectiveness of the internal control system,
which includes control on compliance with disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information. The Board
is responsible for supervising the appropriateness and
efficiency of the internal control measure carried by
management.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has adopted various measures to ensure the effective
implementation of the internal control system, including
through the review of the Group’s internal control system
and provision of guidance in respect of the internal
control policies, responsibilities and duties of the listing
company'’s directors and management under the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations for the
Directors, senior management and employees. The Board
had reviewed the risk management and internal control
system of the Group four times. During the Reporting
Period, the Board and the management has reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group and considered it sufficient
and effective.

The Company has adopted an inside information policy in
accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules to ensure
the confidentiality of handling inside information and the
publication of respective disclosure to the public as soon
as practicable. The Company will make corresponding
information disclosure timely with regard to information
that is unlikely to maintain confidentiality, so as to
ensure effective protection of the rights and interests of
investors and stakeholders.
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Since the outbreak of the epidemic of 2021, an epidemic
prevention task force (the “Task Force”) was formed
by members of the Board and the senior management
to implement contingent measures for prevention of
the adverse effects of the epidemic. The Task Force has
issued epidemic management notice, service standards
during the epidemic and contingent measures in dealing
with the epidemic and is responsible for the management
of epidemic prevention of service centers of the Group.
The Group properly deployed its staff, purchased
necessary protective and preventive gears and proactively
enhanced various epidemic preventive measures. As
advised by the Task Force, all service centres issued alerts
to property owners and proposed measures to prevent
the spreading of epidemic. The residential areas are
frequently sterilized. All persons entering and leaving
the residential areas are required to have their body
temperature measured and have their health certification
code produced. Property owners are provided with face
masks. To provide assistance to people in need, elderly
living alone and people under home quarantine are
provided with delivery services.

In conclusion, the Company believes that its internal
control system is sufficient and effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the auditor’s
remuneration for the annual audit services and review
services were RMB1.7 million and RMBO0.5 million
respectively and the aggregate amount was RMB2.2
million. The fee for non-audit services, mainly the review
of environmental, social and governance report, was
RMBO0.09 million.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. ZHONG Ruogin, one of the Company’s executive
Directors, is also one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company.
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On 10 November 2021, Ms. KO Mei Ying (“Ms. KO")
has resigned as (i) the joint company secretary of the
Company; and (i) an authorized representative of the
Company under Rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), an authorized representative of the
Company pursuant to Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and an authorized person of the Company under Rule
19.05(2) of the Listing Rules for the acceptance of service
of process and notices in Hong Kong (collectively known
as the “Authorized Representatives”) with effect
from 10 November 2021. Ms. KO confirmed that she has
no disagreement with the Board and there is no matter
relating to her resignation that needs to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Ms. AU Wai Ching (“Ms. AU") has been appointed
as the Joint Company Secretary and the Authorized
Representatives with effect from 10 November 2021.
Ms. AU is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited with 10 years of experience
in corporate secretarial services. Ms. AU obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration and a
master’'s degree in professional accounting and corporate
governance from City University of Hong Kong. Ms. AU is
an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for, and
the Stock Exchange has granted a new waiver (the “New
Waiver”) to the Company from strict compliance with
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing
Rules for a period from the date of appointment of Ms.
AU as the Joint Company Secretary (i.e. 10 November
2021) to 14 March 2022 (i.e. the remaining period of the
Waiver Period) (the “New Waiver Period”) in relation
to the eligibility of Ms. ZHONG to act as one of the Joint
Company Secretaries. The New Waiver is granted on
the conditions that: (i) Ms. ZHONG must be assisted by
Ms. AU during the New Waiver Period; and (ii) the New
Waiver could be revoked if there are material breaches of
the Listing Rules by the Company. Before the end of the
New Waiver Period, the Company must demonstrate and
seek the Stock Exchange’s confirmation that Ms. ZHONG,
having had the benefit of Ms. AU’s assistance during the
New Waiver Period, has attained the relevant experience
and is capable of discharging the functions of a company
secretary under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules such that
a further waiver will not be necessary. The New Waiver
applies to Ms. AU’s appointment as the Joint Company
Secretary only. The Stock Exchange may withdraw or
change the New Waiver if the Company’s situation
changes.

The New Waiver Period expired on 14 March 2022. The
Stock Exchange had agreed that Ms. ZHONG Ruogin
was qualified to act as the company secretary of the
Company under Rule 3.28 and Rule 8.17 of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. ZHONG, Ms.
KO and Ms. AU have undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective

performance and strategies.

disclosure of information on the Company for the
shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the Board Committees of the Company
attends the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions. The auditor also attends the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

To promote effective communication and to build an
inter-relationship and communication channel between
the Company and the Shareholders, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy and maintains a
website at http:/www.hzbjwy.com, where the up-to-
date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a
separate resolution will be proposed for each issue at
general meetings,
directors.

including the election of individual

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders
may put forward proposals at the general meeting of the
Company for consideration. Any one or more member(s)
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be convened by the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene such general
meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director,
the procedures are available on the website of the
Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board may send their
enquiries to the Investor Relations of the Company at its
headquarters through email at ir@binjiangfuwu.com.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum of Association and the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Memorandum and
Articles”) have been amended and restated, with effect
from the Listing Date. Save for the aforesaid disclosed,
during the Reporting Period, no change has been made
to the Memorandum and Articles.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report ("ESG Report”) issued by the Group to present
the achievement of the Group regarding its fulfilment
of environmental and social responsibilities in 2021,
including major ESG issues concerned by stakeholders.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide of the Rules Governing the Listing on the Stock
Exchange.

This is the Group’s fourth ESG report, which covers the
year from January 2021 to December 2021. The next
report for 2022 is expected to be released in April 2023.

The reporting entities are Binjiang Group and its
subsidiaries. The data in respect of their policies, social
responsibilities and environmental protection efforts
cover all of the Group’s business lines.

The data used in this report are derived from the internal
documents and related statistical materials of the Group.
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This report is prepared based on the following principles:

Materiality: The Group identifies major ESG issues
through materiality assessment, and the relevant process
and results have been disclosed in this report.

Quantitative: The Group makes quantitative disclosure of
the key performance indicators with historical data in the
areas of "environmental” and “social” according to the
requirements of the “Key Performance Indicators” in the
Appendix 27 the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the HKEX, makes quantitative disclosure of
forward-looking information such as targets as much as
possible, and will gradually improve the statistical process
to achieve full disclosure in the future.

Balance: This report objectively, fairly and truly
discloses the Group's work performance and practice in
environmental and social matters in 2021, and discloses
the problems encountered and improvement measures in
a responsible manner.

Consistency: The Group follows a consistent statistical
method for disclosure. In this report, we have maintained
the same statistical method for the information
as disclosed in the previous year’s report. For the
information disclosed for the first time, the Group will
adopt a consistent statistical method for ESG information
disclosure in subsequent years, in order to facilitate
meaningful comparisons from year to year.

This report will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the official website of the Group.
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Assuming full responsibility for the Group’'s ESG
strategy and reporting, the Board is responsible
for assessing and determining the Group’'s ESG-
related risks, and ensuring that the Group has
an appropriate and effective system for ESG risk
management and internal monitoring.

The business development opportunities of the
Group stem from the society's pursuit of better
quality of life. Because of this, the Group pays
special attention to the sustainable development
of the Company, establish and improve the ESG
governance system, and have the review and
decision-making of major ESG issues led by the
Board, including identifying and evaluating ESG
risks, formulating ESG strategies and policies,
establishing management policies and plans,
approving and reviewing ESG target management,
and approving the annual ESG report and other
management content.

Based on the external environment and the Group’s
development strategy, the Group conducted
research on internal and external stakeholders
during the Reporting Period, identified key ESG
issues, and clarified work priorities, including:
corporate governance, risk and crisis management,
employees’ rights and benefits, development and
training, customer relationship management and
community development and services, with focus
on reviewing the above issues and improving
performance in daily work, and carried out target
management accordingly. In the future, the Group
will continue to adjust the strategy and promotion
method of sustainable development management
according to the expectations of stakeholders
and the actual operation of the Group, so as to
continuously improve the level of sustainable
development.
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This report disclosed details of the progress and
effectiveness of the ESG work of the Group in
2021. The Board, as the highest responsible and
decision-making body for ESG matters, warrants
that there are no false representations or misleading
statements contained in, or material omissions from
this report, and accepts all responsibilities for the
truthfulness and accuracy of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW

The Group has always adhered to the service
concept of “serving with heart and filling
home with love” and the principle of “owner
first, service first, quality first”. The Group
aims to secure the well-being of owners and
residents through more professional and
standardized services. At the same time,
the Group adheres to the quality policy of
“sincerity, innovation, perfection, safety,
health and green” and strives to always keep
its corporate social responsibility in mind.
These policies and principles instill the concept
of sustainable development into every aspect
of the Group’s governance and business and
enable the Group to realize economic, social
and environmental benefits.
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The Group has established a top-down ESG
governance structure where the Board is
responsible for monitoring environmental
and social issues, including risk assessment,
task prioritization and risk management,
supervising and reviewing the performance
of the Group on the environmental and
social issues and providing the direction and
guideline for the sustainable development
of the Company. An ESG report working
commission, which is led by high-ranking
managerial personnel and includes
intermediate level managers. The working
commission consists of representatives from all
regular management divisions of the Group,
including the Board Office, the Integrated
Management Department, the Finance
Department, the Human Resource Department,
the Brand Operations Department and all
Service Centers. The working commission is
responsible for promoting, communicating
and implementing the strategies, measures
and feedback of the Group on issues related
to ESG, which plays an active role in the
sustainable development of the Group.
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The Group’s ESG stakeholders mainly
include the employees, suppliers, customers,
shareholders and investors, local government,
and the communities where our business
operates. The Group believes that listening
to and understanding the opinions of
stakeholders will provide a solid foundation
for the long-term development and success of
the Group. The Group actively explores various
channels to maintain good communication
with stakeholders, to enhance the
stakeholders’ understanding of the Group’s
development and operational policies, and
to provide more opportunities for them to
put forward suggestions so that the Group
can provide them with timely and effective
feedback regarding their concerns. In this way,
the Group ensures that it is cooperating and
working alongside stakeholders to achieve
mutual benefits.

LIRSS E AR ] FERE 2021

115



RIE - HERERERE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEERS
Stakeholders Shareholders Employees

BENBER

Target & focus
S

Method of
communication
and exchange

EEEXHR
Ak AREE
FERTRHE
#

RERS
Respond to state
policies

Operate according
to laws and
regulations

Pay taxes in
accordance with
laws

Promote
employment

ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂi
BERERLE
a%
EUEEEIEZ IN
ABE
BRESHHFYE
Take part in
discussions
when relevant
policies are being
formulated, and
share enterprise
experience
Guide and
influence public
policies actively
Engage in dialogue
with the local
government

EBBRALE
LS |
REERGRE
FHARER
AAERE
Business strateqy
& operating
performance
Protect
shareholder's legal
rights

Business
sustainability
Company
transparency

ik

=]

>

S5 et
Nt S

mt i DE> SR
b

q mE> Ol
e

=
St
S
o
&2

Information
disclosures

The board meeting,
shareholders'
meeting and
investors' meeting
of exchange
Direct
communication
among
shareholders

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FMEA
EERE
BEYR
Z2RR

13 3'¢(d
Payment & welfare
Guarantee of rights
and interests
Career
development
Safety and health
Corporate culture

Employee
representative
at the Board of
Supervisors
Trade union
Employee
representative
conference
Employee survey
and provision of
timely feedback
Enhance
information
disclosure

R RE
EF%2
Bl
MiREREEE

Timely service
Safety of
householders
Privacy protection
Steadily improve
service quality

REAREEERE
FIERAEE R
B

EEE
BNEERE

Communicate
during the service
offering process
Owners survey and
provision of timely
feedback
Complaint hotline
Enhance
information
disclosures

Suplies

ARETHRER o
AERARER o
NN .

PG - B
"

Abide by .
commercial ethics
&state lawsand o
rules

Be transparent and

fair '
Fulfill

commitments, U
achieve mutual
benefits and

enable win-win
cooperation

N

[=]
E
AR#
i

#

\

e

rlJ .

Py

R
L

L1 e=11|
e =
S
=

=

ik
[y

s

155
Announce ’
the supplier
management rules
Contract U
negotiation

Dally business
exchange '
Enhance

information
disclosures

#E

BHHRED
2EHRER
REHBRAR
RELBER

Hold community
activities

Assist in
community
construction
Secure community
welfare

Promote the
community's
development

EERHF 45
4

HEED XA
EMEERE

Communicate with
local government
and organisations
Exchange ideas
with community
members

Enhance
information
disclosures



RIR - HERERBME
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

TR
saotes |cowrmen[srdotesJonpows [utones Isppies[conmaty |

BTEFER & o THARBRE

EXTY

Key actions

BRREER

Key performance
indicators

TERAR AR
RXEENEH
HERS58NH
Rz
SR b
prd

REEnRRES

Implement state
policies, and abide
by state laws and
regulations
Accept supervision
and check-ups
Create more posts
to boost the
employment rate
Guide garbage
classification
activities in
cooperation with
the government
Declare taxes in a
timely manner

HRDBTE
CEpERS &

Take action to
implement garbage
classification
Number of persons
employed

THARESE
ARREERRE
REETEEEE
it

Hold shareholders'
meetings regularly
Hold board
meetings reqularly
Hold meetings of
exchange with
investors

Disclose statutory
issues in a timely
manner

REEE REL
l

kEmE

Stock value and
dividend returns
Stock market value

MEEIX(LRE o
R
BEBTIf 4
ARR
BEIEG R
HRHES
EIRREZ2M
E
KIBINE
Enhance trainings
for employees in
respect of culture
and technical skills o
Improve living
and working
environment for ~~ ®
employees
Guarantee
employees’ rights
and benefits, and
upgrade their '
welfare level
Health and safety
guarantees for
employees
Establish an
employee trade
union
BIRIAR o
gM-BAHE
MEESIRAE
Number of hours of ¢
employee training
Remuneration and ¢
welfare system
The sum of
money donated ¢
to employee with
financial difficulties

RHREL 52 o
ft
ERETREER
)
HEFPRFARER
BRE
NEREZPEL

Service .
normalisation and
standardisation
Conduct reqular ~~#
customer

satisfaction surveys
Respond to client
complaintsand
provide them with
feedback in a .
timely manner
Eamestly protect
customer privacy

BIRARK
EPRiEE
EFERILRENE
Investments in .
greening

Number of .
Customer

complaints

Solutions for

handling customer
privacy cases

RUDBERNA o
B8lE
BRUBERAT o
a 0
SEEEEEES
8 .
BEEEELTS
FETE

Setupanopen ¢
and transparent bid
invitation system
Setupa
communication 0
platform for

suppliers '
Perfect the supplier
selection system

Offer equal
opportunities to
suppliers .

AREHE o
Y R

Contract .
performance rate
Assessment of .
supplier

EARTHERR
it
REFALE
RORE BRI
g
RERIERER
)

Reqularly hold
activities to
benefit community
residents
Encourage good
deeds

Be passionate
about public
welfare, and
contribute to
society

Conduct employee
volunteer activities

FAHEHRILEE
HEAERA
BIZREERED
Examples of good
deeds

Investments in
social welfare
causes

Volunteer activities

BIRBEEGRAR FEHRE 2021

117



118

Iﬁiﬁ ’ ?‘i%& B /I:l $ﬁ =]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EAREFE AEBERESGH
BHHRMER  BBHA - AW
ZERBHWENRABE GO E B
MR AHRESGEBHE - I
EREFETHMEWETEE U
FEERRARANAFELZRERE
K o REEh # H & F 2 HEE &
REFEBFT THEZILER
BBEMTA - WA R K B R
SIANEBE A 2= AHBE & - e B2
ﬁ&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ T TR EZ T FR B E
KEHIRE e AIIFNRARE
RIS M -

AEBEEUBERRESER
HEESI A B Ee T ENEZER
(SASB)HIEMCEZUHZERE)S -
HBAITEMABENESGEE TER
HEANZHBEEHESGEEEEZE
MHAEEROOMMESL  ERT
MTEEMTHNER - £65F 5
HEAFTHREELELEHEIRE &
CERMBEIEBMNMCGRE g
RERAHKREES) ~EBELH
FEREERTEE I R=EERN - B
BEEZ) HEREERERBEMNER
BEREESH S HEMERFEH
MEEZLEFEREI@ °

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

In the reporting year, the Group attached
importance to the identification and
management of ESG issues. We conducted
interviews, surveys and other activities to
collect the opinions and feedbacks from
stakeholders in order to identify material
ESG issues and made specific disclosures in
the report accordingly so to enhance the
sustainable development and management of
the Company effectively. The Group will also
continually pay attention to all stakeholders,
constantly review and update the materiality
assessment, and include external stakeholders
when the conditions are right, so as to achieve
a more accurate and thorough understanding
of the demands of various parties, and
to provide guidance and direction to the
enterprise’s business operations and controls
over environmental and social governance.

The Group identified industry-related ESG
issues based on relevant guidelines on
sustainability information disclosure, such as
the “Material Issues Database” formulated by
the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB), and based on the analysis and summary
of the results of the materiality assessment
of ESG issues from all stakeholders, and
formed the following materiality assessment
matrix, which is prepared in considering the
stakeholders’ focus on corporate operations
and environmental and social governance and
in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guidelines. Our
Group focuses on social fields such as rights
and interests of employees, development
and trainings, community development and
customer relationship management, and
environmental issues such as use of energy and
climate change.
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List of Material Issues in the 2021 ESG Report of Binjiang Service

FEEE
Highly material

1. BXEER 3. EARkE#ER 15. BI# = ERER

Corporate governance Risk and crisis management Employees’ rights and benefits
17. BERRE 18. BEEETE 20. BALIR#

Development and trainings Labour management Privacy protection
22. EFPBAGER 24. EEBRE 26. @R ERS

Customer relationship Business ethics Community development and

management services

BEE
Material

2. ESGEA 4. BERZE 5. BERBERX

ESG management Impact of policies Emission of greenhouse gases
9. EEKEEM 10. BEIRfER 13. RIRE 1t

Disposal of waste water Use of energy Climate change
4. ZRltEKETE 16. BiXEERELZ S 19. fHEREER

Diversity and equal Occupational health and Supply chain management

opportunities safety
21. BEMIEH 23. BFErR 25, RERRARHBEES

Responsible marketing Digital community Corporate Citizenship &

Philanthropy
iz
Relevant

6. FERTEW 7. BEEERDHR 8. EEBEEWHMN

Exhaust emissions Discharge of hazardous Discharge of non-hazardous

waste waste

1. KERE®E 12. HRIBMBAERNTE

Water resource management

Impact on the environment
and natural resources
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BLRB2021FESGHREEEMNEREEREE
Matrix of Material Issues in the 2021 ESG Report of Binjiang Service

Matrix of Material Issues for Stakeholders of Binjiang Service

High

Materiality to stakeholders

low

Low Materiality to operation and management high

3 RERE
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RAERERARBEARENRRIRE
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THREERRSREE BEREXBEH
RERBEANARATE R EER
e E -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a socially and environmentally responsible
corporate citizen, the Group is fully aware of its
responsibilities in environmental protection. In the
process of daily operations and development, the
Group maintains an emphasis on the importance
of environmental protection, actively implementing
green and low-carbon development strategies,
minimizing the negative impact of business
development on the environment, and trying to
generally have a positive effect on the environment.
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The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the development
of the Group, such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy and strives to ceaselessly implement its
environmental protection measures. In order to
strengthen environmental protection awareness, the
Group monitored the use of electrical appliances,
water conservation, paperless office measures,
business car management, and other areas, so as
to regulate employees’ environmental protection
behavior in daily operations. The promotion and
implementation of the green office system have
greatly enhanced the awareness of all employees in
saving energy and reducing consumption, playing a
significant role in strengthening the management of
water and electricity consumption, reducing waste,
effectively reducing energy consumption, guiding
all employees to form the habit of saving resources
and protecting environment and promoting the
sustainable development of the Company.

In addition, the Group has a GB/T24001-2016 idt
ISO14001:2015 certified environmental management
system, which affirms the Group’s achievements in
environmental management. Going forward, the
Group will work to further develop and optimize
the environmental management system.
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Carbon emissions and environmental
protection

The Group paid special attention to low
carbon emission and environmental protection,
actively responded to the country’s energy
saving and emission reduction initiatives.
The Group’s carbon emission was mainly
generated by the use of electricity and natural
gas in projects under our management and
automobile fuel consumption, with an annual
volume of 159,300 tonnes (2020: 52,600
tonnes. Indirect carbon dioxide emissions from
outsourced electricity accounted for more than
99 percent (2020: 99%) of the Group's total
carbon emissions. For this reason, this area is
our Group's key focus in reducing the Group’s
carbon emissions. The Group integrates energy
conservation and consumption reduction
measures into internal management and
encourages employees to reduce carbon
emissions in various ways. With regard to
company-financed vehicles, their use is
controlled and managed in a unified manner
by the central management office. Employees
are encouraged to make contribution to
environmental protection by using public
transportation. The Group advocates for a
paperless office and encourages the use of
recycled paper and double-sided printing.
In these ways, the Group strives to reduce
carbon emissions by reducing paper use.
Please refer to the “Use of Resources” section
below for information regarding our electricity
consumption.
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BE—HRHN

(B-SLKRES)

Scope 1: Direct emissions

(tonnes of carbon dioxide

equivalent) 1,023.87 1,192.11

HEZ:EEER Scope 2: Indirect emissions

(WB-_E{REE) (tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent) 158,229.99 51,372.06
BEREBHENAE greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes
(B8 REE) of carbon dioxide equivalent) 159,253.86 52,564.17
HREE(M/ARETT Intensity (tonnes/operating income
BEKRA) of RMB'000) 0.11 0.05

AT WEMI2EMEBET eSS 6T Note 1: The data herein and in 3.2 section do not include
EIEE - projects under management on a commission

basis.

2 BERERBHMBRE(IEERS Note 2: The calculation of direct greenhouse gas
5T 4F 22020) ff £%4 «+ GHG Protocol * emissions is based on Appendix 4 to the
{IPCC, 2014 : |AR #1£2014 : iR & W China Energy Statistical Yearbook 2020, GHG
E BNERGEE(CEMEZESER Protocol, IPCC, 2014: Climate Change 2014:
R EREE—TIEHR  F-IE4A Comprehensive Report, Report of the First
ME=THEEBEERBRERESE Working Group, the Second Working Group
BREEE(FT  201MF58) MEE and the Third Working Group of the Fifth
Rt TEFMNBER ST BERA Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental
2010) st B FT18 » Panel on Climate Change, Guidelines for the

Compilation of Provincial Greenhouse Gas
Inventories (Trial, May 2011) and Energy Statistics
Manual (Department of Energy, National Bureau
of Statistics, 2010).

A3 BEAEREHMBEREARKLN Note 3: Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are calculated

BREFERMLEZESQ0NEARM
202F R RS EMFH A B
WA F)H20124F F B @ 5 EH T
ZEbmPERE T ERS -

based on the average carbon dioxide emission
factor of China’s regional power grids in 2012 in
the “Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factors of
China’s Regional Power Grids in 2011 and 2012"
issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the People’s Republic of China.
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H4: BRAEEFEEHEHRER L
FREEM BARFRELEE K
FIEFIBEEXEMAR RS EHEE EF
ERTEL BRERBENRERKNE
EHEER -

BE R BE Exhaust Emissions

Note 4. Due to the significant increase in the number
of projects under management of the Group
in 2021 as compared with last year, the
total amount of emissions increased; At the
same time, the project type and the scope of
contracted services changed from the previous
year, resulting in a significant increase in
emission density.

AW (B T3)
A (A TR)
B (B T

Sulfur oxide (unit: kg)

Granulates (unit: kg)

NESE MNEFNER
AEBBRRET(PREARKNE
[ %8 BE ¥ 05 R IR E B R) MCE TR
P RHEERT R FERE
BoHEBEEMETOEERE - mR
DREE-RE-—EMBEHONHL
CRETH BEIARBAN b
BER HEEBELZTIBNAR
28 AEZTIRARZ EE R
DR ARRDIRERST - bE -
BR HE&EBSH s EETEHR
REEERE - RE - BE EE-
AR DBEAANZER  AAFE
MRHFBE  BAMBEEEED
ERR Z/RE 2K
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Nitrogen oxide (unit: kg)

735.70 803.58
61.44 72.55
90.62 101.19

Garbage classification

The Group strictly abides by the laws and
regulations such as the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste of the People’s Republic of China and
the Implementation Plan for the Domestic
Waste Classification System to implement
classified management of waste. Garbage
classification is essential for social governance
and relies on the cooperation and participation
of the government, enterprises, residents,
social organizations and other sectors. The
government, enterprises, residents, social
organizations and other stakeholders are able
to promote their self and mutual regulation,
service, education and supervision through
cooperating and participating in garbage
classification. Contentment, happiness and
sense of security of people lie in the efforts
made by all sectors in garbage classification.



EERNBOBRHERRERER R
RiE - BEENER28 2R
BORIEFE - NEBEZ R R
EERMNEORBTEER Y
FANBREBETTHEFRNBARBENA
2o ERRIEMALEREZNERES
T AEERREAF  EETH
FoBRENZESEE  BRARE
NP DEONEDRAAD » KFE
AEBEBBERRYG THEH -
EERWN REEESFHEE—
FRAZFEBNRAEEX . 5
BRRWEEEK-

2021F - AEE TEBERB
DEBMIR S EIEERIBEE -
DHIEREEION A £ - BIREUK
BAREIO%MN L -

RAERLUROE  AEBEEHEE
EENBEEDME R GTKETR
BREE  -HREEHRBEENG
ERERZEY MERBEHBLENE
REENZEMREETRE &
EZBBR BHNSBHEREEZ
B O U B A — AT U SR AR I
AEEBFHAENLORELRS
EEAMEBEEETER  HRNER
HK REEBRBERBRCRFEAR
HAMBERFEREEPEARKM
B K55 e Fr R 75 ) tE A AR T 1T B
Mo HREmEERREELER
TENTARERBREL -

RIR - HEREREHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

As domestic garbage classification has far-
reaching significant for environmental
protection, it is essential to encourage the
extensive participation and action of the
population. The Group’s practice should be
changed from producing garbage to classifying
garbage while property owners should assume
their responsibilities in garbage management.
Driven by policy guidance and internal factors,
the Group has adopted a number of measures
to classify garbage at its source, in an effort
to instill in people the concept of garbage
classification. During the year, the Group
further enhanced property owners’ awareness
on domestic garbage, classification rate and
disposal accuracy through voluntary services,
regular seminars, disposal guidance, regulatory
management, and other measures.

In 2021, 11 service centers of the Group received
awards regarding “garbage classification”, with
the classification accuracy and recycling rate
amounting to 90% or above, respectively.

In addition to daily domestic garbage
classification, the Group has also standardized
the treatment of waste and domestic sewage
resulting from home maintenance. For
maintenance waste generated in projects under
our management, the property service center
first places the waste in special warehouses on
a temporary basis. They will then be collected
and disposed of by the recovery units certified
by the relevant qualification authority after the
disposal scheme is approved. The Group verifies
the qualification of the recovery units on an
annual basis. With regards to domestic sewage
discharge, the Group strictly complies with
the relevant provisions of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, so as to eliminate any non-compliant
discharge that may have a negative impact on
the environment.
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In terms of the Group’s business, during
the reporting year, the Group did not have
any non-compliance matters with laws and
regulations that have a material impact on
the Group in terms of air and greenhouse gas
emissions, pollutant discharge to water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.

The Group regards resource conservation
as a vital part of its development strategy
and operational approach and is committed
to constantly monitoring and improving the
Group's environmental protection performance.
The resources used by the Group mainly
include electricity, natural gas, gasoline and
water. Among which, electricity and water are
the main resources used and consumed by us.

Smart renovations that save energy

The Group’s carbon emissions are mainly
caused by electricity consumption. In the
reporting year, the Group consumed electricity
of 224,990.45 MWh in total (2020: 73,023.54
MWh). In order to reduce energy consumption
and conduct reasonable planning and efficient
management of electricity consumption, the
Group formulated the Binjiang Property Green
Office Management System, which regulates
the temperature of air conditioners at the entry
and exit, and implements “lights off when
people leave and machine stop” for power
facilities in the office. In addition, the Group
also encourages employees to use natural
lighting and ventilation as much as possible to
reduce the use of electrical appliances.

At the same time, the Group attaches great
importance on both energy conservation
and emission reduction and owners’
experience and satisfaction. We provide high-
quality services while putting great efforts
in improving our performance in energy
conservation and energy efficiency.
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RAARR(LTTK)
s (B 7)

SN E ) (TR )
FaRER(TRE)

Natural Gas (cubic meters)
Gasoline (0’000 litres) 13.58 15.20
Outsourced power (kWh)
Comprehensive energy
consumption (kWh)

331,433.04 392,073.44

224,990,446.21 73,023,540.29

229,764,412.28 78,594,872.27

BT roeglmsraselRFER Comprehensive energy

(FEB/ARBTT
EEWRA)

consumption per
thousand yuan of

revenue (kWh/operating
income of RMB1,000

Yuan)

25 ARAEERONFAEERARER L
FRIEBZM AHAERERK:R
REBXENARARBEEER LFH
PREL BHEARREANEEIE
BTABRREENER -

76 AR BRERABRBRFEARLNE
Bl R {Z £(4R & B F 5T 8 3| Al(GB/
T2589-2020)) F KM HE A F st E Fr

=]
= °

LR BRAK
AEBUFERATREKEE £
DBEKERIER L RMK - K
EREBKREYTEME BEAE
B & &K K E R B R B & &N 49K
BEMEREE  HBEBHARGHKE
NERREIFER - 2021FF - K
SETESE RS AL ESFEKE
NEJEBRE -

164.24 81.85

Note 5 Due to the significant increase in the number
of projects under management of the Group
in 2021 as compared with last year, the total
electricity consumption increased; At the
same time, the project type and the scope of
contracted services have changed compared
with the previous year, resulting in a significant
increase in the density index of comprehensive
energy consumption.

Note 6: Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated
based on the conversion factors in the General
Principles for Calculation of Comprehensive
Energy Consumption (GB/T2589-2020), the
national standard of the People’s Republic of
China.

Multiple measures for water recycling
The Group mainly uses municipal water,
and uses river water and reclaimed water
in some qualified projects, and has no
problem in accessing to water resources, but
the Group is fully aware of the shortage of
freshwater resources and importance of water
conservation and actively plan and construct
urban water-efficient communities. In 2021,
eight service centers under the Group were
awarded the honorary commendation of
“Water-efficient Communities”.

LIRSS E AR ] FERE 2021

127



128

RE  HE8RERHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EETIERREFERFERE
AEBEBRB MBEEE AKES
FHARERDBKER  FEA
ITHEHRERE TERE  E5R
BoEg KAXR=-BHR-

When carrying out daily operation and
maintenance of the community environment,
the Group reasonably reduces the frequency
of water refreshing, reduce labor intensity
and improve work efficiency through scientific
maintenance, and with the assistance of robots
and other methods, to reach the triple goals of
achieving environmental, social and economic
benefits.

FEKE (2 7K) Water consumption
(cubic meters) 2,378,039.456 2,201,447.40
FKREE (S 7K/ ANRE Water consumption density
FLEEKRA) (cubic meters/operating
income of RMB1,000) 1.70 2.29
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In terms of target management, as the number
of property projects under the Group’s
management is growing rapidly and the types
of projects are becoming more diversified,
considering the maintenance needs of different
types of property projects under management
and the large differences in material
consumption level, energy consumption level,
greenhouse gas emissions and water use, it
is difficult for the Group to set quantitative
emission reduction targets in terms of energy
use efficiency, water use efficiency, emissions
and waste at this stage. However, from a
long-term perspective, the Group insists on
improving the efficiency of resource and
energy use, reducing energy consumption
without compromising service quality to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, reducing
the probability of maintenance, extending
service life and reducing the severity through
optimizing design, scientific investigation
and timely response, and are gradually
accumulating and analyzing the energy, water
and material consumption of different property
types by adopting digital means. In order to
formulate quantitative targets in the above
aspects in the future.
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As the Group’s business consists of property
management, the Group business activities
does not involve significant consumption of
natural resources nor a significant impact on
the environment. However, the Group is well
aware of the possible environmental impact
of day-to-day business operations. The Group
takes our own actions to mitigate climate
change, protect biodiversity, prevent soil and
water resources from being polluted, and
maintain a sound and sustainable ecological
environment with practical actions. The Group
actively conveys environmental protection
awareness to owners, employees and other
stakeholders. By carrying out environmental
protection publicity activities across the
country, we strive to convey environmental
protection culture such as protecting plants,
reusing recyclable resources, and garbage
classification in the community, and jointly
build a good environment in the community.

The Group adheres to the concept of saving
energy, building beautiful community, and
protecting environment, integrates the concept
of protecting environment into community
construction, plans and improves the
greening and garden area of the community,
and creates a green and environmentally-
friendly community, while providing owners
and employees with comfortable living and
working place. In 2021, the Group added
a total of 199,563.4 square meters of new
greening and renovation area.

The Group will continue strengthening
our environmental management system to
ensure its compliance with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations and make
contributions to the common environmental
protection cause of mankind.

ETIREEEBR AR EEHRE 2021

129



130

Iﬁiﬁ ’ ?‘i%& B /I:l $ﬁ =]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI 2MEE CBFEHLANE
%ﬁﬂ%fﬁ%?ﬂ&%%/\ﬁa’vlf’ﬁiﬁi
/% ’ﬂ?i%%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ii'

E’\J}“JE@Z ZK%I%%TCFD (ﬁﬂ%*ﬁ
M ESRBIER  BAKE
A BE M BR B B R IR 2 8 Ba) &
RAMEBEEPHRERRRESR B
BEE - RRER  ERNEER
PIERETE -

Rk AE B8 R P B4R B R B OB
AGEREMRR (A TEEEREE])
MEREZFLHEETEZEBAN
FEE(ATHE ERRAR]) - ﬁq:
ERAR B D ABKREEZRER
RitREk mEERRE  BERR
ERERARSESMERR(0EE -
K E R i KR g MR B (R
FEAEBEOFEESR) KE
e Rk 2 WIEIER

bhd - EEXB) P A B @%éﬁ
BRME - BERRR - E@AMRE -
TMIBMEE S o

EFEeREAEENRBAMEE
HNEE BRERFME  BER
FETERRER REHRES
15 B8 &F P9 R Rl B2 AT 9T ROIR 2 L ¥
AEEXBRBNTE fﬁéﬁﬁ}fﬁ
1 ¥ SR 1 AE R L B A0 B

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Global warming, sea level rise and abnormal
weather intermittently affect people’s work
and life and have become main concerns of
the society. Enterprises face tough challenges
of addressing climate changes. With reference
to the framework set out in the TCFD (Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures),
the Group has assessed risks and opportunities
arising from climate changes and formulated
strategies for managing risks and identifying
and managing indicators and objectives.

Climate-related risks include risks in relation to
the transition to a low-carbon economy (the
“Transition Risks”) and risks in relation to
the physical impact of climate changes (the
“Physical Risks”). Transition Risks include
policy and legal risks, technical risks, market
risks, reputational risks while Physical Risks
include acute risks (such as typhoons, floods
and other extreme weather conditions) and
chronic risks (persistent high temperatures
and other changes in climate pattern). In order
to address climate changes, in addition to
preventing risks, the Group will also put great
efforts in identifying opportunities, including
resource efficiency, energy sources, products
and services, markets and resilience.

The Board is responsible for supervising
environmental and social issues of the Group,
including risk assessment, task prioritization
and risk management. The Board is also
responsible for identifying and analyzing the
impact of climate changes on our Group’s
business activities with relevant departments,
so as to fully manage climate-related risks and
grasp opportunities.
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For the acute Physical Risks, as the Group is
mainly engaged in the provision of high-end
property management services, typhoons,
rainstorms, high temperature and other
extreme weather conditions may affect the
projects under our Group’s management in
different extent and may pose more challenges
to our Group’s property management.

The Group pays close attention to climate
change and has taken a series of climate-
related risk prevention measures in its daily
operations.

In 2021, in response to the increase in
typhoons and rainstorms in summer, the
Group made the Flood Control Emergency
Plan, which has made clear arrangements
for the prevention before, during and after
the occurrence of extreme weather such as
thunderstorms and typhoons, and requires
each service center to carry out extreme
weather prevention training and exercises.

Through continuous improvement of relevant
emergency plans and active implementation
of work arrangements, the Group has formed
standard operating procedures internally to
respond to the impact of extreme weather
quickly and adequately.
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Case: Shangyu Longshan Guandi and the
owners jointly fight against the flood

On 26 July 2021, under the influence of
continuous heavy rainfall and upstream flood
discharge, water from the river channel outside
the community was flooded in the basement
of Building 38 of Longshan Guandi in Shangyu,
Shaoxing. The project director immediately
went to understand the dangerous situation,
activated the emergency plan according to
the on-site situation, arranged engineering
personnel and order maintainers to increase
drainage, notified the owners to transfer their
valuables on the ground floor of the residence,
and reported the event to the owners
committee, real estate company, community
street office and companies in the area. All
parties actively dispatched people to aid the
flood fight.

The Group organized a total of more than
150 people, including project property service
personnel, area property service personnel,
community street service personnel, and
helpful owners, participated in this flood
fight. They had worked together for 15 hours
without a break to stack the sandbags at
the entry to the basement to a height of
2.1 meters, finally successfully ensuring the
property safety of the community and the
owners.

The Group insists on strengthening the
bottom-line thinking and protects the safety of
the owners resolutely. In the face of extreme
weather, everyone worked together and
overcame difficulties to ensure the safety of
their houses.
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In terms of chronic Physical Risks, due to the
impact of global warming, on the one hand,
the operating costs of the property projects
under management of the Group may increase.
On the other hand, with the increasing calls for
energy conservation and emission reduction in
the whole society, the Group foresees that this
will prompt us to continuously integrate more
green and low-carbon development concepts
and measures into the Group’s daily operating
management. We will reduce the risk of rising
maintenance costs brought about by climate
change through reasonable arrangements for
greening and maintenance and strengthening
outdoor pipe network maintenance.
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The Group put much emphasis on energy
conservation and emission reduction in its
daily business operations, adopts effective
standardized management measures and
supervision mechanisms to effectively reduce
energy consumption, fully respond to chronic
Physical Risks, and expects to reduce the
probability and impact of risks.

In terms of Transition Risks, the Group will
continue to pay attention to the impact of
climate change on the Group’s business,
fully meet the requirements of policies,
and further improve strategy formulation,
risk management, indicator and target
identification and management, and work with
all sectors of society to address climate change
and achieve common sustainable development.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a property service provider, the Group has been
providing long term and stable job vacancies to
the society which satisfies massive employment
demands and maintains good relationship with its
employees. In addition, as administrative division
does not extend to the scope of communities,
community properties bear the responsibility of
security maintenance. With an aim to achieve
safety, stability, harmony and happiness within the
community, the Group is committed to maintaining
social stability.

The Group has formulated a standardized
recruitment process that ensures that employees
will be provided reasonable remuneration, a
non-discriminatory working atmosphere, fair
and just promotion opportunities, and various
training opportunities that meet their needs
for diversified development. This process
also ensures that employees will be given
recognition and incentives based on their
performance. When we help our employees
with their career development, we are also
laying a solid foundation for the future
development of the enterprise.
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Fair and equal talent recruitment

The Group adheres to the recruitment principle
of fair competition and conducts open
selections in an orderly manner. The Group
recruits employees through various channels
such as labor market fairs, online recruitment,
campus recruitment, and others. The Group
actively promotes cooperation between
schools and enterprises, implement trainee
management plans, give outstanding students
internship opportunities, and provide retention
opportunities for those with outstanding
performance.

»  Campus recruitment: “Chuying Program,
promising future

“Chuying Program” is a university
students growth program by the Group
and an important part of talent reserve
strategy of the Company. The Group
divided campus recruitment positions into
two categories, “project management”
and “professional management”, based
on business categories and conducted
extensive recruitment on students
majoring in property management,
engineering and technology, greening
and gardening, physical education and
human resources.

Online promotion: In 2021, the Group
opened an official account and video
account on WeChat and published
campus recruitment posts to introduce
our working environment to students. We
also invited alumni and alumnae to share
their thoughts on training and tips on
campus recruitment interview.

Offline talks: In 2021, the Group held
campus talks in a number of provinces
and cities, including campus recruitment
fair and offline job interviews, and
published recruitment information on
school websites to establish a brand
image as employer.
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University-enterprise cooperation: We
recruit interns in a timely manner,
arrange formal pre-employment training
and retention assessment for interns for
relevant posts, clarify the selection and
retention standards of interns, improve
the entry standards of interns, and
establish cooperative relationship with
relevant colleges and universities to meet
the needs of rapid business development
and talent reserve of the Group.

Social recruitment: We recruit outstanding
talents in the market, continue to input
advanced technology or management
concepts into the Group to enhance the
overall competitiveness of our talents.

Internal recommendation: We encourage
all employees of the Company to
participate in recruitment and attract
more outstanding talents for the
Company.

In 2021, the number of projects under
our management increased from 133
to 196, and our demand for employees
increase significantly, which offers great
employment opportunities to the society.
As of the end of the Reporting Period,
the Group had a total of 7,225 employees
(2020: 5,507).
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The Group has a planned and clear
promotion path for employees. We
have a prioritized promotion mechanism
for internal personnel under the same
conditions to provide guarantee for the
development of employees within the
Group. In the reporting year, a total of 96
mid-level staff members (2020: 16) were
promoted within the Group, accounting
for 75% of the total number of new
mid-level staff members (2020: 39%).
The Group provides equal promotion
opportunities for junior staff in various
divisions to encourage them to grow and
surpass themselves, and to contribute
more to the development of the Group.

The Group strives to make our remuneration
in line with prevailing industry rate. For
the aspects in which we lag behind
other enterprises, the Group will strive to
improve to the average level to increase
the attraction for talents for the Group.
In the future, the Group will further
specify our position requirements to
recruit suitable staff and provide on-the-
job trainings to reduce turnover rate of
the coming year.
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In the process of managing human
resource, the Group formulates standard
working-hour systems in strict accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China. We provide
reasonable overtime pay and subsidies
for overtime hours. We follow the
regulations on statutory holidays and
arrange employees to take vacations.
For employees who must remain on
duty, such as guards, cleaners and other
special positions, we provide rest days or
overtime payment. When an employee
resigns, the Group pays compensation
according to the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, as well
as certain humanitarian compensation
according to the actual situation. These
measures effectively protect the rights
and interests of employees.
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Employee benefits

The Group considers its employees to be
its most important asset and strives to give
them maximum and meticulous care. We
try to make it so that they feel they are part
of a warm family when they are working in
the Group. According to the specific needs
of our employees, we provide significant
benefits for them in various ways. We care
about what our employees think, and we are
eager to meet their needs. We provide them
with the following benefits: lunch allowance,
accommodation, festival gifts, physical
examinations, heatstroke prevention, targeted
financial relief and employee insurance. In
2021, the Group bought employer liability
insurance for 1,137 retired employees (2020:
813) who have been re-engaged by the Group
in order to provide protection for their health
and safety.

The Group reviewed the above welfare system
and employee needs on a regular basis and
ensured multiple measures and policies have
been applied. These measures allowed the
employees to feel the care and warmth of the
Group, and effectively alleviated the problem
of staff turnover in the property service
industry under current environment.
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In the reporting year, the turnover rates are as
follows. As the Group is in the property service
industry, the main lost employees are security
personnel and cleaners and other grassroots
employees. In this regard, the Group has taken
measures such as adjustment of standard

wages for posts, reasonable arrangement of

IKIF o employee shifts, and taken a number of care
and welfare measures for employees, so that
the relevant turnover rate is lower than the
average level in the industry.

RERE S RERARES BRHEEHS
By gender By age By geographical location
20~
EERXE/ % g o Q0% 408 )A40E T L  I& IE 8@

Turnover rate/% Male Female <20 20~40 >40 Zhejiang Shanghai Jiangsu Jiangxi  Haihai

2021 16.48  18.46 0.06 21.29  13.59 33.68 0.47 0.49 0.30 —

2020 18.38 3.15 0.02 0.02 2.52 4.96 0.14 0.00 0.00 —
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The Group attaches great importance to the
health of employees and the safety of the
working environment. We have stipulated
control procedures for environmental safety
operations and occupational health and safety
operations in the enterprise management
manual. The Group strictly abides by relevant
laws and regulations such as the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and the Norms for the Management
of Labor Protective Articles for Employers, so
as to provide employees with a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment.
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Protective gears

The Comprehensive Management Division
purchases safety protection equipment
regularly, and the purchased products are
required to be designated with the product
safety qualification identification mark issued
by the national testing institution. The division
is not allowed to buy unqualified products.
Public protective equipment is kept in special
custody to ensure that each service center can
respond effectively and in a timely manner
in the event of an emergency. During the
reporting period, the cumulative cost of
purchasing safety protection equipment of the
Group reached RMB2,028,400.

Occupational health system for
employees’ health

Physical health and personal safety are the
basic guarantees necessary for people to
pursue a better life. The Group adheres to this
people-oriented idea and attaches importance
to the health of its employees. In addition
to providing regular physical examinations to
employees, the Comprehensive Management
Division establishes health records for all
staff and workers, and cooperates with other
divisions to identify, prevent and treat diseases
in accordance with the Law on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases of the
People’s Republic of China, so as to ensure
early diagnosis and treatment of any potential
diseases.

The construction of the Group’s occupational
health and safety management system has
achieved its initial results, and the system
has been certified by the GB/T45001-2020
idt 1SO45001:2018 and GB/T28001-2011 idt
OHSAS 18001: 2007 authentication standard.
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201922021 - A& B B1AE B From 2019 to 2021, one person of the Group
HRERRAETIEHBE TR - 2021 died during work due to sudden illness. The
FERIEBRET: work-related injuries up to the grade in 2021

are as follows:

ERTHEAE(ER: A) Number of work-related injuries up to the

grade (unit: number) 2
ERIGHELIXIERH Lost days due to work injury up to the

grade 187
RE—TNBREAEEZTER  1E In order to further strengthen the safety
BEIRZEH  REASEEVE management of the Group, raise the safety
MBITERLZD  AEETFHAS awareness of employees, and ensure the safety
BETIESLTE2HE - 2021F - K& of the Group’s property and employees’ lives,
BEIZ2HEHRIRTRRE the Group organizes employees to receive
5,621/ N\ - 234 A 855,486 A - safety education on a regular basis. In 2021,
Heh - SMHBEI XN R5% - the Group's employees had attended safety
T B T2t A56% @ BilE education and training for a total of 5,621
NN hours, with a total of 5,486 participants. 95%

male employees and 56% female employees
had attended the safety education and
training. The specific data is as follows:

AYZINER
2l A (B @ /N B)
Average
Safety education and training time
ZEHEHER training category Participants (unit: hours)
RBEERIE Traffic Safety Training 4,831 1
B AE R 25 Fire and Electricity Safety
Training 114 1.5
H =2 ERE Fire Safety Management
Training 78 2
Hi 2 2157 Other types of safety training 463

LIRS EEER AT FEERE 2021 143



144

IREE - HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2021 AEBE2HEMNEEE H B
fbEiBhEREE - NE - KEFE
HINEABMARBIZENE  BEFR
R BEAAB RRABIREE
HERBEERENES « BofiE -
EEE HTHE ZEBRLSAHN
ERAHEHERES: LN BEX
BEREEFEEMEMNE IES
¥rEREEH BIHASE L
- FEAMEFEREN - MRFHE

= 35 ==
=1

o

'mi}

REBRKETSRE P LE H K
TR BEEER  2021F & 1B
HRFEE(EAREET B RIEHE
HEZHZHBEFENBEE) - B
BRAFENREIREAERES
REBANFMHREILE LR
BERBSRYEUBHLBEIHREREE
Bh - 20214 2 5 & WA K 86,150

7T|: o

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

In 2021, the Group comprehensively
strengthened the implementation of
normalized epidemic prevention and control
measures. Relevant personnel in residential
areas and buildings under the management
of the Group had stepped up efforts to
prevent and control the epidemic spreading
from outsiders, checking their health codes,
and measuring their body temperature.
Cleaners regularly disinfect public areas such
as elevators, unit access control, E mailboxes,
underground garages, and children’s
playgrounds that are frequently used according
to the standards of the Group. In addition, the
housekeeper actively promoted the knowledge
of epidemic prevention to the owners and
improved the self-protection awareness of the
owners. Employees wore masks while working,
checked their own health code before working,
and disinfected their hands.

The Group strictly complies with the
epidemic control requirements of the local
government departments in places where
each service center is located. In 2021 when
the epidemic was still spreading, the Group
issued the Notice on Handling Attendance
and Other Related Matters during the Period
of Preventing and Controlling the COVID-19
to make sure that various departments
could guarantee the salary of employees
in emergencies such as being isolated due
to the epidemic, and paid some employees
epidemic-control allowance according to actual
needs. In 2021, the Group has paid a total of
RMB86,150 of epidemic-control allowances.
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Modern enterprises compete in terms of
talents. As the advancement of knowledge
and technology accelerate, enterprises
are required to innovate continuously and
introduce new technologies and philosophy
through staff training. Staff training enhances
the understanding of enterprise decision and
executive ability of staff and enables our staff
to familiarize with our management philosophy
and advanced management approach. The
advancement of our staff strengthens our
competitiveness continuously.

The Group has implemented the Regulation
for Training Management of Workers and
Staff Members to regulate staff training. It
is committed to improving the staff training
system, formulating an exclusive development
path for each employee, stimulating the
potential of employees, and supporting their
development. The Talent Echelon Development
Plan aims to further facilitates the talent
development efforts and helps the Group
retain outstanding talents and achieve long-
term development.

Talent echelon for career development
The Group anticipates talent demand based
on its business development and identifies
external engagement needs based on the
status of human resources. In 2021, the Group
continued to establish the talent training
system, perform scientific training for and
evaluation on staff at different stages and
posts based on their capabilities, personalities
and career development needs to select talents
to form a talent echelon and establish a sound
talent development mechanism.
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Set Sail Scheme

For the newly recruited grass-roots
employees such as butlers, engineering
personnel, housekeeping personnel and
cleaners, the Group provides them with
general courses and training materials
required for specific posts in accordance
with the Operation Guidelines for New
Employee Pre-job Training:

e general courses: corporate culture,
human resources system, and
etiquette;

e training materials required for
specific posts: post introduction,
post safety knowledge.

In order to help new employees quickly
master the skills required for posts, their
instructors will guide them according
to the Task List. The project managers
and the instructors will jointly check and
review whether the new employees have
mastered the required skills according
to the Appraisal Form for Employees in
Performing Tasks.
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> Navigator Scheme

Management personnel training
camp

For new management personnel,
the Group designs training programs
based on their competency models,
provide systematic training as
well as asking them to put what
they have learned into practice,
so as to continue to build a talent
pool. We conduct offline training
for management personnel, and
let them learn independently on
the online platform, and make
task list for them according to
job requirements to improve their
business capability and management
capability.

Project Managers Training Camp

For new project managers, according
to the needs of the Group's strategic
development and the establishment
of a talent echelon, the Group
focuses our training on three aspects:
changing cognition, teamwork,
and ability improvement. We have
developed 12 targeted training
courses, and formulated diversified
and long-term training programs
with mentor providing guidance and
these programs help the Company to
develop talents from within.
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Chuying Program

The Group is well aware that the
cultivation of talents recruited from
universities is of great significance to
the improvement of business quality
and project management. Therefore, we
continue to improve the management
trainee projects system and optimize
related processes, including certification
assessment, off-the-job training, and
mentoring. In 2021, the Group had
20 on-the-job management trainees,
of which 5 had been promoted to
management and 4 had been promoted
to leaders, so that they have become
outstanding reserve talents of the Group.

In 2021, the Group held the Management
Trainee World Coffee Symposium.
Through the World Coffee Symposium,
we asked the management trainees to
fully discuss the topic of the symposium,
from the four aspects of teamwork,
business improvement, self-learning and
suggestions, and according to their actual
work. We encourage them to output the
discussion results by pooling the wisdom
of the team, to put forward reasonable
suggestions for the development of the
Company.
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Providing different types of training to
help employees improve their skills

>

Offline training

In order to effectively help employees
to enrich their professional skills,
expand their professional abilities, and
cultivate high-level professional ethics
and behaviours, the Group has launched
various types of offline training programs
for talents at different levels, and
organized professional training lecturers
to give lectures. The relevant departments
of the Group conducts qualification
assessment on lecturers before the
training courses. After the lecture, the
trainees will rate on the quality of the
training courses to ensure their quality
and effectiveness.

In 2021, the offline training provided by
the Group is as follows:

2021 2020

FHER B2

BAAR (B E) FAAR (B )

Number of Training hours Number of  Training hours

EAlEE Training programs participants  (unit: hours) participants (unit: hours)

AB Orientation training 4,546 4,717 5,061 5,061

EESEAT Vocational skills training 9,749 49,449 1,19 24,272
XA Professional qualification

training 746 11,274 61 744

BREE Learning from peers 208 2,014 62 496

EBE Legal training 74 22 7 7

@i Total 15323 67,676 6,380 30,573
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AR _F 155 > Online training
2015 - REE—HITEEBR In 2021, in order to further create a
HERE TTBALTERR learning atmosphere in the Group and
€ AEBRAETNEIZE] set up the development path for talents,
mEBIFE AEBER the Group has developed the “Binjiang
ElbBRHE - BERRER K Academy”, an online training platform,
BEHMES  FEITEHRED which includes standardized courseware,
NEE - learning results tracking and learning
maps, etc., so that employees can learn
by themselves.
HEREHR SL2EPL As at the end of the reporting period,
RERRBBFHR S2BHE the courses of the online learning center
BRETHE HEF H =48 were classified according to the types
AEMER - ARBOTEE: of learners and their learning progress.
SITARME FHEEEME We shared a total of 48 courses and
FTEEME BEIAM- related materials, including: newcomers
set sail camp, professional voyager camp,
management navigator camp, and career
toolbox.
BASIARLBEYE A Through the introduction of the online
HIEERTEIRIEERE learning platform, we have effectively
EUE - E—FTRERAR improved the efficiency of employee
BERNVATHNEERK - training and operations of the Group,
and further met the Group’s talent
training needs in the process of rapid
development.
=R B R B 1 The percentage of training hours
LEB - AR R AR by gender and level is shown in the
following table:
2021F # K EHREE T
(A) ABESH R (N
Percentage
of the
corresponding
number at the Average
End of 2021 end of the  training hours
(number) period (hours)
XYIBHET Male trainee 3,725 100% 11.87
RulkHET Female trainee 3,500 100% 6.70
RIFEERE Trained non-management 6,354 100% 9.37
RINERE Trained management 871 100% 14.20

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Laws and protection of staff’s rights and
interests

In strict accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the People’s Republic of
China, such as the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group protects the lawful rights
and interests of their employees. The Group
and its subsidiaries pay salaries on time
without any arrears and pay social insurance
premiums and housing fund for employees. As
of the end of the Reporting Period, our social
insurance and housing fund fully covered all
employees except for those who have retired
but were recruited again by the Group or its
subsidiaries.

The Group attaches great importance to the
communication among employees, care much
about them, and creates an equal, respectful
and harmonious working environment for
them. We maintain a atmosphere of harmony
and common progress within the Company,
listen carefully to employees’ valuable opinions
and make improvements according to the
opinions, and continuously improve employees’
sense of belonging and satisfaction.
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Survey content

#1]

Details of Survey

In 2021, the Group conducted a satisfaction
survey on a total of 3,977 front-line
employees, grass-roots managers and middle-
level employees. We obtained feedback and
suggestions of employees from the three
aspects, namely, satisfaction with team
management, personal engagement and
recognition of the Company. The survey results
are as follows:

FHE5
Average Score

& B ' 2
Satisfaction with team management

NAREE
Recognition of the Company

(PN E P

Personal engagement

AR AEBEFENRETAER
RiE ~EREIEGZRERBRER
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HEKREE 93.9
Satisfaction with team

HERESE 94.4
Satisfaction with superiors

HRRERMER 91.2
Comments and suggestions on the

Company

B THEATERTMG 90.6

Employees’ evaluation on their own

work

In the future, the Group will continue to
broaden the communication channels for
employees, improve the establishment of
the employee rights protection system, and
continue to pay attention to the needs and
feedback of employees in work and life.
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Prohibition of forced labor and child
labor

Young children represent the future of the
country, and their healthy growth must be
protected in all walks of life throughout the
country. In accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China, such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Child
Labor, the Group and its subsidiaries explicitly
prohibit the employment of persons under
the age of 18 and conduct strict examinations
in the recruitment process so as avoid the
employment of underage individuals. The
human resources department of the Group
conducts random checks on the employment
situation from time to time. If child labor is
found, the relevant internal personnel will
be held accountable and reported to the
regulatory authorities.

The Group fully respects the freedom of its
employees and does not conduct any improper
activities, such as withholding their valid
certificates, collecting deposits, engaging in
forced labor or defaulting on remuneration
during the period of employment. The
Group has also set up an internal supervision
mechanism to ensure that no breaching
behavior will occur.

During the reporting period, the Group has
no underage employment or forced labour
occurred.

The Group strictly controls the selection
of suppliers for material procurement and
service outsourcing, and its purchase control
procedures have clearly specified rules for
supplier selection, the procurement process,
and verification of purchased products and
suppliers’ services. At the same time, through
effective communication, we constantly
consolidate and expand our partnerships with
suppliers to stabilize supply channels and
ensure the supply quality.
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AEBHERIMHBERAT:

Annual evaluations for the procurement
process

Our Brand Operations Division and Integrated
Management Division are responsible
respectively for the procurement of materials
and outsourced services needed by the
Group for property service operations. When
selecting suppliers, the regional business units
must first report to the general headquarters.
Then, the procurement investigation team,
which consists of the functional divisions of
the headquarters and the regional business
units, evaluates, examines and verifies
the suppliers, and produces a Supplier
Investigation/Evaluation Form. After this Form
is approved by the general manager, the
suppliers in the form will be included in the
List of Qualified Suppliers.

In order to strengthen supplier management
and procurement control, the Procurement
Commission evaluates the suppliers each
year to eliminate any underperformed or
unqualified suppliers. The Commission also
regularly updates the List of Qualified Suppliers
to ensure procurement quality. As at the end
of 2021, a total of 100 suppliers were included
in the centralized procurement scope, an
increase of 22% from 82 at the end of 2020.

The distribution of the Group’s suppliers is as

follows:
Bf: R Unit : Number m 2020
WTER Within Zhejiang Province 95 82
AR =L Outside Zhejiang Province 5 0

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Green procurement from various sources
The Group has established a multi-
dimensioned assessment system for our
suppliers. The assessment team, headed by
the headquarter of the Group, consists of over
30 members, including financial personnel,
regional staff, vice president and president.
The number of the assessment team members
may vary depending on the business type.
Assessment staff varies based on different
types of business including new cleaning
outsourcing and service outsourcing, and
will be more specified and professional. Each
service center corresponds to an outsourcing
supplier and procurement proposals will be
optimized based on regions. Outsourcing
suppliers will be provided trainings from both
parties, i.e., trainings offered by the supplier
itself and trainings offered by us. At the
same time, we will purchase insurance for
the personnel sent by suppliers. In addition,
we conduct inspections that last for one to
two months on the safety of all tools of all
businesses of the Group, including outsourcing
business, biannually. Inspection staff mainly
comprised of engineering staff and temporary
staff.
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The Group attaches importance to the
environmental and social governance
performance of suppliers. In the Supplier
Investigation/Evaluation Form, the quality,
environment and occupational health system
authentication of the supplier constitutes 20
points (out of 100 in total). The supplier’s
corporate image, market reputation and
social evaluation accounts for 10 points. The
Group pays special attention to suppliers that
have a significant impact on society and the
environment, and exerts influence on them in
the following ways:

— The Group informs them of our
management policy in relation to quality,
the environment, and occupational health
and safety.

— The Group informs them of our
requirements regarding the environment
and occupational health and safety.

— If necessary, the Group makes a written
request to the supplier, or specifies
our requirements for environmental
protection, and occupational health and
safety management in related contracts
and agreements.
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Based on the enterprise principle of “owner
first, service first and quality first,” the Group’s
quality policy focuses on “sincerity, innovation,
perfection, safety, health and green
development,” and treats every customer with
sincerity. The Group uses scientific, reasonable
and advanced technology and concepts to
provide excellent services to customers. In
strict accordance with the requirements of the
Property Management Regulations issued by
the State Council, the Group has compiled the
Operational Instructions, Service Standards
of Binjiang Property Residential Quarters and
Standardized Management Manual of Binjiang
Service, which requires that every work process
must be improved with the ultimate goal of
meeting owners’ needs.

Ensure five-star quality

Our Group's aspiration of property service
is to refine our service quality continuously.
After years of practical experience and
innovations, the Group has established three
major service models with “three major value
service systems” as its core content. These
are, the community services based on the
characteristics of the property, individualised
service based on householder needs and
property management service based on the
property’s use as an investment product. The
core value of our Group's service is to provide
owners with a safe, comfortable and warm
living or office environment, while maximising
the value of properties of owners. For this
reason, the Group earnestly controls property
service standards and quality, and ceaselessly
promote the construction and development
of the Quality Management System, which is
certified by the 1SO09001:2015 Authentication
Standard. We strive to offer reliable and
excellent services.
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Focusing on key areas to ensure safety
As protecting the safety of owners is the
fundamental duty of property service
providers, the Group place great importance
on the health and safety of owners. The Group
promises to provide safe accommodations
for owners, adhere to the safety inspection
system, and regularly carry out item-by-item
inspections for safety risks. The Group also
promises to ensure that all safety hazards are
rectified within the time limit in a manner that
“involves the owners, puts the government
in charge, and is coordinated by property
management.” In the reporting year, the
Group mainly focused on the following tasks
in each residential project:
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Fire Safety

The Group adopts the policy of “focusing
on fire prevention and managing fire
safety through fire prevention and fire-
fighting” for fire safety management, and
requires each service center to organize
fire drills at least once a year with the
purpose of enhancing the fire prevention
awareness and emergency response
capacity of staff members and residents.
In addition, the Overall Management
Division provided firefighting knowledge
and skills training to certain persons from
each service center and set up voluntary
fire brigades. The voluntary fire brigades
are required to put out any fires and
evacuate people before the arrival of
the fire department, so as to minimize
personal casualties and property loss. In
order to eliminate fire accidents caused
by battery flammability, the Group also
checked battery motors placed at upper
floors and required that the battery
motors be moved to the ground floor.

BT A B ERER
Binjiang Services organizes fire drills
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Epidemic Prevention

During the outbreak of epidemic,
property management service providers
have been an essential force for basic
social governance while property
management service personnel shoulder
the responsibilities for prevention of
the spreading of the epidemic. “Go
Where There Is Epidemic, Fight It till
It Perishes” was a commitment of Xi
Jinping, the general secretary of the
Chinese Communist Party, to fight the
epidemic. As the backbone for protecting
community, property management
service providers played an important
role in ensuring the safety and security
of community and living environment of
property owners during the outbreak of
the epidemic.

As the Group stayed alert on the
large public health issue and assumed
its responsibilities for community
security, the management of the Group
anticipated the development of the
epidemic and took effective measures
for prevention of the spreading of the
epidemic by promptly establishing a
task force to coordinate the deployment
of staff and procurement of materials.
Our prompt response, professional
management and allocation of manpower
and resources during the battle against
the epidemic were highly recognized by
property owners and local governments
as well as the national and local media
such as the People’s Daily and the CCTV,
etc..
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Renewal of the privacy protection policy
The Group believes that effective protection
and management of owners’ privacy is an
essential factor in the establishment of long-
term trust and friendly cooperation between
owners and the property service provider.
The Group strictly abides by relevant laws
and regulations for the protection of personal
data and privacy, and make clear provisions
in the Operation Instructions. On the one
hand, property service personnel are required
to sign a “confidentiality agreement” when
they start to work for us to strictly keep the
owners’ information and related materials
confidential. The owner’s informational
files must be sealed and stored at the time
when the house is delivered. On the other
hand, we have formulated the Management
Regulations for the Information System,
Computers and Network. The Group also only
allows electronic informational materials to
be accessed by authorized users. Access to
the information must first be examined and
approved by the division head in order to
ensure that the network runs efficiently and
that electronic informational materials are
effectively protected.
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Seeking opinions for improvement

Our success depends on the satisfaction of
householders. To uncover weak points in our
services, the Group makes every effort to
listen to the voices of householders in order
to increase their satisfaction and improve
our service quality. The Group performs
owner satisfaction assessments with regard
to property services in a variety of ways
and conduct owner satisfaction surveys in
several levels, namely a comprehensive survey
conducted by the Group at the end of each
year, an interim sample survey conducted by
the Company, a monthly telephone sample
survey and a quarterly communication
with owners’ committees. Through the
multidimensional survey data we acquire, we
perform overall and specific assessments on
the work quality and achievements of each
service center. The Group regards each survey
as a valuable opportunity for communication
to understand the actual needs of owners.
The Group makes vertical comparison between
results of annual satisfaction surveys, so as to
improve our services and address the needs of
owners.

In 2021, the Group launched a questionnaire
survey to owners (office buildings, residences)
on customer service, engineering maintenance
services, order maintenance services, cleaning
and greening services, park cultural activities,
and complaint management, and received high
recognition from the owners.
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Building honest operations and
constantly guarding against corruption
Misconduct in commercial activities, such
as embezzlement, bribery, extortion,
money laundering, violating the enterprise’s
interests, violating the principle of fair trade
or damaging the enterprise’s reputation,
will seriously disrupt the Group’s normal
management and operations. The Group
therefore firmly opposes and expressly
prohibits these types of misconducts.

In consideration of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China against Unfair Competition,
the Group has put in place specific provisions
for anti-corruption control processes in its
operational instructions. The Group has
also set up a comprehensive and detailed
anticorruption system. To enhance the
construction of a clean governance and
democratic supervision mechanism inside
the Group, we execute the system in a
comprehensive manner. The system has a
zero-tolerance policy, and the Group works to
ensure the system has no blind spots. The anti-
corruption system is based on macro planning,
the enterprise’s real circumstances, temporary
and permanent goals, and short and long-term
goals.

The Group also conducts anti-corruption and
anti-money laundering training for the member
of the Board and key management personnel,
make sure they know the consequences of
conflicts of interest and corruption and bribery,
and ensure that directors and employees are
familiar with and understand the policies and
procedures formulated by the Group to prevent
corruption and bribery, and understand the
price of corruption.
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An open reporting channel and
improvements to the anti-corruption
mechanism

In August 2017, the Group established an
internal discipline supervision and inspection
team, and appointed the Wang Guoyi, the
vice president, as the team leader. The Group
set up a supervision and report bulletin
boards at the Group headquarters and
service centers, and provided contact phone
numbers, mailboxes and mailing addresses to
ensure that any unfair actions or disciplinary
violations within the Group can be effectively
communicated through open channels. At
the same time, the Group encourages reform
and innovation and has sought to enhance
the supervision and management of the
enterprise’s assets by establishing a restraint
mechanism. We also enhanced the corporate
governance structure to enable checks and
balances. We work to improve the enterprise
management personnel selection system,
and we have established a standardized
employment mechanism. In this way, we can
prevent instances of corruption from the very
start.

Reporting channel:
»  Email of Anti-Corruption: fwb@hzbjwy.com
During the Reporting Period, the Group did

not receive any complaint or report regarding
anti-corruption.
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The Group is committed to building a
harmonious and inclusive relationship between
the enterprise and communities. In daily
operational management, the Group takes into
consideration the community’s interests and
the needs of residents and actively organizes
various kinds of community activities. While
cultivating a sense of belonging for residents,
we also seek to realize social corporate
benefits at a higher level.

Pay attention to people’s livelihood and
revitalize the countryside

In order to adhere to the assistance principle of
“people’s livelihood first, mutual benefit, win-
win cooperation, and common development”,
the Group has adopted measures such as
allocating more resources to impoverished
villages, providing support for projects, and
establishing mechanisms, to strengthen
cooperation and exchanges with impoverished
villages and make the comprehensive strength
of villages to a new level. During the Reporting
Period, the Group signed an assistance
agreement with Yiyin Village, Kela Township,
Sichuan Province, donating RMB100,000 to
them as an assistance fund. The Group also
launched a book donation initiative, fully
mobilizing helpful owners and employees to
donate 939 books to a school in Tibet. During
the year, in response to the Government’s
call, the Group actively participated in charity
donation activities for poverty-stricken areas.
Employees also actively participated in poverty
alleviation through the consumption and
purchase of agricultural products in poverty-
stricken areas. In 2021, the Group donated
RMB300,000 to the “Common Wealth Fund”
established by Kaixuan Street. The donation
will be used to support entrepreneurship
and basic social security for locals, reflecting
the commitment of the Group in fulfilling its
corporate responsibilities.
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Handyman services for home owners

As China has entered an aging society,
property service providers need to care
more about the elderly and provide more
convenience for owners who have the elderly
to take care of. The Group has been providing
services for the benefit of the people, and has
carried out a number of popular activities with
high participation of senior owners.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
carried out a total of 412 service activities to
benefit the people, covering more than 20,000
persons. In terms of home-based care for the
aged, the Group provides the elderly with
reassuring services and care.

BIRBARRRHAHERR  ERBREED

Binjiang Service conducts community activities that serve and facilitate residents
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During the period of preventing and
controlling epidemic, Xianghu No. 1 service
center, and other service centers, including
those in Jinse Lanting service center, Wanjia
Huacheng Phase | service center, Shangyu
Yuelongfu service center provided a series of
convenient services for the elderly residents
in the community, and provided assistance to
help the elderly to solve their problems in life.



BRAES  FXZH
EoABTRBEER Y E BT - B
ZHERIEXIERT B ED -
ERESHENBERT  HMADAFE
REE-BFEENHRER - AKE
BREAHENHLRXCED B
EEXTBUHE LEREMHER
Bt IRERXRTEHOE  REL
REM HEET TEHET
2R -

20214F » REEZTEE W RE O
HERESBRBLE S ES Hat
59135 - 78 2 850,000 A )X °

RIR - HEREREHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Holiday activities

In the holidays and festivals that promote
traditional Chinese culture, we have a new
special mission, namely the prevention and
control of the COVID-19. When celebrating
festivals, we still need to put great efforts
to prevent and control the epidemic. When
holding community cultural activities to
celebrate festivals in the communities managed
by the Group, we should not only ensure
that owners can enjoy the festivals, but also
take epidemic prevention measures, such as
reminding owners to wear masks, maintain
social distance, and participate in activities in
groups to ensure their health.

In 2021, the service centers of the projects
under the management of the Group held
a total of 591 community cultural activities
during holidays, with more than 50,000
participants.
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ESG—RKTESEXR REFERENCE FOR GENERAL INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE FOR ESG

(R% HERERRERD) Ef
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Section

BEA R

Aspect A1: Emissions

A1 —REE 3 RERE
General Disclosure 3 Environmental
FRERRARZERBHR MAKRLHMES FEREERENNELEN: Protection
Information on:
@ BR:R

(@ the policies; and

b BETHEOAREAZEORBLERANNESR -

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer.

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

AL BRnRERABRERAE 31 HEY
The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1 Emissions

A1.2 EREEVRERRAR(BE)EZRBHNENEGE)R(MER)ZE(WUSEREN BB 31 HEY
i) 3.1 Emissions

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A13 MELRERENLEMAE) R(MEREE (MABEBEN  8EREHE) - i1
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Note 1
volume, per facility).

A4 MELRERENEECEAE)R(PER) BE(WNBEEEN  BERMHE) - Gl
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Note 1
volume, per facility).

A15 BRMITUNFRERERARIELERHARNSR - 31 BB
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 3.1 Emissions
Al6 HAREAEREZEENNI L REAMITUNAEEERAENELERMEROIR - 32 ER{EA

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) 3.2 Use of Resources
set and steps taken to achieve them.
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(R5 HERERBERD)
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EEA2:ERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2

A2

A22

A23

A2.4

A25

EEHA3:BRER

-REE
General Disclosure
ERERER(BAEER KREMBENE)MER

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

RRNEAMERR/IHELR(NE AR BRENTATAKHE) REE (MUBESEN

BERME) -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRKEREZRE(MIABEBEN BHEREHE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BTN RERAREERRAEINELARMRARN IR -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

AR EERKR LR EMERE  ARAT RN GARRAEINELARHRARNSR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

HRmAABEMHNRB A E) R(NER) B EEMEE -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

ARER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3

—BRE
General Disclosure
REBTAHRERAREREREAY ENHE -

Policies on minimising the issuers significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.

BB RDURARARE RN ERY ERERNERARY ENTD -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

~HRE

General Disclosure

BRREUERRAREHETAELYENEARREBEENNK -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

HACERI e HETAEEYENEARGEBEE REHTY -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

Ef

Section

32 ERER

3.2 Use of Resources

32 BRFFA
3.2 Use of Resources

32 ERfRA
3.2 Use of Resources
32 BREfEA
3.2 Use of Resources
32 AREA

3.2 Use of Resources

i
Note 1

33 BERBRE
R

3.3 Environment
and Natural
Resources

33 RERAERE
R

3.3 Environment
and Natural
Resources

34 BHREREE

3.4 Addressing
Climate Changes

34 BHREZ
3.4 Addressing
Climate Changes
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(R5 HERERRERD) Ef
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Section

EREEIER

Employment and Labour Practices

EEB1: E R

Aspect B1: Employment

B1

B1.1

B1.2

~HBE 41 ER
General Disclosure 4.1 Employment
FEFMREE REREN LERE RE TERE Sl REBUREMEERENN:

Information on:

@ HE: R

(@  the policies; and

b BETHETAREAFEMRBZRRADINEH -

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

RUR - BRER(MEBIRE) FRANREREANNERLY - 41 BR

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or parttime), age group and geographical 4.1 Employment
region.

BILR - FRANRBEENNERRALE 41 EE
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 4.1 Employment

EEB: REHEZ2
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

B2

B2.1

-BEE 42 BERRAR
General Disclosure 2
BRRERETIERSRREREEEBERLEN: 4.2 Occupational
Information on: Health and

@ HEFERR Safety

a)  the policies; and

{

b EFHETAREAYENRBERRAOINEH -

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to

providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BEZFREERFRE)BFAITHMASRIL X - 42 BEREAER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the reporting Ea

year. 4.2 Occupational
Health and
Safety
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(B% HEREREERESDD
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
B2.2 RIGEXIERE
Lost days due to work injury.

B2.3 BRMRANBERREZ2ER URBBEROTREENE -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

EMEB3: ¥R RS

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 —-REE
General Disclosure
BARABERTIERENNBRRAHBR - Bl FNEY -

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

B3.1 RESIRESERN(NEREEE TREBEZ)ASNXINEREAL -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

B3.2 RURIREEEANES  BEEERARINTHREY -

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

BRI EEAR AR FERE 2021

Ef
Section

42 BEREAEY
Ea

4.2 Occupational
Health and
Safety

42 BERRAER
Ea

4.2 Occupational
Health and
Safety

43 BIEE%
B

4.3 Training and
Development of
Staff Members

43 BIRJIE%
E

4.3 Training and
Development of
Staff Members

43 BIEHEg
&

4.3 Training and
Development of
Staff Members
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(R5 HERERRERD) B
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Section

EHB4: &I %A
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

B4 —RBE 44 BTk
General Disclosure 4.4 Staff Rights and
BRAMELEIRRHATIHN: Interests
Information on:

@ HRR

a)  the policies; and

) ETHETAREAYENHBLIARAANEH o

b} compliance with relevant laws and requlations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

B4.1 BB AEENANEENBEETIREIIST - 44 BTER
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour. 4.4 Staff Rights and
Interests
B4.2 BREZRERBAREREBERAMERNSE 44 5T1ER
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 4.4 Staff Rights and
Interests
2EED

Operating Practices
EEBS fEHEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BS —-REE 45 fEEERE
General Disclosure 4.5 Supply Chain
EEMERNRERASRBIR Management
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

BS.1 BrEEHIMREHHA - 45 fEEERE
Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.5 Supply Chain

Management

B5.2 BLEBERHEEBNEDN nANTABENNASENE URBRBNOROTRERENE - 45 fEEEE
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are being 4.5 Supply Chain
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management

B5.3 BREBHAMEESARSNRERLCABNEN  JRABATRERAE 45 fERE R
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain, and how they 4.5 Supply Chain
are implemented and monitored. Management

B5.4 BAEREREGARRESRRRERRRENEN N ABRTRERAE - 45 fEEERE
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services when selecting 4.5 Supply Chain
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
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(R5 HERERBERD) B
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Section

EEB6:EREML
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
B6 —REE 46 EmRE
General Disclosure 4.6 Product Liability
FHMRHEEANRBNERERS BES RERLBSEIRENAEN:
Information on:;
@ HEX:R
a)  the policies; and
b BIHETAGERYENRBZERANNEH -
b} compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

(
(
(

B6.1 BENEEREMBRPRR 2 ERERAMERRNAS L - 2
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. Note 2
B6.2 REARERRRBENRFHEURELF L 46 EmEH
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with. 4.6 Product Liability
B6.3 MAEEERREARERABNEDN - 2
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights. Note 2
B6.4 BREERTEBRERERLYREF - 46 EmEME
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 4.6 Product Liability
B6.5 BAEEZEERERLEBRE IREBRIRERLE 46 EmEF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. 4.6 Product Liability
BEB7:RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

B7 —RHBE 47 RER
General Disclosure 4.7 Anti-Corruption
BRAMLES 9F HFREREN: Measures
Information on:;
@ HRR

a)  the policies; and

b ETHETAREATENRBLIARAANEH -

b} compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

(
(
(

B7.1 RERBNHETARAEEREICELENA THRARENRERFALR - 47 RER
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees 4.7 Anti-Corruption
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. Measures

B7.2 HaBERERERER UREBROTRERE - 47 RER
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and 4.7 Anti-Corruption
monitored. Measures
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(R5 HERERRERD) Ef
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Section
B7.3 BAREEREIRMMRETHE - 47 BIEIER
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. &
4.3 Training and
Development of
Staff Members
HE
Community
BEBS: HERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
BS ~RRE 48 HERE
General Disclosure 4.7 Anti-Corruption
FROHE2ARTREEMEHERENEREZBEDEZRUBRAMNE - Measures
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities” interests.
B8.1 EIEEERE(NHE BREE SIFK BE X EE)- 48 HERE
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). 4.8 Investment
in our
Communities
B8.2 EEIEEMIREAR(MeBAKRE) - 48 HERE
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 4.8 Investment
in our
Communities

i1 REBNEETHSRETELE EHEEZEEY  Note 1: The Group’s operation does not involve heavy industrial

MPERFMBEEMANER BEEEWEEER production, and there is no discharge of hazardous waste
BXEMAEENRENES FREHTEEEE and use of packaging materials. It is difficult to distinguish
MRBEFHEESR AREFERETHA - the non-hazardous waste from the domestic waste of the

owners of the projects under management, and the amount
of discharge is closely related to the number of owners of the
scale of the projects under management. No statistics were
made during the Reporting Year.

2 REBRREREEBBR  ZEETER - Note 2: The Group has no relevant situation during the reporting
period, and this indicator is not applicable.
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EMGEE B HRE - BER20215F12A31
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TERB  ZERAVBBRREZRRBRERS
EEEe((BERGTERAEBEE]])EM
WEBETBERSER((EBRMERSER]
EEMP S R E S B R2021512A31H
MEGEHBERARBEZALFENGEAY
BRBNMEGEAERERE YEREZTEAR
GO EREZARE -

To the shareholders of Binjiang Service Group Co.
Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
187 to 320, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of

in our

the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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BARRELAFZEG
FRERERBUAER

BRI R BERI 1) RAF L BEHENZ3 -

BREREE
The Key Audit Matter

HE2021F12A31B L FE ESEEL LK
AARM13989BET BREMEEERS
JEXFIBE RS MSSIBERS (RN X118
BERBDBO WA Ed - #E2021F12H31H
IEFE  FEXTHERBUARAREL95
BET WEZE2020F12A31BEFENAR
%3120 BT IE IN34% °

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group generated total revenue of RMB1,398.9
million which comprised revenue from
property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and 5S value-
added services (formerly named as “value-
added services to property owners”). Among
which, revenue from value-added services to
non-property owners for the year ended 31
December 2021 totaled RMB419.5 million,
increasing by 34% from RMB312.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition of value-added services to
non-property owners

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNMNEESE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETEEXETHERBU A AERNEZREFE
B &8
Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition of
value-added services to non-property owners included
the following:

e EMLAKAMEEEIXETIHZERBURAER
ZERAMES 2R B MEEK

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the Group’s
revenue recognition of value-added services to
non-property owners;

s UHMEBEIARETEEFNRBERE  LAEEK
2T 1 A B 2 B B R IR AR IR AR A

o inspecting service contracts with customers on a
sample basis to understand and assess the terms
and conditions therein which may affect the
recognition of revenue;
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FEARFXEEHE)
FEEIRERBRARI(E)

DR BT RN 1) RAFE R B HMAH 23 -

BREREE
The Key Audit Matter

EEEFETFTEERBTOBRAZTZREMIM
BIFESEROGARAR(TEIEEDRA
MEBAR MEE AT ARARNEBE BT8RN
IR RABARY - ZEHERFEMTES
EEMNNEEZHD - EEE2ETTRITAHN
EEEINEEREHAEREHRA -

The Group’s revenue from value-added services
to non-property owners is mainly derived from
pre-delivery services and consulting services to
Hangzhou Binjiang Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.
(“Binjiang Real Estate”) and its subsidiaries
and associates, related parties of the Group.
These value-added services contribute a
significant part of the Group’s gross profit.
The Group recognises such revenue over time
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition of value-added services to
non-property owners (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNMNEESE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

e UHMEIALRFANTHNWRAXRSHEIEH
REER - REERUYE R A HFXMH  #F
MEEBEERNRITARE W AEBKA
EEERBEEEN K ABERABRETER

J comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year with
the underlying service contracts, service
acknowledgement receipts and their supporting
documents, invoices and bank-in slips for settled
balances and assessing whether the related
revenue had been recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies;

e UHKFIX HRMEBEIFEREMEBEAGK
B N EEY AR 75 B 8 LA K [A) 5 = 757 Ua EX Y AR 75
BREEMTSEE MEREBARBEFEETH
BAZEENRA WA EEEEEENSEN

° comparing, on a sample basis, service prices
charged to Binjiang Real Estate and its
subsidiaries and associates against service
prices charged to third parties and other market
data, enquiring of management the reasons for
any significant differences and assessing the
reasonableness of management explanations;
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FEARFXEHE)
FEEIRERBEARI(E)

BRI R BERI 1) RAF L BEHENZ3 -

BREREE
The Key Audit Matter

BEEELTRERGUARRET A B
HREZEE RAARKRADESEBREE
MER BFEERARGBRAEHROABEHR
ERERMANEBRVKEFMPEHNEFRAR -
We identified revenue recognition of value-
added services to non-property owners as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and there is
an inherent risk that revenue could be recorded
in an incorrect period or could be subject to
manipulation in order to achieve financial targets
and expectations.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition of value-added services to
non-property owners (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNMNEESE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

e UBFRABRTHMHEERSEMBEXH (R
ERGHEDWE LA FEXHMESR) AT
EHRERAREREZNSAHREER &

o comparing sales transactions recorded just
before and after the year end with the relevant
underlying documents, including service
acknowledgement receipts and their supporting
documents and invoices, to assess if the related
revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
accounting period; and

s FELEHFABENIFEXETIHLERBUAER
BENMBATFRE ARTEEETIENR
BHREWAMET N mEEE X -

o scrutinising all manual journal entries relating
to revenue of value-added servers to non-
property owners which were raised during the
year, enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and inspecting underlying
documentation on a sample basis.
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FEARFXEEHE)
EZRBURENAACEERRRE

R e HENGTIM) - A EREN T
145% B 4#23(a) °

BREREE
The Key Audit Matter

R20215F12A31H - ESBEREE=ZTTNES
W REBEBEAARKNIEE L MEH
EEEENEERBBARAREN3IEET -
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross
trade receivables from third parties and a loss
allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)
amounted to RMB110.3 million and RMB31.3
million, respectively.

EEENEBESRNARBEIZEREIRYESR
& 7 B JE MR o

The Group's trade receivables comprise mainly
receivables from property owners and property
developers.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables

Refer to accounting policy note 1(m), note 14 and note
23(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNMNEESE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEAHESRURNENEHEEERRBNE
ZIEFBERETNIIRIE:

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables included the following:

e EMEFNMHEMEERS - BHEUKHIES I -
BRI MR E  EEBEEGBRIANEZ

%&ﬂ%ma B REERCR

J obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, segmentation of trade receivables,
ageing analysis review, and estimation of credit
loss allowances;

e ERBIEMEANKRTOEELEH MGG
EEERENEE

o evaluating the Group's policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standard;

e EMERBELKANBEHEEEBEERNHER
FELABR BEEBEEEREEBES
JEWFIBETHESOEE  FLEHBEM
ERENERABREMILHNRKRR:

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the basis
of segmentation of trade receivables based on
credit loss characteristics, historical default data
and assumptions involved in management’s
estimation of loss rate;
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FEARFXEHE)
EZRURENFRHGEBHRRE(E)

REEHBENZIM) A FEREZNE
145% B 4#23(a) °

BREREE
The Key Audit Matter

EREEANRBEBEAAGEARERASENHT
REFNEEEN  BESRKWKRENRK - B
EBHBEE  BATABEMR A RE ®EHRAA
EMHER REZHFERFEFENEBRE
EFBESENSHITEEERE -

Management measure the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL of trade
receivables based on the loss patterns for
different customers grouped according to the
shared credit risk characteristics, ageing of
trade receivables, historical loss rates, current
economic conditions and forward-looking
information at the end of each reporting period.

EEBESREFENTERGEESE R BHE
TR-EEREZERE  RAREZEKNA
MERHEEEGAMBREMEBER K
EHEEFRENBERFEBANTE LMY
NREBENE XN -

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the
balance of trade receivables is material to the
Group's consolidated financial statements
and the recognition of expected credit loss is
inherently subjective and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(m), note 14 and note
23(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNMNEESE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

e HEEREFRBABREBMRARESRE LD
EREBELGAMRANEN  2RAAE
SENBBERESER  UREBEZALBEMNRR
MATEUEENTHBEEERXREORLZERE

J assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimation of loss allowance and examining
the information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information;

e BBNHMEAIALBRE  BRNHEHMMEMENX
o AEEFERRAERRBENIEESDEAR
BRE N

J assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing with
the demand notes, invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation, on a sample basis;
and

e RBEESEENGCEBREEERRENGFER
ZE2021F12A3 B E BEE -

o re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2021 based on the
Group's credit loss allowance policies

BITIRISEEARAT FERE 2021
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REVBRRRRRBEAREUININER

EEAYUHBERARRT  HER R
FERRER(GAVBREREZORY
B4R B 5N B A R -

EEHRAVBERRFENERLERER
MmEH MESTEHEBERNBERTMAE
A EEW

IESEREEMBREAME  BFMNEML
REEBEMEN KMEEEMERREL R
FAVBRRIEEEERBETRENE
BEEEANT ST FEERERRAL -

WESERDRTHTIERALLER SR
EREREN  FEERSEWEE o Bt -
EEAAELRE o

EERAAMBRRARENER

EFERAaRRBEReERESEMBER
BB R B 7 3RS R R BB A RR I8 B
RERBUABLDANGEEMBE MK - UK
HESRRYUREGEUMBREIMNETBLE
MATESNAE  WEEAFEARNKFRL
ERMEHMERERERAL

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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EENGEMBRRARENER(E)

EREGAaMBHRE EFRAARTEE
SEFBEENRN URBEEFELLER
ANERWER)  RFEZHRKERER
BIEL2E B ZITELMERR
TORE BAARANSBERCERERD
GEA

ERZEEWMHEETRIRSEEEEEY
BREEFOHEE -

RBARERGSUBRRAERENER

EENEERAERELZTHRAMBHRE
BMERETHFEANRFHERMEHD
ERERRML YELHEEFEROKE
AR - BEERNEBBRRBRE - BRI
BEENRETABIEEMAE - EFH A5
ARENATHETAEMA LR B I AEX
B’EME-

EHEEETBSERANZE HEIERERE
EEECEAETHNER IERREEEME
FEEERBERBRA - 5558 R 7] F B EF 2 88
REL HEMNXEBEBEAEEMBERTA
TEERERBEAMBRR]FLNEER
ER BB BRAERERRM

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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BB ERREMBRRARENEE

(%)

s HEHAMBHERNBBERIA &
BEAR(BREBREEN)  UAREEY
BHRERETERBEBEIZRER -

e PMESEANERIAEBIDONMBER
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REAEZEHEME -
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EEETEA -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2022



AERaRHEMEERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

H Z=2021912 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021

(A A R¥ 0% 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20214 20204

2021 2020

B it AR®E Tt NG B

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

A Revenue 3(a) 1,398,947 960,201
55 & Ak AN Cost of sales (949,270) (662,884)
E A Gross profit 449,677 297,317
E fb g A Other revenue 4 9,946 10,321

Hile A (E518) Other net income/(loss)

F FE 4 808 (544)
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses (3,766) (2,680)
TR 2 Administrative expenses (53,599) (39,768)
B 5 W IE R (A Impairment loss on trade receivables

& 18 23(a) (12,140) (11,491)
H S Other expenses (1,141) (195)

m&xNm®  Profitfrom operations = 389,785 252,960
& U A Finance income 32,861 30,973
& AR Finance costs (689) (541)

BABAF®E  Netfinanceincome . 5@ 32172 30,432
D B2 X aE FEE Share of profits less losses of

&5 18 associates 1,357 560
DIEEE D EFERE  Share of profits less losses of a joint

&5 18 venture (96) —
B i &1 A E Profit before taxation 5 423,218 283,952
Frigsit Income tax 6 (98,197) (63,678)
FEFHE Profit for the year 325,021 220,274
DNT&FEMN: Attributable to:

RRAR R KRE Equity shareholders of the Company 321,751 219,550
FEPE R = Non-controlling interests 3,270 724
325,021 220,274
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GERmRHEMEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#H Z=20219F12 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021
(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20215 20204
2021 2020
o] INGeaEEn AREF T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

FEFNE Profit for the year 325,021 220,274

FEHMZERKZ Other comprehensive income
(MBRBERERH for the year (after tax and

DTHEARE) reclassification adjustments)
TEEHFHEEIEE  Items that will not be reclassified to
FIE R profit or loss:
BMERNRYPHBHE  Exchange differences on translation of
MEEZER Z5 financial statements of the Company (6,543) (17,218)

HEAEEHF B E  Items that may be reclassified

BamIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
HMEFINHEARET  Exchange differences on translation
BHREMEEZ of financial statements of overseas
ME H E 5 subsidiaries 2,665 (2,428)

FEZEHVRZALRE Total comprehensive income for

the year 321,143 200,628
LTF&FEAL: Attributable to:
ZA/NSIE: £y 3= Equity shareholders of the Company 317,873 199,904
FEE IR Non-controlling interests 3,270 724

FEXEHBEARE Total comprehensive income for

the year 321,143 200,628
BREF Earnings per share 9
HEAK#E(AR®E  Basic and diluted (RMB)
7T) 1.16 0.79

F15B EFN0BE 2 HEKZETBEHEK The notes on pages 195 to 320 form part of these

—Hn o ERAATIEDZIRE 2R E:EEH  financial statements. Details of dividends payable to

R EE22(c) ° equity shareholders of the Company are set out in note
22(c).
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Se PRI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021412 A31H at 31 December 2021
(A A R¥ 0% R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

202145 20204F
2021 2020
o3 AR®E Tt NG B
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
KEME Investment properties 10 1,275 2,124
ME - BMERERE Property, plant and equipment 10 19,030 14,595
REERINEE Investment in associates 12 5,289 3,932
REETLENRE Investment in a joint venture 414 —
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 21(b) 18,950 12,520
FH 7 R Time deposits 15 154,158 101,300
T8 - ;IR Prepayments 3,270 —
202,386 134,471
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 13 79,031 52,044
BE N HMEWFIE Trade and other receivables 14 173,390 95,691
BEAFEGFAER Financial assets at fair value through

([BEAFESA profit or loss (“FVPL")

BEemEE 23(e) 24,044 —
EHF R Time deposits 15 243,019 368,528
X PRl 8R 17 45 8% Restricted bank balances 16 57,020 46,461
RBekBeEBY Cash and cash equivalents 17 905,746 805,394

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1482250 1,368,118
REBAE Current liabilities
EHBaE Contract liabilities 18 143,630 107,482
ZS5 &k HEMERFIE  Trade and other payables 19 495,865 473,326
ME&RE Lease liabilities 20 1,586 1,202
B EA Y 18 Current taxation 21(3a) 69,876 60,943
710,957 642,953
REBEEEH Net current assets 771,293 725,165
HEERARBAMG Total assets less current liabilities 973,679 859,636

189
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e MR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

M20215%12 A31H at 31 December 2021
(LA AN R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
o] INGeaEEn AREF T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current liability

HEBE Lease liabilities 20 119 1,303
EEFH NET ASSETS 973,560 858,333

EXRREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
% 7 Share capital 22(b) 181 181
] Reserves 22(d) 941,408 841,444

AT EZREREML Total equity attributable to

BmER equity shareholders of the
Company 941,589 841,625
FERER Non-controlling interests 31,971 16,708
4R 2 TOTAL EQUITY 973,560 858,333

DR2022FE3A3HEEEeH ERE#T Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
& o directors on 31 March 2022.

5%

Directors

—_— — ~— ~— ~—
—_— — — ~— ~—

FI15HEFEN0E ZWiF Bk ZEHHEHE The notes on pages 195 to 320 form part of these
—HB e financial statements.
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GEERBER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

H Z=2021912 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021
(A A R¥ 0% 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AARERRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
hEAR
108
(&)
BRER  EERE  EREE  2RNE gt FiRER
The People’s

s RE K

=
BE
SR
I
B3
R
Bk

Republic
of China
(the "PRC") Non-
Share Share Capital statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve Teserves reserve profits Total interests equity
AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
w2 - Fzzi
note 22(d)fi) - note 220a)ii)

2020518184 Balance at 1 January
o] 2020 181 492,647 (66,484) 10,000 20,189 265,301 721,834 4714 726,548

20205&%%8: Changes in equity for

2020:
FRHE Profit for the year - - - - — 2950 219550 4 2000
Ef2EME  Other comprehensive

income - - - - (19,646) - (19,646) - (19,646)
AEFFFER  Dividends declared in

&& respect of the previous

year 2200 - (80,113) - - - - (80,113) — (80,113)
ERZETHE  Aopropriation to statutory

Teserve - - - 15,451 - (15,451) - - -

SFERERITE  Capitel inection from
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - 11,270 11,270

20205124318 Balance at 31
iff ] December 2020 181 412,534 (66,484) 25,451 543 469,400 841,625 16,708 858,333
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#H Z=20219F12 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021
(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AARRERREL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
4 B BRBEE  E4RE TEEERE  EARE  ERAE gt FERER
PRC Non-
Share Share Capital  statutory ~ Exchange  Retained controlling

Note capital ~ premium reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests Total equity
AE®TR ARMTT ARETR ARETR ARETz ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARWTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Kl Kzl
note 20a)fii) - note 22(a)iii)

R021E1A188 Balance at 1 January
1 202 181 412,534 (66,484) 25,451 543 469,400 841,625 16,708 858,333

WUEREZEE: Changes in equity for

2021:
ERHE Profit for the year - - - - - w1 3T 320 3250
Ef2EME  Other comprehensive
income = = = - G - G - G
WEMRBRATDESN Acouisition of additional
Ea interests in a subsidiary - - 79 - = = 719 (967) (248)
BAFEMER  Dividends declared in
ke respect of the previous
year 221 - (131632) - = = - (B1632) - (131632
KEEFER  Dividends decared in
ke respect of the current
year 2600 - (86:9%) = = - - (8699) - (8699)
RTETHE  Appropriation to statutory
reserve - - - 15871 - (15.871) - - -

SEBEZEE  Capitalinection from
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - 12,960 12,960

2021128318 Balance at 31
s December 2021 181 193,906 (65,765) 41302 (3339) 775,280 941,589 3197 973,560

F195BE EFE320B 2 MR ZE 0B MAX The notes on pages 195 to 320 form part of these
—HD e financial statements.
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GERTRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

H Z=2021912 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021
(A A R¥ 0% 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

202145 20204
2021 2020
M it AR® Tt BN R
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
ReEFTH Operating activities
KEELMRS Cash generated from operations 17(b) 338,079 366,104
BEfHEMZENESH  PRC Corporate Income tax paid 21(@a) (95,694) (48,360)
KRETHELEMNWEREL Net cash generated from
=] operating activities 242,385 317,744
REED Investing activities
BEWE BER Payments for the purchase of property,
B ANEN plant and equipment (12,959) (8,198)
HEWE  BEK Proceeds from disposal of property,
FAEFTS IR plant and equipment 999 —
REtZE R TN E Payments for investment in an
E associate — (2,450)
REErENRE Payments for investment in a joint
NE= venture (510) —
W B8 B B 2 &) 58 A Payments for acquisition of additional
R 2= 19 3 interests in a subsidiary (248) —
BAFEFAEZEA  Payments for purchase of FVPL
BENXK (113,700) (163,000)
B AFEGFAEBZEHN  Proceeds from redemption of FVPL
f& @ PR 15 BB 90,064 163,780
REEHB®E=1A" Payments for time deposits with
B B F A 5K original maturity over three months (372,789) (394,509)
REEIHEB® =1 Proceeds from maturity of time
B E B3 7 R PT1S 3K deposits with original maturity over
T8 three months 456,105 430,318
B U F B Interest received 18,590 14,664
REZHFEBRE Net cash generated from
FEE investing activities 65,552 40,605
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GERTRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

#H Z=20219F12 A318 L FE for the year ended 31 December 2021
(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20214 20204
2021 2020
B it AR%E Tt NG R
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
& T B Financing activities

FERERTEE Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests 12,960 11,270
ENMEEMEARAEZZE Capital element of lease rentals paid 17(c) (2,323) (3,032)
ERHEESHF B EE  Interest element of lease rentals paid 17(c) (136) (175)
B A Dividends paid (218,628) (80,113)

METHMARSE Net cash used in financing
FE activities (208,127) (72,050)

BERBEEEEY Net increase in cash and cash
¥ hn 7 58 equivalents 99,810 286,299

MAIEWE SR Cash and cash equivalents at

REZEEY 1 January 17(a) 805,394 516,707
EXSB o Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 542 2,388

MW12B31HKWE £ K Cash and cash equivalents at
ReZEEY 31 December 17(a) 905,746 805,394

1958 2 F30B 2T B ZEF B EHEK The notes on pages 195 to 320 form part of these
— =B o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EBEXREFEE
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P B 755 ¥ 5 E AN ([0 BR Bt 3% 3R 5 2
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BHREER  BERESER (BB
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LREBBEXGABERABESL
mARAEE AR EGR - TXHE
AEBERRBZERNGFHEE °

BERgENEEgERMmE TH
PRI RS ERMNER  ZFEF
RAEEERMEtMEERERL
AIRERA o MR R H R E
AZEETERetRRLRAE
MEHNEHN MABEEHELE
BIRANEZR A M RERPARREE
Al N B ES R R AR -

HE2021FNABLFEE 25486
FHRBREBIBEALA L EKHBE AR
UERAEERBERARAEDE
RS o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements
of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “"Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). These financial statements
also comply with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's
interest in associates and a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2017 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed
on the Main Board on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 15 March 2019 (the “Listing”). The
principal activities of the Group are the
provision of property management services
and related services in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded
to the nearest thousand, which is the
presentation currency. It is prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial assets
measured as fair value through profit or loss
which are stated at their fair value.

RMB is the functional currency for the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the
mainland China. The functional currency of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.



e BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BERGTHE®E) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

RESTABEBETBEREEINRE
ZHBHRREBRKEEEFLE Y
ERRERIEEE A WAR
Nz 2meEOHE - HEFER
Fe B hHEBBRRIERERE
RELRBEBEBEATHEAGE
MEBEMREAE  HERBARD
ZSRAEMRBEESNEELEA
BEOREEELD G2 EE - BR
BRAIBEEA BN &ZFMEAT -

HETRAERR DIRFEEETI
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BERARSEM - BERETH
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&l e
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F 8RB BR B s R (R
MHETRETOTEEEN TR
R Y EE2 o

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note
2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The IASB has issued the following amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

. Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions

. Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

None of these amendments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BERGTHE®E) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

RIMBRBEINIRE QG #HIRZ
REEZGEERELZBFALZANM
BHRERAN - FERNGEH  HRAE
TREAMEEARSHE LN
EAMRERNE EREEAY
BHREBZBRME - FERARXS
BE A ) OR B IR B 1Rt BEOR B3R K
mERMTAME BEERRE
EREDTROELD ©

FEBREEEREARAERNAE
BREGHBARNERZ  MAKHE
TERUEZSRANTE AW
FEERIRRIME R - BE AN B 58
PR EREaANAEREBEES
MENEL AEXBTAMmE
AEEAERERAFEIFER
o (5B RR A &R E EF
O PIGt B ERIEERES -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B R BEIEBEI - A AREITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with note 1(o) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(f)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)),
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B R BEIEBEI - A AREITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). The cost of the
investment includes purchase price, other costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment, and any direct investment into
the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 1(j)(ii)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’'s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associates or the joint venture,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s any
other long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or the joint venture, after applying
the expected credit losses (ECLs) model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
note 1(j)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(f)).

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)), unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

The Group’s and the Company’s policies
for investments in debt and equity financial
instruments, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are
set out below:

Investments in debt and equity financial
instruments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note

1(s)(iv)).

— fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

— fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity financial instruments is
classified as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity financial instruments, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(s)

(iii).

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(i)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Rental income from
investment properties are accounted for as
described in note 1(s)(ii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the
costs of investment properties, less a residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their lease terms.

When the Group holds a property interest
under an operating lease to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment property
leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 1(i).

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1() i)

— right-of-use assets arising from leases
over freehold or leasehold properties
where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see note

1()).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— office equipment and 3 — 5 years
furniture
— motor vehicles 5 years

shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and the
Buildings’
estimated useful
lives

— other properties leased
for own use

Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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At inception of a contract, the Group assesses

whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

()

As a lessee

Where the contract contains a lease
component and non-lease component,
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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1

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when
a lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(j)
(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write-
off the costs of right-of-use asset, less a
residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their lease terms.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-
term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ or ‘inventories’ if they
are held for sales in the ordinary course
of business and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(s)ii).

When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, the sub-leases are classified as a
finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in
note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECLs on the following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables);

— contract assets as defined in IFRS 15
(see note 1(I)); and

— lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
amounts due from related parties (trade
nature) and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic condition at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets and

lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instruments credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (recycling).
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(s)(iv) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— significant decrease in property
management and other service fees
collection rate;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets and

lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

(Continued)

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset
is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current
assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— investment properties;

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

— investment in associates and a joint
venture; and

— investment in subsidiaries, associates
and a joint venture in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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Impairment of other non-current

assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’'s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Financial Instruments on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with IAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes

1)) (i) and (ii)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

()

impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(k)(i))
and property, plant and equipment (see
note 1(h)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs
to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained e.g.
an incremental sales commission.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised
in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs
of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying
amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract
costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates
is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in note

1(s).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when
the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(s)).
A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 1(s)(iv)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented
as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses (see
note 1(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(j)(i).

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts

are stated at their present values.

Contributions to the PRC local retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as

an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to

tax payable in respect of previous years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value-added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Property management service,
value-added services to non-
property owners and 5S value-
added services
For property management service,
the Group recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has the
right to invoice based on the value of
performance completed to date.
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1 EBERGFTBER®E 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) MEESERYE  FEXTHEE (i) Property management service,
PR %% & 55 1% & AR & (&) value-added services to non-
property owners and 5S value-
added services (Continued)

HKEBBEBRGNEEMEND For property management service income
XEERBBRAME  A5H arising from properties managed under
EREZFEA BRERKIRHNY lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
XEERGEEBEBRDRKA - principal, the Group entitles to revenue
RREMESHERDENY at the value of property management
FEERRBKAMS A&H service fee received. For property
EREZEFTNRE ARKRERL management service income arising from
AR E SR ETEIMNN properties managed under commission
TN MEERREE basis, where the Group acts as an agent
WER A o of the property owners, the Group

entitles to revenue at a pre-determined
percentage or fixed amount of the
property management service fees the
property owners are obligated to pay.

FEFHERBETERLER Value-added services to non-property
AT A BR 1A W) 3 B B 4R owners mainly include consulting services
HE B AR - RE - G1b - to property developers and cleaning,
wiE RERBE AXEEE greening, repair and maintenance services
REEENETRERRENT to property developers at the pre-delivery
PR SRR U o stage. The Group recognises revenue over

time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation.

234 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



e BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EBEXREFEE®SE)

()

(i)

MEEBERSE - FEETHE
BR 3% % 5 1% & BR #% (&)

SSIEERBEIERERARXE
RERBRYE  LLRH -
HEKRE B REEEMN
K E Al 4t 18 3R (B AR 75 o 3L 3H
EEREREERE B
RFEBEE)MELERETS
AEBRETEHEREMNE
an Ko BR 765 B0 By ) B AE SR LA o
PR BRIR 5 M E At R R E
RBEME  AEEREHRRS
FriERE A RBIRBE K E
fil 4t [ 3B B AR — AR AT R 3R
HRER LAV E -

KEHERSAERA

RELLZHERREASRA
REEMPABRENE UF
BOARERER EMRNE
HEERTRAKREREE
BEMSWmBERRIRID -
EREINEEEERIERR®
AR EFEENKEED
MR EE 3 o I IR BUR R4 B
FMEZ2AEHENRRE
EHEFHERRREA -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(i)

Property management service,
value-added services to non-
property owners and 5S value-
added services (Continued)

5S value-added services mainly include
housekeeping services, brokerages
services, sales of furniture, parking places
and storage rooms and other community
value-added services to property owners.
For sales of goods, including sales of
furniture, parking places and storage
rooms, and brokerage services, the Group
recognises revenue at point in time when
the property owners take possession
of and accept the goods and services.
For housing keeping services and other
community value-added services, the
Group recognises revenue when the
services are rendered. Housing keeping
services and other community value-
added services are normally billable
immediately upon the services are
provided.

Rental income from operating
leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii) Dividends

(iv)

(v)

Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
equity shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 1(j)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are recognised initially
as deferred income and amortised to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of the asset by way of
recognition in other revenues.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) (Continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a
Group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’'s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's
various service lines and geographical
locations.
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in the
preparation of these financial statements are as
follows:

The impairment allowances for trade and
other receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of expected credit loss rates. The
Group adjusts judgement in making these
assumption and selecting inputs for computing
such impairment loss, broadly based on the
available customers’ historical data, existing
market conditions including forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Any change in such assumptions and
judgement would affect the expected credit
loss to be recognised and hence the net profit
in future years.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
carried forward and deductible temporary
differences are recognised and measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting date. In determining the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets,
expected taxable profits are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating
to the operating environment of the Group
and require a significant level of judgement
exercised by the directors. Any change in such
assumptions and judgement would affect the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future
years.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT

The principal activities of the Group are
property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and 5S value-
added services.

Revenue represents income from property
management services, value-added services
to non-property owners and 5S value-added
services.
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3 WARDIBHRE (&) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

EXBZHENRANSELOT The amount of each significant category of
revenue are as follows:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

B A B MR B 78 3R & % Bl &5 Revenue from contracts with
BREENEFEN customers within the scope
N of IFRS 15

BERFEMEBAERAN  Revenue recognised

WA : over time:
V) B RS Property management services 840,546 554,241
FEEFIEERS Value-added services to
non-property owners 419,542 312,014
5SIE{E AR 1§ 5S value-added services 40,921 33,858
1,301,009 900,113
REBBZEIZNUW A Revenue recognised at point
in time:
SSIEE R (A7 i2) 5S value-added services (note) 97,016 59,496
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,398,025 959,609
H fth 3R WA Revenue from other sources
5SIE1E AR 5S value-added services
—KREMERSKWA — Rental income from
investment properties 922 592
1,398,947 960,201
Mat: BFPREREEREHERE B Note: For 5S value-added services that involve sale of
URRERBE)ARDEHERES goods, including sales of furniture, parking places
B RBHSSEBERSEMS - A& and storage rooms, and brokerage services for
EREETEAREMER RREH property sales and leasing, the Group recognises
B R BEHE R o revenues at point in time when the property owners
take possession of and accept the goods and

services.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had transactions with one customer
exceeding 10% individually of its total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
one).

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the
reporting date
For property management services and
value-added services to non-property
owners, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice that corresponds directly
with the value of performance completed
to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations
for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management service
contracts do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for consulting
services is generally set to expire when
the counterparties notify the Group that
the services are no longer required.
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(BB EIEBEEN  UAREEITTH|R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
3 WARDHE®RSE(BE) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)
() RBEEEHEFENEFEN (i) Revenue expected to be recognised
FREENBARSERB#E in the future arising from contracts
wmRE) with customers in existence at the

AR RBERBENELTEE
fREmME ZERBIOIRNE
HARHAERSHRSEH R
BEREBTHEOERME - 3t 8
MEEFTRHETRNEMPRHEF
RENEEIHRERBmS -
R2021F12A31H o B =
AEEBRBEEOTHBRED
EENRSEBERERARYK
15,887,0007T (20204F : A R ¥
7,416,0007C) 72021512 A
BHZ 2 HBEEREHEEEY
ZHERHD  AEERZEA
HWTEREFEREAREF =
(R » AE B &R K
BrRxEXEFPYHEEWKE

reporting date (Continued)

For value-added services to property
owners that involved provision of
services, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of
each reporting period. For value-added
services to property owners that involved
in sales of furniture in customised interior
furnishing services, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
under the Group's existing contracts as
at 31 December 2021 is RMB15,887,000
(2020: RMB7,416,000). The amount as at
31 December 2021 includes the interest
component of sales of furniture contracts

WRBHKALDT : under which the Group obtains significant
financing benefits from the customers
(see note 1(s)). The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when the
furniture is delivered to and accepted by
the customers as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR® T ARB T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 2021 — 5,685
20224 2022 14,459 997
20234 2023 1,428 734
15,887 7,416
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WARD RS (&) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)
RARRIEZCEHERRAER SR The directors of the Company have been
THERE -KEPHNDERAKE identified as the Group’s most senior executive
ExaTRERERRAD BEE management. Operating segments are
EREFHEEEERETHEND identified on the basis of internal reports that
W EB R & T LAREE © Group’s most senior executive management
reviews regularly in allocating resource to
segments and in assessing their performances.
AEENESTHREREREAN The Group’'s most senior executive
HEBBEELEEREERE I management makes resources allocation
BAEENEBXRRIER —BES decisions based on internal management
X (MIFEREBNERH RS K functions and assess the Group’s business
BRI EITE D) #ETME - Bt - performance as one integrated business
AEBERE-—BEKLLEHE - Bt instead of by separate business lines or
W EZ2HEM D EHEHR - geographical regions. Accordingly, the Group
has only one operating segment and therefore,
no segment information is presented.
HMRAEBRER A RE LR No geographical segment analysis is shown
Bz EXBRERP  BEXREEFERD as all of the Group's revenue are derived from
BEMATMEREELNFE - activities in, and from customers located in the
PR U, 7 8 51 TR A {A] 3 (2 9> ER D AT o PRC and almost all of carrying values of the
Group’s non-current assets are situated in the
PRC.
Hiw AR Efbkz (EBE) B8 4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET
INCOME/(LOSS)
2021% 20204
2021 2020
ARE Tt N
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hg A Other revenue
B AT # Bh (BT 22 (1) Government grants (note (i) 6,676 8,403
H ity Others 3,270 1,918
9,946 10,321
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Hthw AR Efhdizs (B5#E)F8E 4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET

4

(#8)
(i)

INCOME/(LOSS) (Continued)

MBI EE4EH 5 I # A (i) Government grants mainly represent
RENEERONBEHM B E - & unconditional discretionary financial support
Z2021FNA3MBIEFE A& from local municipal government authorities.
A £ U BY AR 8 R AT M RS S 82019 During the year ended 31 December 2021,
#1275 R m = 7 (COVID-19)) #) the Group did not receive any subsidy income
# By W A(E =2020%12A318 1t from the relevant government in relation to
F[E: ANR#4,880,0007T) ° the impact of the Coronavirus Disease 2019

("COVID-19") (the year ended 31 December

2020: RMB4,880,000).

20214 20204
2021 2020
ARE T N R
RMB’000 RMB’000

Hibhz (E5E)E%E Other net income/(loss)
HEWE - BENZMEH Net loss on disposal of property,

=D plant and equipment (524) (57)

BAFEGFAEZAEE Net realised and unrealised gains
BERSHRWmFE on FVPL 408 780
HNPEU 25 (E518)F %8 Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 924 (1,267)
808 (544)
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5 PBRBAIRE 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRERFEEBR S (GEA) - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
() MEWRFHE (a) Net finance income
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR®E Tt NG B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
|ITHE RF B U A Interest income on bank deposits (32,861) (30,973)
BEPBRFERX Interest expense on advance
(B7#£18) payments from customers
(note 18) 553 366
MEBEFR B (M iE17(c) Interest on lease liabilities
(note 17(c)) 136 175
AW F Net finance income (32,172) (30,432)
(b) ET A (b) Staff costs
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR%E T N B
RMB’000 RMB’000
FekEMERN Salaries and other benefits 552,039 388,432
FE MG B K Contributions to defined
(B9 2£0) contribution scheme (note (i) 49,773 23,777
601,812 412,209
A Included in:
Fi=R=— DN Cost of sales 569,129 392,912
TR Administrative expenses 30,968 18,912
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses 1,715 385
601,812 412,209
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(BR=BEBREIN

5

BR Bt B0 AR (48)

() AEBEWPENBARIEESEASNMH
75 TR E TR KE R Y SR KRG
- AKENTFEMBRRNIZMLT
TRAHRENEEFEE TEILRA
MR ABERRRIREA -

BB EEHRN REBEBERMD
HZ LR EEBAERKET RN
ERAME -

¥ COVID-19% £ - B /¥ B202042
ARBEHEEREREAESEZEHK
FONBELETIBER  BHEH
E2020F12A31R L FE ERBE K
HEREMAERBRER D B
B A R #9,675000T & A R
5,557,0007C °
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5

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(M)

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme administered and operated by the
local municipal governments. The Group's PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated
on certain percentages of the employee salary as
agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with
these schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.

Due to the impact of COVID-19, a number of
policies including the relief of social insurance
have been promulgated by the government
since February 2020 to expedite resumption
of economic activities, which resulted in the
relief of contributions to defined contribution
scheme of RMB9,675,000 and other social
insurance of RMB5,557,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5 BRBEAFEE 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(c) Hfb1EE (c) Other items
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARE Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
wE 10 Depreciation (note 10)
— BB HWEK&ZE — owned property, plant and
equipment 4,219 3,347
— FHAEEE — right-of-use assets 1,035 2,160
—REME — investment properties 849 425
6,103 5,932
HEHAEAMBAOFY  Expenses related to short-term
leases 5,950 3,670
% H AN B & Auditors’ remuneration
— FEZE R — annual audit services 1,700 1,600
— EHR® — review services 500 500
FEK AR Cost of inventories 13,223 29,494
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
6 HZEBERRHMEZEKWZXRNFAE 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

B STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
() REEeEEREME2HEIKERA (a) Taxation in the consolidated
MY IE S statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income represents:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B HA B 18 Current tax
PEEMRER PRC Corporate Income Tax 104,541 70,880
BEFEEETR Under-provision in respect of
prior years 86 2
104,627 70,882
I % B 1E Deferred tax
TRFEFAMES L BD  Origination and reversal of
(K1 a£21(b) temporary differences
(note 21(b)) (6,430) (7,204)
98,197 63,678
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e IS ERAR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

REBEBERAEMEEAKRBERNAER 6

(#)

(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)
MIEMX EREARETENS (b) Reconciliation between tax expense
T AEZ ¥ iR and accounting profit at applicable
tax rates:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B #5 Ai F) Profit before taxation 423,218 283,952
L AE B 7% Bl A & F B Notional tax on profit before
WAZHEAERBA  taxation, calculated at the rates
FBzaERBN L) applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned (note (i)) 97,947 62,408
A 17 B S (B Bk % #iTax effect of non-deductible
WA 2R 5 & expenses, net of non-taxable
income 951 822
B — B2 QAR A% Tax effect of share of results of
TEXECHBTE associates and a joint venture (315) (140)
A HE R AR BRI B IE B5 1B 2 Tax effect of unused tax losses not
BEZZE recognised 354 830
BB EARERBAEIE Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (826) (244)
BEFERETR Under-provision in respect of prior
years 86 2
ERBIEBEBRAX Actual tax expense 98,197 63,678
() BEFESHEREABHEBREESNR (i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman

AR AEEBAMANHEHS

Island and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any

REBHEBRBESNEMMAER - income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.
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(Rm=BHEAEIN
6 FERZRHME2EWSERNAEH 6

(#8)

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

iNE R D VAL o N TR N A
AR RESHEAMNTBANNEHEY
WARE AR EEI6.5% °
2018 F HEH FIS M AR S - 2 &) B
B E28 85 T ERH A BE %
B AT EH) — 4 (8.25%) AR B - £R
TREAR%16.5% 3 B o AR R
HHEAM - AN B I A BT ] 2B A
MEBFEHROKA HMAEE L
|t B B RIS B B 45 (20204 -

7).

RNEBE R FEKB QR AE25%H
MEHRPEMEH - ¥ MR20214F
BRANNBLENETHER
Al BFTHEBARBKIBETH
ERBMBMAZ D - BB REHT X
12.5% (20204 : 25%) 3t & A& fE &
WA 1220% (20204F : 20%) &Y
MEBRDCENSH  SBFBA
AREIBETETRBEAREIE
ETHERBTBRADRS  ERE
1% 1§ E50% (20204F : 50%) 5t &
B ER R W A 1£20% (20204 ¢
20%) B RN EREH -
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The income tax rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong for
the income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the reporting period is 16.5%. A two-
tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced
in 2018 whereby the first HKD2 million in
assessable profits earned by a company will be
taxed at half of the current tax rate (8.25%)
while the remaining profits will continue to be
taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as the Group did
not earn any income subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the reporting period (2020:
Nil).

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject
to PRC income tax at 25%. For certain
subsidiaries recognised as a small profit
enterprise in 2021, the portion of annual
taxable income amount, which does not
exceed RMB1 million, shall be computed at a
reduced rate of 12.5% (2020:25%) as taxable
income amount, and be subject to enterprise
income tax at 20% (2020:20%). And the
portion of annual taxable income, which
exceeds RMB1 million but does not exceed
RMB3 million, shall be computed at a reduced
rate of 50% (2020:50%) as taxable income
amount, and be subject to enterprise income
tax at 20% (2020:20%).
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

=g 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

RIEE B RREAE383(N) K R AR (H Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section

BEEERR AN RIFE2HEENES 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

FMaT Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

HZ201E12831BLEE
Year ended 31 December 2021
Fa - 3. ]
EZHE RENEN WERAL BARGTEER

Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
AR%ETR AR%ETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HITES Executive directors
5VE Zhu Lidong — 1,581 480 34 2,095
EEE Zhong Ruogin - 495 205 34 734

FHTES Non-executive directors
REgE Mo Jianhua = - - _ _
B Cai Xin — - — _ _

BUKHTEZE Independent
non-executive directors

285 Cai Haijing 100 - - - 100
TERN Ding Jiangang 100 - - — 100
FHE Li Kunjun 100 - - - 100

300 2,076 685 68 3,129
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
7 EEEFEM® 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
BE0FANALEE
Year ended 31 December 2020
e 28
ESHE  REVRET B RRETEHER @it
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BTES Executive directors
RURE Zhu Lidong - 763 260 29 1,052
EEE Zhong Ruogin — 352 216 25 593
FUTES Non-executive directors
BRE Mo Jianhua — — — — —
22 Cai Xin — — — — —
BUEHTES Independent non-executive
directors
255 Cai Haijing 100 - — — 100
T &6 Ding Jiangang 100 - - — 100
THE Li Kunjun 100 — — — 100
300 1,115 476 54 1,945
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(BB EHEBPE
BSHMAL 8
RAEESHFMALESR  —H (20204 :
—R)AEBEE EHFMAWNE7EE - &

b PO 5 (20204F : P9 &) A £ B 37 Bl 42 %8
(N

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2020: one) is director whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2020:
four) individuals are as follows:

20215 20204F

2021 2020

AR®E T INGL R

RMB’'000 RMB'000

4  ZBENMEWREF  Salaries, allowance and benefits-in-kind 3,455 2,566
B 15 7€ 41 Discretionary bonuses 1,752 942
RAORET 2] 3 Retirement scheme contributions 103 87
5,310 3,595

PO % (20205 « P9 4) & = %1 B A £ &Y B
TRNATHER :

The emoluments of the four (2020: four) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 7T &
1,500,000 7T

1,500,001/ 7T &
2,000,000 7T

Nil — HKD1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000

20214 20204F
2021 2020

N A B
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
— 1

— 3

HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

9 BREX
BRERNREE RN IEE £2021F12
A31B IEFEARRQ A # &= R R B FDE
A R %321,751,00070 (2020F : A R #&
219,550,0007T) & B % 77 % 1 &9 0 # F
19 B% #1276,407,000% (20204 : hn 4 F
19 1% #276,407,000/% ) 5+ & -

B R E 220214 K20204F12 A318 Ik F
B EEEEENNBEITEIINRD
HWERBEERFBAERSTRERETR -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

9

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB321,751,000
(2020: RMB219,550,000) and the weighted average
number of 276,407,000 shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: weighted
average number of 276,407,000 shares).

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
and therefore the diluted earnings per share are
same as the basic earnings per share.
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

10 REVERYE  BERSKRE 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) BREIEZHER (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

BEERK
WAE Hhg 0% KE
RERGE RE(REANER)  RREN
Other
properties Sub-total

Office leased for  of Property,
equipment Motor own use plantand  Investment
and furniture vehicles carried atcost  equipment  properties Total
AEBTR  ARBTr  AR%Tn  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BA: Cost:

B00EIR1E A1 January 2020 10,484 11,209 5,170 26,363 - 26,363
g Additions 2836 4419 - 7,255 2,549 9,804
i3 Disposals (177) (842) - (1019 - (1019
M020£128318 At 31 December 2020 13,143 14786 5,170 33,099 2,549 35,648
g Additions 6,407 3,08 1523 1,212 - 1,212
HE Disposals (1777 (6,408) - (8,185) - (8,185)
ANNE2E3NE At 31 December 2021 17,113 11,660 6,693 36,126 2,549 38,675
gitE: Accumulated depreciation:

B020E1A1E A1 January 2020 5,59 6,139 224 13959 - 13,959
EEXH Charge for the year 1,565 1,78 2,160 5,507 45 5,932
HERE Written back on disposals (162) (800) - (962) - (962)
B0205128318 At 31 December 2020 6,99 711 4,384 18504 125 18929
EEXH Charge for the year 2518 1,701 1,03 5,254 849 6,103
HERE Written back on disposals (1,032) (5,630) - (6,662) - (6,662)
BO2E12E31E At 31 December 2021 8,485 319 5,419 17,096 1,274 18,310
BHFE Net book value:

AONE2E3NE At 31 December 2021 9,288 8,468 1,274 19,030 1,275 20,305
B0205128318 At 31 December 2020 6,144 7,665 786 14,595 2114 16,719
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10 REVERYE  BERKEH) 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) FAKEE(BEREVEURY (b) Right-of-use assets (including
X BERRE) investment property and property,
plant and equipment)
RAAEERNS S NERAEEE The analysis of the net book value of right-
(BREREMEUARDE BE KR of-use assets (including investment property
RE)REFEINET and property, plant and equipment) by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
31 December
2020
AR¥EF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAVE B A 8 E b ¥ % (32 37 Other properties leased for own
B ARV R (M 72 3) use, carried at depreciated cost
(note (i) 1,274 786
KEMEGRFTEKAR Investment properties, carried at
HI B8R ) depreciated cost
— HEWHEBHIMEE — leased properties to earn
LN =IO rental income (note (i) 1,275 2,124
2,549 2,910
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

10 REVERYE  BERREE) 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

RESEHIANEEFEBE ST

The analysis of expense items in relation to

i leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARE Tt NS R
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
L HE & E B B &l 5 /) {F Depreciation charge of right-of-
AREEBEREWHE use assets (including investment
AR Y% - BEN&M#E) property and property, plant
mEXL: and equipment) by class of
underlying asset:
— HEEAMEMYZE  — Other properties leased for
1,035 2,160
—REME — Investment properties 849 425
1,884 2,585
THEBGER B (A iE5(a) Interest on lease liabilities
(note 5(a)) 136 175
HIEHAEBBENRY  Expense relating to short-term
(B 2£5(c)) leases (note 5(c)) 5,950 3,670

FREFTRAREEREREME
UWEME BERIKBORER
A R #1,523,0007T (2020F : A K
#2,549,0007T) - % £ X EHR
BEHAHERZEENNERNMCEE
NHRBEE -

tHEBERe Rt eE HEAE
IHOoMEkEARAENEEEAL
MARRRSREZFBEDER
Bt 35 17(d) B Bff 5220 ©

During the year, additions to right-of-
use assets (including investment property
and property, plant and equipment) were
RMB1,523,000 (2020: RMB2,549,000). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised
lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the
future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes
17(d) and 20, respectively.
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(BRmBEHESI
10 REVMERYE  BERRKRE

(i) HEERAIRMEASBAH
Hfth ) 3% (R 47 B B A< 51 BR)

AEBAEREEEOKEM
MERERLAZETRHNER
WA ZEHENN IR
—MRB2E3F °

AEEBRBEEHERAHREDY
X ZEHENHBR—BRB3F -
ZEHERTEBRAUZEENRK -

RBEANRBEAAIHMELEHEE
BETHOARMREENKGHAE
[ 70 LATR R 2 HA S X

10

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(i) Other properties leased for own

use or earn rental income, carried at
depreciated cost

The Group has obtained the right to
use other properties as its office or
earn rental income through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 or 3 years.

The Group leases out investment properties
through operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 3 years. None of
the leases includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in place at the
reporting date will be receivable by the Group
in future periods as follows:

—F R

Within 1 year

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
ARE T N
RMB’000 RMB'000
452 851

MR2021F12A31H BB EF BB
RIMERABEMN  ERREMERR
EEEHRTEER SR ANR D
KEMEMLE HEAREERT
BRABAEE °
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As at 31 December 2021, the investment
properties are valued by management to
be approximately the same as their carrying
amount using discounted cash flow techniques
based on contracted and expected cash
inflows and outflows arising from the
investment properties.
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group.

iRzt 1 $:3:41
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ i/ BRI A5Ez  HALR HHE IEXER
LRER BHREH REREX ERER KB DARE ABMA
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest ~ Company subsidiary  and legal status
ARERAR ZBARREE  THR/2ZR 100% 100% — REBR BRAF
2017564288
Robust Class Limited BVI Not applicable/USD2 Investment holding,
28 June 2017 limited liability
company
BIRBEE(ERRRLE FE rER/ 100% - 100% REZR ARAA
2017584288 107,245,314 T
Binjiang Service Group Hong Kong Not applicable/ Investment holding,
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited 28 August 2017 HKD107,245,314 limited liability
company
RMBINEERERAR ©E AE&#%1200000007T/  100% - 100% NEEERH ER
(EIN%ER)) 19976 4A218 A #120,000,0007T N
Hangzhou Binjiang Property the PRC RMB120,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 21 April 1997 RMB120,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited ("Binjiang PM")* company
RHETERESLAR il A B 1,000,000,/ 100% - 100% BERERS AR
AN 2009F3A18R AR %1,000,0007 A
Hangzhou Binjiang Real Estate  the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Brokerage and other
Brokerage Management 18 March 2009 RMB1,000,000 service, limited liahility

Company Limited*

LIRSS E AR ] FERE 2021

company
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11 RAHEBATRINKRE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERRE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ i/ 2Rf A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
MM BREHAR AR hE AR %10,000,0007T / 100% - 100% KERBRFBEE:
2016594128 AR 1,000,000 BRAA
Hangzhou Binrui Decoration the PRC RMB10,000,000/ Decoration service and
Company Limited* 12 September RMB1,000,000 sales of furniture,
2016 limited liability
company
MMNBEEZERHERLA HE A& H5,000,0007T/ 100% - 100% KERBERFBEHE
0175589 AR 5,000,000 ERAF
Hangzhou Binwan Home the PRC RMB5,000,000/ Decoration service and
Decoration Company Limited* 9 May 2017 RMBS5,000,000 sales of furniture,
limited liability
company
RMBIXEEHERAT & AR 85,000,000/ 100% - 100% EERH ARAT
2017F5A118 AR #5,000,0007
Hangzhou Binjiang Home the PRC RMB5,000,000/ Decoration service, limited
Decoration Company Limited* 11 May 2017 RMB5,000,000 liability company
MMNBRNZERERLR HE AR 5,000,000,/ 51% - 51% NXEE ARAA
2018517318 ARE5,000,0007
Hangzhou Binhe Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ Property management,
Management Company 31 January 2018 RMB5,000,000 limited liahility
Limited* company
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FRERE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ & ih/2Rf A&Ez  HALF mKE IZEER
NAER WERAH REUEX BERER K& LEBE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
RMEXESERAF hE A& %1,000,0007,/ 100% — 100% EERE  BIERRN
201852288 AR 1,000,000 %% ARAA
Hangzhou Zhuo Cai Advertising  the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Advertisement design,
Company Limited* 28 February 2018 RMB1,000,000 producing and
releasing service,
limited liability
company
ERBENERBARLR HE AR 25,000,007,/ 100% - 100% NEERRE - FBM
201955148 AR 25,000,000 RENEHEE BR
7
Ningho Binrun Property the PRC RMB25,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 14 May 2019 RMB25,000,000 services, sales of
Limited* parking places and
storage rooms, limited
liability company
MMNBCHXERERAR HE AR2,000,0007,/ 45% - 5% NEEERY AR
2019F8A208 AR%2,000,0007 A
Hangzhou Binxin Property the PRC RMB2,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 20 August 2019 RIMB2,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited*® company
RMBLENEERRE & AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERE ER
ARAR 20195107285 AR%1,000,0007 S
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binyue the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 28 October 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

Limited*

company
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERRE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ it/ B A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
SERWUMFERERLA WA AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
2019%10A318 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Jinhua Binyue Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 31 October 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
KEEENMEZERARAR wE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
201911418 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Yongkang Binsheng Property ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 1 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNERNRERERAR  HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
20191148 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 4 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
AMNERNEXERBRAG FE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
2019511458 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Taizhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 5 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
BAERNEERERAA G AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
201911488 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Wenzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 8 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

Limited*

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FRERE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ & it/ B A&Ez  HALF mKE IZEER
NAER WERAH REUEX BERER K& LEBE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
MHNERNRERERAF  HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
20195114118 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Huzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 11 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
RNBLEENREEER +& A5 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
A 20195114158 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binhui the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited* company
MMNESNXERGRAR HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
2019114158 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNEZNXERGRAR HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
2019114158 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Bintai Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
RMEENFERERLA: w8 AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
2019114158 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binhao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

Limited*

company
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERRE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ it/ B A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
REERWEERARAA HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
20195128258 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Wenling Binrui Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 25 December 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MHNEENRERERA hE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
202064788 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binging Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 8 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MHNEENZERERAR HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
2020547148 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binsha Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 14 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNEENRERERAR  HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
2020547248 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binxing Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 24 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNEBNXERGRAR HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
202055898 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 9 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

Limited*

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FRERE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ & it/ B A&Ez  HALF mKE IZEER
NAER WERAH REUEX BERER K& LEBE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
RNBLERNRXEEER ©& AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
R 202055148 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binkang the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 14 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited* company
ANELEANEXERER wE A5 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
A 2020558198 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binchao the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 19 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited* company
RNBLERNRERER ©& AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
A 2020658198 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Bintao the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 19 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited* company
FREANEXEEERAR +E AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
20057878 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Pinghu Binhe Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 7 July 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNEENZRBAERLA HE 10,000,000% 1./ 100% - 100% WxEERE AR
2020574138 10,000,000/ 7T L7
Hangzhou Bingang Property the PRC HKD10,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 13 July 2020 HKD10,000,000 services, limited liability

Limited*

company
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERRE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ it/ B A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
BMEENFERARAE & AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
202059818 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Suzhou Binlan Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 1 September 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
RMEZEENZEEAR wE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
R 202069438 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Chunan Binrun the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 3 September 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited* company
RMRENFERERLA w8 AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
20205104158 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binxin Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 15 October 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
RNBENFERERLR w8 AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WxEERH R
20206104198 AR 1,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Binyu Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 19 October 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
AMELELNZERER w8 AR 22,000,000/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
A 2005117248 AR 22,000,000 ’RET
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binhong the PRC RMB22,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 24 November 2020 RMB22,000,000 services, limited liability

Company Limited*

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FRERE LA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ & ih/2Rf A&Ez  HALF mKE IZEER
NAER WERAH REUEX BERER K& LEBE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
MMNERNEERERAA HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
20142 A9 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binhang Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Company 09 February 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited* company
MMNERNZERERAA HE A5 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
201547168 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 16 Apr 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MHNERNRERERAR HE A5 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% NxEERH AR
2021547168 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binya Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 16 Apr 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MMNEENZERERAA HE A5 83,000,007,/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
201%5A78 AR 3,000,000 ’AET
Hangzhou Binze Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 7 May 2021 RMB3,000,000 services, limited liability
company
LEERBINEEERR HE A5 81,000,000/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
A 201558178 AR 1,000,000 ’AET
Shanghai Hupin Riverside the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Property Management 17 May 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

Co., Ltd.*

company
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11 RAHEBATRINKRE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ i/ 2Rf A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
MMNEMNXERGRAR  HE AR 5,000,007,/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
201554178 AR 1,500,000 e
Hangzhou Binhang Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 17 May 2021 RMB1,500,000 services, limited liability
company
PBEREAYERRKER PE AR 85,000,007,/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
NG 20156A248 AR 510,000 )
Shanghai Binhua Logistics the PRC RMB5,000,000/ Property management
Management Service Co,, Ltd.* 24 June 2021 RMB510,000 services, limited liability
company
ZREREINZREER +& AR 3,000,000,/ 55% - 5% WEEERE AR
NG 20156A25H AR 3,000,000 e
Yiwu Jiantou Binjiang Property  the PRC RMB3,000,000/ Property management
Service Co., Ltd.* 25 June 2021 RMB3,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MMNERNXERERAR  HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% WEEERE AR
2021564298 AR 1,000,000 )
Hangzhou Bintong Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 29 June 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MNEENRERGRAF  HE AR %20,000,0007,/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
20157A28H AR %4,000,0007T )
Hangzhou Kangyang Property  the PRC RMB20,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 28 July 2021 RMB4,000,000 services, limited liability

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERELRL A
Proportion of ownership interest
R/ & ih/2Rf A&Ez  HALF mKE IZEER
NAER WERAH REUEX BERER K& LEBE AR
Place and date of Group's Held
establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
ERERNEERARAR FE AR 1,000,0007T,/ 100% — 100% WEERRY ER
202158308 AR 1,000,000 R
Ningbo Binlun Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 30 Aug 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
RHNEZANZERRR hE A& #10,000,0007 / 51% - 51% NEERRE AR
NG 201594150 AR 1,000,000 R
Hangzhou Binwangchao Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 15 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MHNEBNXERERAR S AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% WEERRE AR
2021597188 AR 1,000,000 R
Hangzhou Binwen Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 18 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MMNEENRERERLE  HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% WEEERRE AR
2021594288 AR 1,000,000 R
Hangzhou Binyu Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 28 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MMNEBNXERGRAR  HE AR 81,000,000/ 100% - 100% WEEERE AR
202159429 AR 1,000,000 R
Hangzhou Binjin Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 29 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

company
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest

R/ i/ 2Rf A58z HALF mEE IZEER
NAER WH KA REWER BERER K& LABE AR

Place and date of Group's Held

establishment/ Registered/ issued effective bythe Heldbya Principal activities
Name of company incorporation and paid-in capital interest  Company subsidiary  and legal status
MHNERNEERERAA HE AR 10,000,000/ 51% - 51% NEEERRE AR

201594308 AR %10,000,0007 e

Hangzhou Binchen Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 30 Sep 2021 RMB10,000,000 services, limited liability

company

RHNERNZERERAR  HE AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% WEEERE AR

2015108158 AR 1,000,000 )

Hangzhou Binlan Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 15 Oct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

company

MNEZHEARHEESR +& AR 1,000,000/ 51% - 51% WEEERE AR
BERRA 2015108158 AR 1,000,000 )

Hangzhou Binxianggiyi Future  the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management
Community Operation Service 15 Oct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Co, Ltd* company

MMNEBANXERARAR  HE AR 3,000,000,/ 51% - 51% NEEERRE AR

2015108158 AR 500,000 )

Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* 15 Oct 2021 RMB500,000 services, limited liability

company

MMNEENRERERAR  HE AR 1,000,000/ 66% - 66% NEERRE BR

2015108208 AR 1,000,000 )

Hangzhou Binjia Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ Property management

Management Co., Ltd.* 20 Oct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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11 RBARNKRE (&)

MEZETEERDRERAA - AAZ
RXEBELEMRZ2E - ZERTANESERE
TYARR SRR

BIR2019F9A6H M e - NERAEHE
ER0NBRERE AMEZERNTBHR
EERKHALEVE Al ZEBEBOHY
BEARB2019F0A6HRHALREBMAGZA
B R 3% o

R2021F12 A31H » A & B I £ 1T 7] i
BRABBEAFEREZINAEBELEE
BERBRETREMBENERES -

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The
English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(i) Pursuant to the agreement dated 6 September 2019,
the Group could control 60% voting rights of the
board of directors, and could control the financial and
operating policies of the entity. Accordingly, the entity’s
financial information was consolidated into the Group's
consolidated financial statements from 6 September 2019.

As at 31 December 2021, no subsidiaries of the
Group had material interest that non-controlling
interests had in the Group’s operating results and
cash flows.
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

12

20215 20204

2021 2020

AR Tt N R

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEETEREKK Costs of investment, unlisted 8,450 8,450
DGR A (OB R B Share of post-acquisition results,

net of dividends (3,161) (4,518)

5,289 3,932

TREBAEAEEBRZ QR (—RIFLD
)

CEERBAVEMSHRE)NER:

The following list contains associates of the Group,
which are unlisted corporate entities, whose quoted
market price are not available:

EMA LR R2ANAAER
EXHY i/ RENERER
FHRRPA Place of BRTER  Effective interest held
BeELRAR Form of business  incorporation Registered/ by the Group IEER
Name of associates structure and business issued capital At 31 December Principal activities
021§ 2020%
2021 2020
ANEERRREERAT  HRKL ke AR %30,000,0007/ 20% 0%  RERERERE - R
(EERRD)* A& %30,000,0007 T¥ENBEERNE
ERRE
Hangzhou Zhibin Technology Incorporated the PRC RMB30,000,000/ 20% 20%  Technology development
Service Company Limited RMB30,000,000 and service, provision
("Zhibin Technology”) of leasing and property
management services
of industrial parks
nMBanEERERAA: AL hE AR 5,000,000/ 49% 9% NEERRE
AR 5,000,000
Hangzhou Zhihe Property Incorporated the PRC RIMBS5,000,000/ 49% 49%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMBS5,000,000 Services
* ZEPHERABRALA - AAIZHXE * These PRC entities are limited liability companies. The

RER2E - ZERARMNEILZBDAPX

TN
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English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official name of these companies is in Chinese.
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13 ®BE 13 INVENTORIES

2021% 20204F

2021 2020

AR Tt N R

RMB’000 RMB'000

HIEEEMYZE (K iT) Properties held for re-sale (note) 78,797 52,013

B fh Consumables 234 31

79,031 52,044
Mat: RBHEBENYWEEAESEBEFEEEN Note: Properties held for re-sale represent right-of-use assets
FEERFDHENEREESE - relating to car parking places and storage rooms

purchased by the Group for re-sale.

14 BESRHEMEKRRIE 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR%E Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
2 5 W R IE Trade receivables 110,298 43,053
BB S GRIERE R E Less: Allowance for impairment of
(HaF14(b) trade receivables
(note 14(b)) (31,306) (19,175)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 78,992 23878
Ze RFERNFKIE Deposits and prepayments 20,545 13,834
JiE Uk B B 5 3R IB (M1 7#26(d))  Amounts due from related parties
(note 26(d)) 65,231 34,436
REXZEEEOAK Payments on behalf of property
owners 5,070 4,308
BHRTEE Advances to employees 1,277 1,103
JE IR B Interest receivables — 16,309
H b & W 5818 Other receivables 2,275 1,823
173,390 95,691
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14 BEFKkH b BYFIEE)

BHRWFBEETEHREHRDEXEE RS
RIFXTRERGAERNVKLABR -

BB T RADBEERAL 2R - &
Yo 8 Bk 77 SR IR 2 B 1B A T RE26(d) -

REREHR  ERWAERBH
&?ﬂ@%%ﬂ%%%mlﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ’ﬂ
B EWHARK DT

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
Trade receivables are primarily related to revenue
recognised from the provision of property
management services and value-added services to
non-property owners.

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured
and interest-free. Details of the amounts due from
related parties are set out in note 26(d).

As at the end of each reporting period, the
ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
the date of revenue recognition and net of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables,

is as follows:
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR® T AR®EF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—F KN Within 1 year 77,266 22,346
—FEWF 1 to 2 years 1,726 1,532
78,992 23,878
BESRNAEBREWAERER Trade receivables are due when the receivables

2 8 - *ﬁfﬁﬁ’ilféﬂzﬁﬁ’]
H Al 5 B H FE23G) ©

HEHEWRIARBNRERSIE
DERBERLE  BRIELAEE
18 A9 W [B] 3 I8 9 A] A 1 AR K - FE Ut
BATHEEBEEERESIERK
FRIE AR (R B RE13)G3)
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are recognised. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 23(a).

Impairment losses in respect of trade
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 1(j)(i)).
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14 ESZRHAMBEWRKIEE) 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(b) ESEWREREE) (b) Impairment of trade receivable
(Continued)
Z5RBRIBRFERNEREEE The movement in the allowance for impairment
g of trade receivables during the year is as
follows:
2021% 20204F
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB"000
M1A1R At 1 January 19,175 7,684
BEHRRZBEERE Impairment loss recognised 12,140 11,491
B~ W E £ %8 Uncollectible amounts written off (9) —
»12A318 At 31 December 31,306 19,175
ﬁ%ﬁzl&%lﬁfé R E BB R A Further details on the Group’s credit risk
B 5 & H b FE YR IE FTal Bz B management policy and credit risk arising from
[B B 8 % 1B SR 5E23() © trade and other receivables are set out in note
23(a).
15 EHEFEX 15 TIME DEPOSITS

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB’000

REHBE®E=EANET Time deposits held at the bank

EHER with original maturity over
three months 397,177 469,828
BETAIRBEE I NEE Less: Amount included under
“current assets” (243,019) (368,528)
154,158 101,300
M2021E128318 > R ABB=E As at 31 December 2021, the time deposits held at
AHRITE R FERENEN F093%E the bank with original maturity over three months
4.13% 2 8 (20204 : 97 F1.32% £4.13% have annual interest rates ranging from 0.93% to
2 ) e 4.13% (2020: from 1.32% to 4.13%).
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16 ZRFIBITEER

16 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEZGURBMNERS Cash collected on behalf of the
(H1at19) property owners’ associations
(note 19) 56,970 46,411
=R &l 7 K Restricted deposits 50 50
57,020 46,461

AEBEEMEEERBEFFRERE
TEZEWRBRE -BRETEZSAE
FHUAFAKRRITER, AEERREZ

SHRRLEEZEFRITERP

17 RERASEEY
(a) RERREFBEYWEE:

The Group has cash collection on behalf of certain
property owners’ associations in its property
management service business. Since certain

property owners’ associations often face difficulties
opening bank accounts, the Group opens and
manages these bank accounts on behalf of the

property owners’ associations.

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR Tt NG S
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FER% Cash on hand 48 231
RITHRE Cash at bank 689,095 682,892
REIBA=[EA AR Fixed deposits held at the bank
RAITE HTF K with original maturity within
three months 273,623 168,732
962,766 851,855
o SR IR 1T 4 B Less: Restricted bank balances
(Kt at16) (note 16) (57,020) (46,461)
905,746 805,394
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ReRASEENE)

e BmRME

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B %% BT F) Profit before taxation 423,218 283,952
AT HIBMEL A Adjustments for:
i R E (B AL 5(c) Amortisation and depreciation
(note 5(c)) 6,103 5,932
pa (el NI R S| D Share of profits less losses of
B 18 associates (1,357) (560)
DihE & ENER Share of profits less losses of a
&8 joint venture 96 —
& U A (K7 it 5) Finance income (note 5(a)) (32,861) (30,973)
B & B A Finance costs 689 541
BRAFEFABRNE
IR AZITUZEF  Net realised and unrealised
B (HfiE4) gains on FVPL (note 4) (408) (780)
HEME BELRKEB Net loss on disposal of property,
2 BB F (I iE4) plant and equipment (note 4) 524 57
2 5 RWHIEZRE Impairment losses on trade
&8 receivables 12,140 11,491
HNEE (Me 25) B3 18 Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (814) 843
LBEESE Changes in working capital:
T &M Increase in inventories (26,987) (18,665)
B 5 &k E e U I8 Increase in trade and other
H#0 receivables (89,839) (24,575)
B 5 Kk H b FE 5RIE Increase in trade and other
30 payables 22,539 155,940
aHaEEmn Ol L) Increase/(decrease) in contract
liabilities 35,595 (10,224)
= PR # IR & 12 10 Increase in restricted cash (10,559) (6,875)
KEFRRS Cash generated from operations 338,079 366,104
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17 BERBEESEBY (B 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
(c) METHELENEEEHE (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities
TERFMAEERETHNEE The table below details changes in the
28 pEReRIFBE2ED - Group's liabilities from financing activities,
HRETHMEEANABREAERN including both cash and non-cash changes.
EIARAKRRERNEZERNAEE R Liabilities arising from financing activities are
EHRERNEXRTFOBEAMELED liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
FEReRENEE- cash flows will be, classified in the Group's

consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.

HERE EFRE At
Lease  Dividend

liabilities payable Total

ARBTRT ARBTR AR% TR

RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’'000

(Het20)

(note 20)
RO2FIAIR At1lanuary2021 2505 — 2505
RELERELE: Changes from financing cash flows:
ENFEERSEARLD  Capital element of lease rentals paid (2,323) = (2,323)
ENHEEREFEELS  Interest element of lease rentals paid (136) - (136)
FB 5 A Profit distribution —  (218,628) (218,628)
MARSREAD@E  Total changes from financing cash flows (2459)  (218,628)  (221,087)
Hitt#8: Other changes:
FREZHEER Increase in lease liabilities from entering into 1,523 — 1,523

HEABEEM new leases during the year

M ER X (H #50) Interest expenses (note 5(a)) 136 — 136
FE DB (A 5£22() Profit distribution (note 22(c)) — 218,628 218,628
EfEEHAE Total other changes 1,659 218,628 220,287
M2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 1,705 — 1,705
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17 RERREEEWE) 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising

(c) MEEBHELENABYHERGE)

from financing activities (Continued)

HEBERE ERRE @&
Lease Dividend
liabilities payable Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(#1i£20)
(note 20)
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 2,988 — 2,988
RERSRERE: Changes from financing cash flows:
ENHEEREEADS  Capital element of lease rentals paid (3,032) — (3,032)
ENEERSFBEED  Interest element of lease rentals paid (175) — (175)
ME DB Profit distribution —  (80,113)  (80,113)

Total changes from financing cash flows

Hitr 25 Other changes:
FERFAEER Increase in lease liabilities from entering into

MEBEEM new leases during the year 2,549 — 2,549
FERI (W it5a) Interest expenses (note 5()) 175 — 175
ME DB (K i222(0) Profit distribution (note 22(c)) — 80,113 80,113
Hth@gem Total other changes 2,724 80,113 82,837
R2020%512831H At 31 December 2020 2,505 — 2,505
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17 BERREEEYWE) 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
(d) HERERHAHE (d) Total cash outflow for leases
HEFAREREXRTHNCHEE Amounts included in the cash flow statement
AR for leases comprise the following:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR%E Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREEREME Within operating cash flows 5,950 3,670
BRraEReR=E Within financing cash flows 2,459 3,207
8,409 6,877
18 EHEE 18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR%E Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
eEHNaE Contract liabilities
MEEERBE Property management services 114,717 87,517
EEFEERY Value-added services to non-
property owners 3,868 4,175
5S 12 (B Ak 1% 5S value-added services 25,045 15,790
143,630 107,482
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EHEEBE®) 18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
BRBBEZ#EESHOT Movements in contract liabilities were as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARE T N R
RMB’000 RMB’'000
M1A1E B & % Balance at 1 January 107,482 117,340
BERERFERNUWZE(BIFEE A Decrease in contract liabilities (105,315) (114,113)
BRBBEIMELENEGNE as a result of recognising
&R revenue during the year that
was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of
the period
BRI IRE® AN R E B Increase in contract liabilities as a 140,910 103,889
B R A EE N result of receipts in advances of
provision of services
ARBRRFAFERAZEI  Increase in contract liabilities as 553 366
B R A EE N a result of accruing interest
expense on advances
12 A31H M & 64 Balance at 31 December 143,630 107,482
BRNEGEEBENMEERE  LHRE Contract liabilities represents prepaid property
BRRE=ZFURNTRHERNEMRE management fees, consulting services fees and
% o customised interior furnishing services fees received
from third parties.
At —FU LR RBMABNEL B The amount of receipts in advance of performance
A AN R #1,368,0007T (2020%F : A B expected to be recognised as income after
#1,710,0007T) ° more than one year is RMB1,368,000 (2020:

RMB1,710,000).
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19 BEFKkHAEAFKIE

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

202145 20204
12H31H 12H831H
EX DY I8 31 December
2021 2020
g3 ARE Tt NS R
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
H 5 HIE Trade payables (a) 57,178 31,112
JE 1~ RE B 5 3R IR Amounts due to related parties (b) 25,946 17,614
b gcia Deposits (c) 44,915 32,158
HibfEfT LB X B A Other taxes and charges payable 14,852 5,141
JEETTE R EMMEF  Accrued payroll and other benefits 165,812 119,755
REEZZWEH Cash collected on behalf of the 56,970 46,411
W& (Kat16) property owners’ associations
(note 16)
8% FEH Temporary receipts from property (d) 122,304 207,462
Fa F 3K I8 owners
H i J& < 5018 & Other payables and accruals 7,888 13,673
JE 5 3B
495,865 473,326

@) BIERNREBEIBEREDSBRBKE
ERRENRIE - BREEBREAIEH
HRZE - RIR - RSB E RIS -

(b) ENEBAIREBENBEERLES -
FEA R B 7 R TE MY RE B B M R
26(d) » &+ A R #21,887,0007C
(20204 : A RR#£17,221,00070) B %
A S RENENZARSE - 78
AE—FAERAEWA -

O BeEREEHERZE KR
MEREHE -

d BEABEIBERRAOBEER
AREXETWRONAREXERANLA
XXM IMABRERBERSKID
HEM -
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Trade payables mainly represent payables
arising from sub-contracting services
including cleaning, security, landscaping and
maintenance services provided by suppliers.

The amounts due to related parties are
unsecured and interest-free. Details of the
amounts due to related parties are set out in
note 26(d). Among which, RMB21,887,000
(2020: RMB17,221,000) are prepaid consulting
services fees received from related parties and
expected to be recognised as income within
one year.

Deposits represent miscellaneous decoration
deposits received from property owners during
the decoration period.

Temporary receipts mainly represent utility
charges received from property owners on
behalf of utility companies and other charges
received from property owners for the
payment of deed tax on behalf.
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19 BESREMBENMREGE
RERSHR ERBEZAHNESE
=

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing

NRIBRETAT: analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date is
as follows:
202145 20204F
2021 2020
ARE Tt N B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
& AR eIk Bk Within 1 month or on demand 56,498 27,500
3fE A& E1F A After 3 months but within 1 year 28 300
1A Over 1 year 2,639 3,312
59,165 31,112
20 HEAE 20 LEASE LIABILITIES

M2021%F12A831H - HEBBEIZIAT
HAEE:

At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

20214 20204F

2021 2020

ARE T N R

RMB’000 RMB'000

RN Within Tyear 158 1,202
—FHEMFR After 1 year but within 2 years 119 1,303
1,705 2,505
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21 ZREMBRRARNOFAEH 21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) ZREMBERRRAMVENAHER (a) Current taxation in the consolidated
15 statement of financial position
represents:
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR%S Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
PECERESH PRC Corporate Income Tax
M1A1H At 1 January 60,943 38,421
18 = B Charged to profit or loss 104,627 70,882
FENK Payments during the year (95,694) (48,360)
M12A318 At 31 December 69,876 60,943
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21 ZREMBRARNAEBHR (B 21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(i) EEHEEEREBESAR (i) Movement of each component of
HoWEH deferred tax assets and liabilities
RERE MBI R AHERK The components of deferred tax assets
AEENELEHEEENM recognised in the consolidated statement
PRER D M BT of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

g EWHE EREEE
ZREBR REBR EsBx ZHEER Bt
Impairment Depreciation
loss on charge of
trade Accrued right-of-use
receivables  Tax losses expenses assets Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARETT ARETLT ARET:I
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

M2020F 1818 At 1 January 2020 1,921 — 3,384 1M 5,316
FABRR Credited to profit or loss 2,873 — 4,331 — 7,204
12020912 318 At 31 December 2020 4,794 — 7,715 1M1 12,520
HARH Credited to profit or loss 3,033 50 3,569 (222) 6,430
M2021%12 4318 At 31 December 2021 7,827 50 11,284 (211) 18,950
(i) HEEHBERRRERE (ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated

statement of financial position

2021%F 20204
2021 2020
ARE T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

RERE B AR L R AR Net deferred tax asset
HRIET & E SRR recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 18,950 12,520
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(Rm=BHEAEIN
21 FEMBMRROFEHR (B

() RERELEBBEEE
WESBATEHEBRRELEHIEBEE
=%

21

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the following items:

APABERE — P E

Unused tax losses-PRC

2021E 20204
2021 2020

AR Tt NG S
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,452 3,339

BIRM FE1Q)F I A2 ETEE - R
2021128310 - A &£ B ¥ # 7t
HETWB AR RS MBI IEEIE®E
B AR ¥363,000 0 ERIEE E
(20204 : A R #835,00070) - & &
RE - -REANEa AR RER
TR AT BE B R 2R FE SR A A B A] g 4K

REFBEMNBERERER KBRS
HANARERREABREBRAT

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 1(g), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets of RMB363,000 (2020:
RMB835,000) in respect of unused tax losses
of certain subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021.
The directors consider it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the unrecognised tax losses at the

FEEM: end of the reporting period will expire in the
following years:
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARE Tt NS R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
20234 2023 13 13
2024F 2024 9 9
20254 2025 13 3,317
20264 2026 1,417 —
1,452 3,339
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21 REPHMRRHOFAES (B)

BEFECEMSREZEZRAER
AR BRIFFAMBELH KL
HEE R B 0 BLE2008F1 A 1H A 2K
BEMFBEmS  FPECERER
BB A AR BB R 10% )
MEHMBBIF -

R2021F12A31H » I & 5t K &
ERFENHNEB ARG DIEEEH
B A R #808,717,0007T (20204 :
A B #462,944,0007T) i B X 1t
F1I0% T ETEMNHERAR
#80,872,0007C (20204 : A R #
46,294,0007T) B IR (E T 1E B & -
REARAEEZEHZEWBARN
BREBK MBEDETZSH B
BETEEATRREDIK °

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

According to PRC corporate income
tax laws and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate
residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements, for
profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB80,872,000
(2020: RMB46,294,000) were not recognised
in respect of 10% PRC dividend withholding
tax that would be payable on the distribution
of retained profits of RMB808,717,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB462,944,000)
in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC as the Group controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it was determined
that it was probable that these profits would
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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22 BEX - RERKE

AEEGAESSAREH Y
6 B HA R 45 04 40 B BE BT R
ARBEBE - ADTERN AT
48 B0 7 £ 41 % 4 O R P o 2
HEHIATX

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

Y| & KRG EE EifE BENA @it
Company Share Share Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
Wi ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARET:R
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Maam  WE200) KR
note 22(b)  note 22(a)i)  note 22(d)ii)
R2020%1510 8 £ & Balance at 1 January 2020 181 492,647 20,135 2,958 515,921
20205 M@%%28:  Changes in equity for 2020:
EE2ENEBE  Total comprehensive income - - (17,218) 3,675 (13,543)
for the year
BAFEHNSRIRE  Dividends declared in respect 2(c)i) — (80,113) — — (80,113)
of the previous year
R2020%12A318 K  Balance at 31 December 2020 181 412,534 2917 6,633 422,265
211F1B18 &8  and 1 January 2021
011EHESEH:  Changes in equity for 2021:
EEZARFESE  Total comprehensive income — — (6,543) 1,355 (5,188)
for the year
BAFEHNSKIRE  Dividends declared in respect 2(c)(i) — (131,632) — — (131,632)
of the previous year
AEEFHERMRE  Dividends declared in respect 22(0)f) - (86,996) - - (86,996)
of the current year
120211283184 Balance at 31 December 2021 181 193,906 (3,626) 7,988 198,449

&8
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22 EX - RERRE®E) 22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(b) EB=& (b) Share Capital
EE R A Authorised share capital
20214 2020F
2021 2020
RBEE £ R &8 £
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
(TR) Txn (Th) Txn

(000) Us$'000

('000) US§'000

BE: Authorised:
B L ER0.0001% T Ordinary shares of US$0.0001 each 1,000,000 100 1,000,000 100
2BITRA Issued share capital
20215 20205
2021 2020
RHBEE KA
No. of No. of
shares shares
(T®) AR%Txn (FR) AREFR
("000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
BRARMEN Ordinary shares, issued
BER: and fully paid:
MA1BRI12A318 At 1 January and 31 December 276,407 181 276,407 181
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22 EX - RERBREE) 22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

() *FEEREXQARAEERR (i) Dividends payable to equity
ZB’RE: shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB’000

RErEa R BB BE AR KB  Interim dividend of
HiEM R ER S ERRK HKDO0.379 per share
%0.379% 7T after the consolidated
statement of interim
financial position date 86,996 —
REEEFBRRNEKBE%  Final dividend of HKD0.473
EEERMNORNERES per share proposed
% A% 17 0.4737%8 7T (2020 after the consolidated
FRESHBIRAE statement of financial
A HA 18 2 3% & 1 89 K B position date (2020: final

i B & i iz 17 0.564,8 dividend of HKD0.564 per
7T) share proposed after the
consolidated statement of
financial position date) 106,055 131,632
193,051 131,632
REEHRE  FRELE The final dividend proposed for
B BEIk A RE RS I shareholders’ approval after the end
BRBEHRBERAREE - of the reporting period has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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22 EX - @ERERE

(i) tEMEFERSEDTHE

()

BERE RERSH ERIK
NHBRENT:

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

& A B &R B £ Final dividend in respect of

the previous financial year,

approved and paid during

the year, of HKD0.564 per

share (2020: final dividend

of HKDO0.228 per share

and special dividend of

HKDO0.091 per share) 131,632 80,113

EHBRFEFEREREET
% P& #50.5647% 7T (2020
FRERBESRRKM
0.2288B T RERIKRES
A% A% 150.0917% 7T)

IR 12 5 18
BhaEREDETROE
B4R % 8 8 % o i RUCER |
PSR FR BB ERE -
REFSBHSERQARE  AAT]
F 7 g (B R AT 1 0k i B T AR
NERERR EEREESR
DK BEBRR  AREKAE
ENREEEREBBRESRN
BHIBES -

()

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference
between the total amount of the par
value of shares issued and the amount of
the net proceeds received from the equity
shareholders. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company is
distributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

LIRSS E AR ] FERE 2021

293



294

e P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BR=BEBREIN
22 EX - EERERE @

(i) PEEEM®E

EERBIODKBETBEERN
RAFERAREKRAEHE
B QA (% E AR R E W
AL ER AR
EERBHBEEINEEIME
K H)50% ° % f## B B A
RAKRERAEADRKEZ

A {E -

IWERERMS

HHEGBBTIONZER
it E AN H925% ©

(iii) B X% %%

PE R B R R B OK B 3R O
BN BRERBEEELEN
FENEZR - ZREEBEDIR
EH I TSI A & AT BUR

B2 3E o
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EE R
FA R 9 4 2 A 4R TR R S 1B (1
B) BAEBmSRERAEA
BARERLOIEDHNER
HRTRGHRABERREN

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

PRC statutory reserves

Statutory reserves is established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of
association of the companies comprising
the Group which are incorporated in the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity
holders.

For the entities concerned, statutory
reserves can be used to cover previous
years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to
the existing equity interests of equity
holders, provided that the balance of
the reserve after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the entity’s registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside the mainland China.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(t).
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged throughout the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
bank loans and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents, and equity of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the
capital structure periodically. Based on the
operating budgets, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balances its overall
capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing
debts.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed

capital requirements throughout the reporting
period.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arise in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

Financial assets of the Group include cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss and trade and
other receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group
include trade and other payables.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, time deposits and trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank and time deposits of the
Group are mainly held with well-known
financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

The Group’s wealth management products
classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are issued by well-known
financial institutions. The Group considers that
there is no significant credit risk and these
wealth management products did not generate
any losses during the reporting period.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

In respect of amounts due from related
parties, the Group has assessed that the
expected credit loss rate for these receivables
is immaterial. Thus no loss allowance provision
for these receivables was recognised during
the reporting period.

In respect of other receivables including
deposits and prepayment, payments on behalf
of property owners, advances to employees
and others, the Group has assessed that the
expected credit loss rate for these receivables
is immaterial under 12 months expected losses
method based on historical settlement records
and looking-forward information (including
the economic environment). Thus no loss
allowance provision for these receivables was
recognised during the reporting period.

In respect of trade receivables from third
parties, the Group measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. The Group
considers that a default event occurs when
significant decrease in property management
and other service fee collection rate and
estimates the expected credit loss rate for each
reporting period. For trade receivables relating
to non-property management services, such
as consulting services, these receivables are
normally settled within 6 months. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit loss
rate for these receivables is immaterial under
lifetime ECLs based on historical settlement
records and looking-forward information
(including the economic environment). As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience
indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on ageing information,
which is analysed base on the date of revenue
recognition, is further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
from third parties in view of its large number
of customers.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade
receivables of RMB13,484,000 (31 December
2020: RMB11,631,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that
were in collection difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowance for impairment of trade
receivables of RMB13,484,000 (31 December
2020: RMB10,936,000) were recognised as at
31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2021, the allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB17,822,000 (2020:
RMB8,239,000) were additionally made based
on a collective group basis assessment by
ageing of trade receivables. The following
table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables by using a provision matrix as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.



e IS ERAR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

23 BERBRERE(E) 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) EERME(E) (a) Credit risk (Continued)

R2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 RAHERE REELE ERER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000
EMEERRY Non-property management services
RER Within 1 year 3% 15,802 474
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L
NEERRK Property management services
RMER Within 1 year 15% 73,059 11,121
1225 1102 years 60% 4315 2,589
BiEF Over 2 years 100% 3,638 3,638
81,012 17,348
@i Total 96,814 17,822
R2020512 8318 At 31 December 2020 RHERX KEELSE ERER
Gross
Expected arrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AREFT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FNEERRY Non-property management services
RIER Within 1 year - 9,243 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, w8 -
NEEBRRK Property management services
MER Within 1 year 22% 15,908 3,500
1228 1102 years 60% 3,829 2,297
I Over 2 years 100% 2,44 248
22,179 8,239
@it Total 31,422 8,239
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. Further quantitative disclosures
in respect of Group's exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables are set
out in note 14.

The Group’s management reviews the liquidity
position of the Group on an ongoing basis,
including review of the expected cash inflows
and outflows and maturity of loans and
borrowings in order to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions and/or from other Group
companies to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end
of each reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:
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23 BERBRERE(E) 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(b) "BESER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

R2021%12831A
As at 31 December 2021
EONRERRERE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
1ER Y BR1E BR2E RM2B31AK
REX B2 {B5E R BRSE REE

More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1year 1 year but less but less More than amount at
orondemand than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

25 REMJE Trade and other payables

g 495,865 - - - 495,865 495,865
HEBE  Leaseliabilities 1,637 121 - - 1,758 1,705
497,502 i - — 497,623 497,510
12020512318
As at 31 December 2020
SHOARRALR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
15 R B BE RM2A31RE
BEX [B2F ERE BiBcE @i HHE
More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1year 1 year but less but less More than amount at
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

85 R & Trade and other payables

T3 473326 - - - 473,326 473,326
HEEE  Lease liabilities 1302 1,346 - - 2,648 2,505
474,628 1,346 - - 475,974 475,831
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, time deposits and lease liabilities.

TRAVNAEEGFE2RMITANN The following table details the interest rate
EAR - profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial
instruments:
2021512 431K 2020F12A431H
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
BERA = ERAX
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% AR®TR % ARETR
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
EEFEEMIA: Fixed rate financial instruments:
REHBHBRB=(EAN Time deposits held at the bank with  0.93% ~4.13% 397,177 1.32% ~ 4.13% 469,828
ROIEBERM215) original maturity over three months
(note 15)
REABTBB=EAN  Fixed deposits held at the bank with 3.30% 273,623 3.30% 168,732
ROIEBERM217) original maturity within three
months (note 17)
HEERWZ20) Lease liabilities (note 20) 4.75% (1,705) 4.75% (2,505)
SHAEEMIA: Variable rate financial
instruments:
BITRERZBHBETEH  Cash at bank and restricted bank 0.30% 689,095 0.30% 682,892

(B13217)

halance (note 17)

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Group does not account for any fixed rate
financial instruments, such as time deposits
and lease liabilities, at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate
at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative financial instruments held by the
Group, such as cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash, at the end of the reporting
period, the Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk as the interest rates of cash at
bank are not expected to change significantly.

Overall, the Group's exposure to interest rate
risk is not significant.

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases that
are denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currencies of Group
entities.

The Company, the BVI subsidiary and the
Hong Kong subsidiary’s functional currency
is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD). Their businesses
are principally conducted in HKD. In addition,
as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ functional
currency is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB. Therefore,
the Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
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()

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’'s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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23 BERBRERE(E) 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(i) ZBAFEFENEREER (i) Financial assets and liabilities
E8&(E) measured at fair value (Continued)
INFAE AR B (HE) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

RONENANAN AT EHE

FERAUATRA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using

R2021E
128318

AV -5 EZ45 LY
Fair value at
31 December

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ARBTR AE®TR INL R AR®TR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

BEMATEGE: Recurring fair value
measurement:
AE Assets:
RAOTFEGAER —HEER  FPVL— treasury products (nofe (}) 24,044 - - 24,004
(W)

(i) ZELMAERETamEE (i)  These financial assets represent certain
BN MEER  YRF treasury products issued by certain financial
MEMERNEE - ZFTE® institutions and were purchased at the end
REFAREBMNAFEBAEER of the reporting period. Their fair values
BiEE - approximates to their carrying amounts as at

respective year end date.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

()

The movements during the year in

BEREBHMT the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:
202145
2021
AR T
RMB'000
BATEGFAEZ: FVPL:
R1ATR At 1 January —
BE R RIA Payment for purchases 113,700
HE TS RIE Proceeds from sales (90,064)
BAFEFABZHDEIZ  Net realised and unrealised
MAGRW = FEE gains on FVPL 408
®12 8318 At 31 December 24,044

(i) YFEELAFEIRZ2EME
EREBENATHE

ENE S B @ NI AN
Ik e MTAMKEESR
20214 }22020%F12 A31H B A
FELIEEAEZE -

RARBE
2021912 A31H » AN & E I & L ] &
KNI ABELE -

24
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(ii) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair
value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021.
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25 & 25 COMMITMENTS
B E2021F12A318 - M AR M B | & Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
BENREEERNAEDNT 2021 not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR® Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B4 Contracted for 4,851 —
4,851 —
26 EXFEBAERS 26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

BEaMBEBRREMEGRENBY
BEIAN KRBT NI E KB

%5 o

(a) BB BN BB T B &

RBEHA - BT IETHORHH
BREBIRS:

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transactions.

(@) Name of and relationship with
related parties
During the reporting period, transactions with
the following parties are considered as related
party transactions:

BIRBEEGRAR FEHRE 2021
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BBAINEE B8
Name of related party

BRASEENER
Relationship with the Group

Mr. Qi Jinxing

/NSRS
Controlling shareholder of the
Company

MMNBE TR EZERBRAR (DEIER D REAKBRAR - 815 -
Hangzhou Binjiang Investment Holding Limited
(“Binjiang Holding”) and its subsidiaries, including:

) BIFEREWBARAR:R

(“Binjiang Catering”)

MMEREHERZEFR QT

Hangzhou Binbao Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MMNFEIERXRERAA
Hangzhou Xijiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEEEXFR QA
Hangzhou Xingtang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

i) MMEBEBIEZEREEERAG(EIER]
i) Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries; and
i) Hangzhou Binjiang Catering Management Limited

Mr. Qi Jinxing is a controlling
shareholder

20214510 A Al /& 7T 12 AR 9 B &
NE R 2021510A 18 B TR
Collig=s NG

Associate of Binjiang Holding
before October 2021 and
subsidiary of Binjiang Holding
after October 2021

BILE AR B Bt & R )
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BILYE AR B Bt & R )
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BBEHNHE &8

Name of related party

AR EE

Relationship with the Group

MMERXBEBRAR
Hangzhou Qinmao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEY FHERZEBR AR
Hangzhou Xingyue Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MINR BB ER E AR QA

Hangzhou Baohong Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MM T EHEREFR QT

Hangzhou Jingjiang Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MMEEEEBR QA
Hangzhou Binyuan Industrial Co., Ltd.

MMEBEREEREERQF
Hangzhou Bohang Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MINEF i EREAR A A

Hangzhou Binyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNBELZEHERZERR QG

Hangzhou Binan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MANE W FEHERZEBR AR
Hangzhou Bingin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

EITYE R B B & R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B A A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT IR ) B A A
Associate of Binjiang Holding
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(Bx

»BEHRAEIN
26 EXBEMARS ()

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

MBANGEE E8

Name of related party

BAKENEE

Relationship with the Group

MMNEEEEREBRAA

Hangzhou Binbo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

CEEREFHERZEARAA

Jinhua Binlan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNAIEBEXBERAQA
Hangzhou Xijiang Henggiao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMNEEFEHEREBR QA

Hangzhou Binfeng Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

BHMNERFEHERERR DR

Suzhou Binyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMEBEEBRRAA
Hangzhou Xingyun Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEXFEHEREBR QA

Hangzhou Binwen Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

MMNBEMREEAERRQA
Hangzhou Shenrui Logistics Technology Co., Ltd.

BT R 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 125 R 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT B A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 12 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 R B Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BBEHNHE &8

Name of related party

AR EE

Relationship with the Group

BEMRKEEBRAA
Yueqing Liangrong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

EERREHERBERAR
Deqing Jingsheng Real Estate Development Co.,Ltd.

BNHFREBEEBRRFA
Wenzhou Zhetong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMREEHERERR QA

Hangzhou Tianyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMAEEXEFRAA
Hangzhou Tongda Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEERBEXARAA

Hangzhou Xinda Olympic Sports Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MM AT IEE £BR QA
Hangzhou Greentown Zhezhi Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BERIBEEBRAR
Wenling Jinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BT R ) B A7)
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B L1 R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding
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(Bx

»BEHRAEIN
26 EXBEMARS ()

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BMBEHHE 28

Name of related party

BEAREENER
Relationship with the Group

mMeAEMERERFR DG

Hangzhou Jinsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

LN AZ 3 b EE B BR A A
Hangzhou Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MM LERKFEERRDA
Hangzhou Xijiang Shenjialong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MNEEMEERBERAQF
Hangzhou Zhihe Property Management Co., Ltd.

MM B R & AR B R A A
Hangzhou Zhibin Technology Co., Ltd.

BT R 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 125 R 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

AEBEEE RF

Associate of the Group

RE BB E QA

Associate of the Group

ARAB 2R EFREMHRZE - ZDQ
AME BB AR XERR -

The English translation of the Company name
is for reference only. The official names of

these companies are in Chinese.
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(BR=BIEBEIN
26 EXBEMARS(E)

(b) TEEEBAEHE

AEBTIT2EREAEME (B
BENARREFHFKIAGHMK E7
FIRB)RETRESFHMET(HD
B FEBPTHR B AT

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR Tt NG S
RMB’'000 RMB'000

TE - - FBREWEHN Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 6,963 5,323
B 15 7€ 41 Discretionary bonuses 3,012 2,090
RAORET 2] 3 Retirement scheme contributions 240 228
10,215 7,641

FMABEEATE T AR K&
5(b)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 5(b)).

BIRBEEGRAR FEHRE 2021
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 EXEBAERZ(E) 26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) EXBEEBARS (c) Significant related party transactions

AEESE FREBSRNRERE Particulars of significant transactions between
WBEARZFBWT: the Group and the above related parties

314

during the reporting period are as follows:

20215 20206
2021 2020
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MEEERE - XAAIRS - ##@Kk  Property management services, pre-
BROEHELCLRBRARE : delivery services, consulting services
and brokerage services for property
sales income from:
—BIERREANBAR —Binjiang Holding and its subsidiaries
—BIFRERAEMBAR —Binjiang Real Estate and its 304,930 181,767
subsidiaries
—BIERREMNERR —Binjiang Holding and its other 500 225
subsidiaries
—BIERMEE AR — Associates of Binjiang Holding 146,977 82,797
—AEENBERT —Associates of the Group 5,193 —
BEXRHBHERS Receiving services of short-term leases
—BIRERANBAR —Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 1,918 37
BUATARMEEAEEE: Acquisitions of right-of-use assets from:
—BIRERANBAR —Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 1,159 —
HEBEMBSHY: Interest expense on lease liabilities:
—BIREREWBAR NI —Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 57 133
(note (1))
BXUTARMERRS Receiving catering services from:
—BIIEH —Binjiang Catering — 204
—BIFERAENBAR —Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 822 —
BATARBERm: Purchasing goods from:
—BIFERAENBAR —Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 35,141 29,129
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

26 EXBABARS (1)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) EERAEE D HVAS &R (d) Balances with related parties
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
WL T ARRE: Amounts due from:
BIFEREWBAR Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries
—Bo1KE —Trade nature 44,571 23,748
BIIERNBE AT Associates of Binjiang Holding
—E518 —Trade nature 20,660 10,688
65,231 34,436
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARET R ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EAUTARRE: Amounts due to:
BIREREWB AR Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries
— — Trade nature 18,080 12,566
BIERNBE AT Associates of Binjiang Holding
— — Trade nature 7,866 5,048
25,946 17,614
ERHEEEE: Lease liabilities due to:
—BIRERENBARA — Binjiang Real Estate and its
subsidiaries 638 791

(i) B E2021F % 2020F12 A3 ILFE »
AEBECBETRAFEREIEENRN

-

(i) EAENBEB T REREERE R
=]

T

)

(if)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 the
Group used the trademarks of Binjiang Real Estate
in the PRC on a royalty-free basis.

Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured
and interest-free.
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

26 EXBABARS (1)

bRt A B AR T B E R AW
BRAREMEEERY - & AR
% XA ATBR T R &R 4 RIS A K B
BIFEREMBRAREESRT
MENBB TS BX LR
FUAEMATNBEEXHAFE
ERS - LHARAF4ATMR
ENRBEFEREREFTEREH
BRAEBEXRS]—& -

EXFEEEREBEIRENR
B2 BXEBEIBEZEERBEN
A RXSEK ETRAEI4AE
FIATHHEERIXNBFERER
% BEERZERZSEN LML
FUUATOMIER TN HERE - &
BHRABTZERERT -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The related party transactions in respect of
provision of property management services,
consulting services, pre-delivery services and
brokerage services to Binjiang Real Estate and
its subsidiaries and certain properties leased
from Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries
above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”
of the Report of Directors.

The related party transactions in respect of
using trademarks of Binjiang Real Estate,
receiving catering services from Binjiang Real
Estate above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, those transactions are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

N\,

27 REAEEZBBMRR K

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
IREBEE Non-current assets
R—KRHEBARAKE Investment in a subsidiary 87,676 90,249
Y BEREE Property, plant and equipment 336 468
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 88,012 90,717
REBEE Current assets
B 5 & E b fE W IR Trade and other receivables 8,663 13,493
E B 17 3K Time deposits 71,606 318,528
ReERREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 41,527 10,798
SR L7 4L S 342,819
RBEE Current liability
B 5 & H b e 3RIE Trade and other payables 11,359 11,271
11,359 11,271
REBEEFE Net current assets 110,437 331,548
EERAERRBEE Total assets less current
liabilities 198,449 422,265
EEFE NET ASSETS 198,449 422,265
BARRGEE W E22(a) CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(note 22(a))
g AR Share capital 181 181
G Reserves 198,268 422,084
R R TOTAL EQUITY 198,449 422,265
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(Bx

28

29

30

»BEHRAEIN

BEMRNERRE R

RBEKRE  EEZHRMNRPBKE -
HE— S FBRK 2200 H 5E -

HERERARERA
R2021F12831H » EFRAREFENZR
TR A AEA RS E LA -

%mm@m%mv%$%%$%ﬁm
BEESARAEEARKRER NG - ZE
RYERRUEARIAZWBRE -

REBZE2021F12A31HLEFECEH
BREARERZIER - HEARZEN
IQEE/ =

EEAUBHREATIZEEE  HEgTE
AIEEE2EMmZENEE20215124
BIHEFEHRARERTERTBREA
TR S 5T & — I8 H 42 Al B B B 7 R
ﬁ%”w%ﬁA WoERBREAT
ApeE AR BB R ER -
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28

29

30

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend. Further details
are disclosed in note 22(c)(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Qi
Jinxing, an individual person.

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the
immediate parent of the Group to be Great Dragon
Ventures Limited. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance
contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

30 AEZE2021F12A31HLFEEHMH 30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
1‘3 I"'ﬁﬁEEE%IZﬂRET - FTEAIR R BN NEW STANDARDS AND
BESE (B INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

RATEES 2 ABRNEFHBEN
Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

ERABREENE6RET AR 202156308 # COVID-1915BH )7 % 202154518
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 1 April 2021
RS BREEREIREIR S/ FHREF 20251718
Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
S RABCRER % BERZE (ERTALANIFEAE 20251718
Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
S EREIIR B R FEAN — EiTRHNAL 20251718
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BIPR B 1 R 5 RI2018F 22020 F B F B i 20251718
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BEBREEREN ARG 6T ARG LN EITRET R REBT 202254818
Amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16 and IAS 37, Narrow-scope amendments 1 April 2022
BReENBREIR FEHZNZS REAERLDAF LY 2023F1718
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statement, Classification of Liabilities as current or 1 January 2023

non-current

RHBREEANEARBIN EREGHLRAARIFHEERNEIRZHR 202351418
Amendments to IFRS 4, Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS9 1 January 2023
ReEREI R RERYBREENEBRER2NEIN BFAFRE 202351418
Amendments to IAS1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
B G ERBSREIT X Bat it 2T F 202351418
Amendments to IAS8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
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(Rm=BHEAEIN
30 REZE2021F12A3 1AL FECEM
BEREMZIERT - FEARZEN

BEXE (@

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

RUATEHAZARRNETBEEN
Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

BedNEEVREIN AE-XFELEERBEHBEXERE 2023F1A1E

Amendments to I1AS12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 1 January 2023
Transaction

BHBREENETS RESVRAEGFEREEHZIRETE  RREY 2023F1R18

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

AR RREENE0FREABRSHENERRE A REZLABE L aLEL £ T

BHEELELZE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sales or contribution of assets between an investor and its

To be determined

associate or a joint venture

AEBLTAEFERZSZEZINTRER
HRABHBELENTE - 2981 K
SER BTN
MBHRERBERTE -

2y s g2

RZEZHIAAEHERE

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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